
 

 

      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

12:00 P.M., September 16, 2025  

GHURA’s Main Office (via Zoom) 

1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana  

AGENDA 

 

I. ROLL CALL 

 

II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 1st Printing – Tuesday, September 09 2025 
 2nd Printing – Sunday, September 14, 2025 
 
III. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES – August 26, 2025    

 

                                                                                                                 PAGE (S)                                                        

IV.     NEW BUSINESS  

1. Intent of Award  

  IFB GHURA-25-12; Lead Abatement for AMPs 1, 2 and 4 

2. Change Order #1 for Base Bid #3 

GHURA-25-002; Renovation of MOD 9 for AMP1, 2 and 4 

3. Resolution No. FY2025-024 (A-1)………………………………………………          1 - 12 

Amendment to the “2025 Community Development Block Grant 

Disaster Recovery Citizen Participation Plan (CDBG-DR CPP)” 

4. Resolution No. FY2025-033 ………………………………………………………         13 - 14 

Resolution Commending Ms. Ana C. Sahagon, Interviewer Clerk, 

for her Dedication and Contributions to the Guam Housing and 

Urban Renewal Authority (GHURA) 

5. Resolution No. FY2025-034 ………………………………………………………             15 

Resolution Approving the Detail Appointment Extension for an 

Additional 90 Days for Calendar Year 2025 for Kathleen Jean 

Taitingfong (CDBG-DR Program) 

6. Resolution No. FY2025-035 ……………………………………………………….            16 

Resolution Approving the Detail Appointment Extension for an  

Additional 90 Days for Calendar Year 2025 for Carlo N. Ongklungel 

(CDBG-DR Program) 

7. Resolution No. FY2025-036 …………………………………………………………      17 - 20 

Resolution Adopting the 2025 Public Housing Admissions and  

Continued Occupancy (ACOP) that Includes an Appendix Relating 

to the Changes Mandated by the Housing Opportunities Through 

the Modernization Act (HOTMA) of 2016 

  



 

 

8. Resolution No. FY2025-037 ………………………………………………………..      21 - 89 

Resolution Approving the Fiscal Year 2026 Operating Budgets  

For Public Housing Asset Management Projects (AMP)  

9. Resolution No. FY2025-038 ………………………………………………………..         90 

Resolution Approving the Fiscal Year 2026 Operating and 

Administrative Budget  
10. Summary of Deputy Director, Board Evaluation for CY2025 ……….     91 - 128 

11. Summary of Executive Director, Board Evaluation for CY2025 ….     129 - 166 

 

V. CORRESPONDENCE AND REPORTS 

1. FY2024 Audit Report …………………………………………………………………………….     167 - 288 

VI. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

1. Project Updates 

 

VII. GENERAL DISCUSSION / ANNOUNCEMENTS 

1. Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting:  Tuesday, September 30, 2025 

 @ 12:00 p.m.   

 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT 





 





 



 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of August 26, 2025                                                    Page 1 of 14 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

12:00 P.M., August 26 2025 

GHURA’s Main Office (via Zoom) 

1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana  

AGENDA 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

Pursuant to the Open Government Law of Guam and the Bylaws of the Authority, the Board of 
Commissioners’ regularly scheduled board meeting was called to order at 12:01 P.M., Tuesday, 
July 8, 2025, at the GHURA Sinajana Main Office, 1st floor Conference room. Chairman Rivera 
indicated that 5 of 6 members of the Board of Commissioners were present, representing a 
quorum and that the meeting would proceed as scheduled. 

 
Viewed 
virtually via 

ZOOM: https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86478248299?pwd=VE3yEchJnMNBF0dFeFWg2U5hZwj0ij.1  

YOUTUBE: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCGqKWU0kOmT0FOLYn48ULag 

BOC 
Commissioners 
Attendance 
 

Dr. John Rivera, Chairman                                        Virtual             In-Person                 
Nate Sanchez, Vice Chairman                                  Virtual             In-Person        
Anisia Delia, Commissioner                                      Virtual             In-Person            
Emilia Rice, Commissioner                                       Virtual             In-Person    
Victor Torres, Commissioner                                   Virtual             In-Person        
Karl Corpus, Resident Commissioner                     Virtual             In-Person    
 
*Request to attend meeting virtually was submitted via email and acknowledged by Chairman Rivera. 

GHURA 
Management/ 
Staff  

Elizabeth F. Napoli, Executive Director          Julie Lujan, MIS Administrator     Carlo Ongklungel  
Fernando B. Esteves, Deputy Director           Sonny Perez, AE Manager             Thalia Pablo    
Audrey Aguon, Special Assistant                     Frances Danieli, Controller            
Narcissa Ada, AMP1 Manager                         Katherine Taitano, RP&E Chief Planner                              
Gina Cura, AMP2 Manager                             Dr. Kimberly Bersamin, HR Administrator                        
Patrick Bamba, AMP3 Manager                      Antonio Camacho, Procurement                               
Philomena San Nicolas, AMP4 Manager       Pearly Mendiola, GT Manager                        
Jolyn Terlaje                                                       Nicole Alejandro                                                                
Miguel Fernandez                                             Section 8 Staff and Fiscal Staff   
Michael Ricuyal                                                  Ervin Santiago     
Maria Cherry Canete                                        Patrick Luces          Andrew Manglona                      
 

Legal Counsel Eliseo M. Florig Jr., Legal Counsel for GHURA   
 

Public  
 

 

II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS 

              1st Printing – Tuesday, August 19, 2025 

   2nd Printing – Sunday, August 24, 2025 
 
   ACKNOWLEDGED BY CHAIRMAN RIVERA 

https://www.google.com/url?q=https%3A%2F%2Fus06web.zoom.us%2Fj%2F86478248299%3Fpwd%3DVE3yEchJnMNBF0dFeFWg2U5hZwj0ij.1&sa=D&ust=1744612080000000&usg=AOvVaw1jbvHYhBhhMp72X-rDRiiW


 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of August 26, 2025                                                    Page 2 of 14 
 

 

III. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES: [512/25] Commissioner Torres moved 

to approve the board meeting minutes of August 12, 2025, subject to corrections.  

Commissioner Rice seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously.  

 

IV. NEW BUSINESS: 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

1. Intent of Award-IFB 
GHURA-25-10; 
Renovations of nine 
(9) Public Housing 
Units at AMPs 1, 2, 
and 4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[513/25] Executive Director Napoli read 
the Intent of Award-IFB GHURA-25-10; 
Renovations of nine (9) Public Housing 
Units at AMPs 1, 2, and 4 on pages 1-6 in 
the GHURA Board of Commissioners 
(BoC) August 26, 2025 meeting packet, 
which was also found on the GHURA 
website, www.ghura.org.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[514/25] 

Commissioner Torres 

moved to approve the 

Intent of Award-IFB 

GHURA-25-10; 

Renovations of nine 

(9) Public Housing 

Units at AMPs 1, 2, and 

4 to OH Construction in 

the amount of $383, 

500.00 for bid items 1, 

2, and 3. Project 

timeline for Bid item 

#1 is ninety 

consecutive calendar 

days at the cost of 

$131,000. Timeline for 

Bid item #2 is one 

hundred twenty 

consecutive calendar 

days at the cost of 

$154,000. Timeline for 

Bid item #3 is ninety 

consecutive calendar 

days at the cost of $98, 

500, with no option 

periods and not to 

exceed the amount of 

$383,500.00. Vice 

Chairman Sanchez 

seconded the motion. 

There were no 

http://www.ghura.org/


 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of August 26, 2025                                                    Page 3 of 14 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

2. Intent of Award- IFB 
GHURA-25-001-
CDBG-DR; Fleet 
Vehicles 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[515/25] Executive Director Napoli read 
the Intent of Award-IFB GHURA-25-001; 
Fleet Vehicles on pages 7-9 in the GHURA 
Board of Commissioners (BoC) August 26, 
2025 meeting packet, which was also 
found on the GHURA website, 
www.ghura.org.  

 

Chairman Rivera asked whether the bid 
included a sports utility vehicle. Deputy 
Director Esteves stated that none of the bids 
submitted met the bid specifications. The bid 
could not be awarded.  

 

Mr. Antonio Camacho, Housing Procurement 
Administrator, requested for a change on 
page 7 and stated that it should read 120 
Consecutive Calendar Days and not 160 
Consecutive Calendar Days. Vice Chairman 
Sanchez indicated that the dollar sign should 
also be added to the Guam Auto Spot total of 
$187, 995.00 on page 7.  

 

Vice Chairman Sanchez asked whether the 
sports utility and passenger wagon 
specifications were met or not. Deputy 
Director Esteves indicated that the 
passenger wagon specs were met. 
Commissioner Torres asked why the 
specifications were not met. Deputy Director 
Esteves stated that it was the fuel economy 
specs and added that GHURA would have to 
conduct the market research again. Bidders 
did not pose questions or objections when 
the IFB was advertised, but the bids 
submitted did not meet the bid criteria. He 
added that GHURA would have to reevaluate 
the bid criteria.  

 

Commissioner Delia requested clarification 
for the total cost for Triple J for items #1.2 

objections. Motion 

passed unanimously.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.ghura.org/


 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of August 26, 2025                                                    Page 4 of 14 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

and 1.3. Mr. Camacho indicated that the item 
#1.3 cost is in total of the 5-year Power 
Train and Vehicle Service Pan per vehicle. He 
added that the total was how the bid was 
submitted, and he should have broken it 
down.  

 

Director Napoli added that Mr. Camacho had 
indicated to her that he had written the bid 
results in the way that the bids were 
submitted by the different companies, which 
is why adjustments or breakdowns were not 
made in the bid report.  

 

Chairman Rivera stated that for the record, 
that the total amount for Triple J Enterprise 
proposal to award is $58,333, the 
breakdown of that would be for the 
passenger wagon at $56,138 and the 5-Year 
Power Train and Vehicle Service Plan for the 
passenger wagon with option to purchase, is 
$2,195. Which is then less than the 
passenger wagon, plus the 5-Year Power 
train that was submitted by Monster Auto 
Corp. 

 

Vice Chairman Sanchez asked whether the 
board should refrain from making a motion 
considering the numbers presented.  Mr. 
Eliseo Florig, Jr., GHURA’s Legal Counsel, 
indicated that the price of the vehicle plus 
the power train amount was explained in 
minutes and covers the numbers. He 
recommended that should the board motion 
to approve the award, it should include who 
the awardees are, the amount for each, and 
that it is not to exceed one hundred twenty 
consecutive calendar days.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[516/24] Vice 

Chairman Sanchez 

moved to approve the 

Intent of Award- IFB 

GHURA-25-001-CDBG-

DR; Fleet Vehicles. In 

review of the bid 

results, Cars Plus LLC 

and Triple J 

Enterprises, Inc 

provided the lowest 

responsive and 

responsible bid. The 

committee members 

determined to proceed 

with the award of the 

vehicles to Cars Plus 

LLC in the total amount 

of $53, 704.00 for Bid 

Item Nos. 1.1 and 1.3 

and Triple J. 

Enterprises, Inc in the 

total amount of 

$58,333 for Bid Items 

Nos 1.2 and 1.3. Both 

not to exceed one 

hundred twenty 

consecutive days. 

Commissioner Rice 

seconded the motion. 

There were no 

objections. Motion 

passed unanimously. 



 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of August 26, 2025                                                    Page 5 of 14 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

3. Resolution No. 
FY2025-027; 
Resolution 
Approving the 
Guam Community 
Development Block 
Grant-Disaster 
Recovery Fraud 
Waste and Abuse 
Policy 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[517/25] Executive Director Napoli read 
the Resolution No. FY2025-027; 
Resolution Approving the Guam 
Community Development Block Grant-
Disaster Recovery Fraud Waste and 
Abuse Policy on pages 10-21 in the 
GHURA Board of Commissioners (BoC) 
August 26, 2025 meeting packet, which 
was also found on the GHURA website, 
www.ghura.org.  

 

Mr. Florig indicated that in the caption of 
Resolution FY2025-027, it should read Fraud 
(comma) Waste (comma) and Abuse.  

 

Deputy Director Esteves stated the 
following: 

• Series of policies regarding fiscal and 
financial controls as part of phase II 

• Action Plan is still under final review 
by HUD 

• First week of September the policies 
will be submitted to HUD for review 

• GHURA is requesting approval from 
the board to provide flexibility for the 
executive director to amend from the 
base policies that the board approves.  

• Page 3 of the policy indicates that 
grantees must track all amendments. 
Amended versions will be recorded 
and reported to the board by the 
executive director.  

• Policy writing was a team effort 
• Team is doing well and focused on 

developing the policies for launch  

Chairman Rivera asked whether people can 
use the contact information provided in the 
policy to report complaints. Deputy Director 
Esteves confirmed this and added that the 
information will also be published on the 
website at www.guamcdbgdr.org 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.ghura.org/
http://www.guamcdbgdr.org/


 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of August 26, 2025                                                    Page 6 of 14 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Commissioner Torres asked if a template 
was used as reference to write the policies. 
Deputy Director Esteves indicated that HUD 
recommended that GHURA research what 
other grantees had done in the past and 
determine what CDBG-DR could put into 
operation.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[518/25] Vice 

Chairman Sanchez 

moved to approve 

Resolution No. 

FY2025-027; 

Resolution Approving 

the Guam Community 

Development Block 

Grant-Disaster 

Recovery Fraud 

(comma) Waste 

(comma) and Abuse 

Policy subject to the 

grammatical 

corrections. 

Commissioner Torres 

seconded the motion. 

There were no 

objections. Motion 

passed unanimously.  



 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of August 26, 2025                                                    Page 7 of 14 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

4. Resolution No 
FY2025-028; 
Resolution 
Approving the 
Guam Community 
Development Block 
Grant- Disaster 
Recovery Website 
Policy 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[519/25] Executive Director Napoli read 
the Resolution No FY2025-028; 
Resolution Approving the Guam 
Community Development Block Grant- 
Disaster Recovery Website Policy on 
pages 22-30 in the GHURA Board of 
Commissioners (BoC) August 26, 2025 
meeting packet, which was also found on 
the GHURA website, www.ghura.org.  

 

Chairman Rivera asked whether the issue of 
cyber security is included in the website 
policy. Deputy Director Esteves indicated 
that nothing was required in terms of cyber 
security. He added that the website will not 
have portal access. A separate software will 
be maintained on the server for any 
sensitive information. He indicated that the 
website is hosted and believed that the 
servers are protected.  

 

Deputy Director Esteves stated that the 
resolution still had formatting editing that 
needed to be done. Chairman Rivera agreed 
and indicated that the integrity of the 
content is present in the document, but the 
structure  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[520/25] 

Commissioner Torres 

moved to approve  

Resolution No FY2025-

028; Resolution 

Approving the Guam 

Community 

Development Block 

Grant- Disaster 

Recovery Website 

Policy. Vice Chairman 

Sanchez seconded the 

motion. There were no 

objections. Motion 

passed unanimously.  

http://www.ghura.org/


 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of August 26, 2025                                                    Page 8 of 14 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

5. Resolution No. 
FY2025-029; 
Resolution 
Approving the 
Guam Community 
Development Block 
Grant-Disaster 
Recovery 
Duplication of 
Benefits Policy 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[521/25] Executive Director Napoli read 
the Resolution No. FY2025-029; 
Resolution Approving the Guam 
Community Development Block Grant-
Disaster Recovery Duplication of Benefits 
Policy on pages 31-43 in the GHURA 
Board of Commissioners (BoC) August 26, 
2025 meeting packet, which was also 
found on the GHURA website, 
www.ghura.org. 

 

Chairman Rivera asked if there had been 
issues with the duplication of benefits in the 
past. Deputy Director Esteves indicated that 
GHURA has not. However, this policy is a 
requirement especially when it comes to 
disaster recovery. The various benefits may 
be in the areas of SBA loans, various 
insurances, or FEMA. The program will have 
a worksheet to assist in determining or 
calculating and it is important that it is 
monitored.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[522/25] 

Commissioner Rice 

moved to approve 

Resolution No. 

FY2025-029; 

Resolution Approving 

the Guam Community 

Development Block 

Grant-Disaster 

Recovery Duplication 

of Benefits Policy. 

Commissioner Torres 

seconded the motion. 

There were no 

objections. Motion 

passed unanimously.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.ghura.org/


 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of August 26, 2025                                                    Page 9 of 14 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

6. Resolution No. 
FY2025-030; 
Resolution 
approving the Guam 
Community 
Development Block 
Grant-Disaster 
Recovery Policy 
Ensuring Timely 
Expenditure 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[523/25] Executive Director Napoli read 

the Resolution No. FY2025-030; 

Resolution approving the Guam 

Community Development Block Grant-

Disaster Recovery Policy Ensuring Timely 

Expenditures on pages 44-51 in the 

GHURA Board of Commissioners (BoC) 

August 26, 2025 meeting packet, which 

was also found on the GHURA website, 

www.ghura.org. 

Deputy Director Esteves stated the 

following: 

• Section 6-Board passed CDBG-DR 

Procurement policies, allowing this 

particular grant the ability to adopt 

the federal procurement standards. 

This was one way to ensure 

compliance. 

• Reprogramming of funds- 

transparent with awardees and 

subrecipients. HUD to monitor 

progress.  

• Goal is timely expenditure of funds 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[524/25] 

Commissioner Torres 

moved to approve 

FY2025-030; 

Resolution approving 

the Guam Community 

Development Block 

Grant-Disaster 

Recovery Policy 

Ensuring Timely 

Expenditure. 

Commissioner Rice 

seconded the motion. 

There were no 

objections. Motion 

passed unanimously.  

http://www.ghura.org/


 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of August 26, 2025                                                    Page 10 of 14 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

7. Resolution No. 
FY2025-031; 
Resolution 
approving the Guam 
Community 
Development Block 
Grant-Disaster 
Recovery Program 
Income 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[525/25] Executive Director Napoli read 
the Resolution No. FY2025-031; 
Resolution approving the Guam 
Community Development Block Grant-
Disaster Recovery Program Income on 
pages 52-60 in the GHURA Board of 
Commissioners (BoC) August 26, 2025 
meeting packet, which was also found on 
the GHURA website, www.ghura.org. 

 

Deputy Director Fernandez stated the 
following: 

• General rule is if a loan program is 
given out for construction, the 
proceeds from the loan or interest 
earned is considered program 
income.  

• It is subject to the same rules as the 
regular funds 

• This ensures that the requirement is 
to spend program income before 
drawing down additional funds. 

• Exceptions is a revolving loan 
program 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[526/25] 

Commissioner Rice 

moved to approve 

Resolution No. 

FY2025-031; 

Resolution approving 

the Guam Community 

Development Block 

Grant-Disaster 

Recovery Program 

Income. Commissioner 

Delia seconded the 

motion. There were no 

objections. Motion 

passed unanimously.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.ghura.org/


 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of August 26, 2025                                                    Page 11 of 14 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

8. Resolution No. 
FY2025-032; 
Resolution 
approving the Guam 
Community 
Development Block 
Grant-Disaster 
Recovery Conflict of 
Interest Policy 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[527/25] Executive Director Napoli read 
the Resolution No. FY2025-032; 
Resolution approving the Guam 
Community Development Block Grant-
Disaster Recovery Conflict of Interest 
Policy on pages 61-70 in the GHURA 
Board of Commissioners (BoC) August 26, 
2025 meeting packet, which was also 
found on the GHURA website, 
www.ghura.org. 

 

Deputy Director Esteves stated the 
following: 

• Potentially high risk 
• Policy will not be approved by HUD if 

specific things were not included in 
the policy 

• Covered Individual- any person who 
is an employee, agent, consultant, 
contractor, officer, or an appointed or 
elected official of the government of 
Guam, or a subrecipient who: 

o (a) exercises, has exercised, is 
reasonably expected to 
exercise any function or 
responsibility with respect to 
assisted activities. 

o (b) is in a position to 
participate in the decision-
making process 

o (c) is in a position to gain 
insider information with 
regard to such activities. 

o Immediate family- whether by 
blood, marriage, or adoption; 
Spouse, Common-law, Parent, 
Parent in-law, child, step-child, 
siblings, sibling in-law, step 
sibling, grandparent, 
grandchild of a covered 
individual 

• Covered individuals also include: 
Governor, Lt. Governor, delegates of 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.ghura.org/


 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of August 26, 2025                                                    Page 12 of 14 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

the House of Representatives, 
Attorney General, Members of the 
Legislature, Board of Commissioners, 
Executive Director, Deputy Director, 
all program staff, agents and 
consultants working on CDBG-DR and 
its subrecipients 

• HUD will grant the exception 
provided the conflict is disclosed and 
required documents are submitted.  

• General prohibition is that GHURA 
does not have the authority to waive 
a conflict.  

• Exception criteria- whether the 
exception will result in a substantial 
cost savings or provide critical 
expertise that is not otherwise 
available 

• Identify a conflict early on to avoid a 
perceived conflict which may prevent 
the exception.  

• Publications and notices will be 
distributed to inform people that they 
are covered individuals and what the 
process is for them or their family 
members.  

Chairman Rivera stated that if individuals 
are unsure about whether or not they are a 
covered individual, it is best that they reach 
out to GHURA for more information. He 
added that GHURA is a steward of the 
process and does not have the authority to 
grant waivers or exception. GHURA and HUD 
work hand in hand in this process, but HUD 
has the ultimate say in what is approved and 
what is not.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[528/25] Vice 

Chairman Sanchez 

moved to approve 

Resolution No. 

FY2025-032; 

Resolution approving 

the Guam Community 

Development Block 

Grant-Disaster 

Recovery Conflict of 

Interest Policy. 

Commissioner Rice 

seconded the motion. 

There were no 

objections. Motion 

passed unanimously.  



 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of August 26, 2025                                                    Page 13 of 14 
 

 

VI. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

AGENDA ITAM 
 

DISCUSSION ACTION 

1. Project Updates [529/25] Executive Director Napoli stated 
the following: 

• FY2024 Audit has been completed. 
• Ernst and Young to present to the 

board is scheduled for a future 
meeting 

• Copies of the Audit report have been 
requested for board review 

• Labor Day Picnic invitation to the 
board 

• Project updates scheduled for next 
board meeting 

 

 

 

 

 

 

No action taken 
 

 

VII. GENERAL DISCUSSION/ANNOUNCEMENTS/ADJOURNMENT: 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

 

1. HR Item 

 

 

 

 

 

2. Deputy Director 
Announcements 

 

 

 

  

[530/25] Dr. Kimberly Bersamin, HR 
Administrator stated the following: 

• 83% completed 
• 5 of the 6 commissioners  
• Anticipates reporting the results at the 

next board meeting 

 

• HUD technical training for CDBG-DR 
staff completed 

• CDBG-DR Satellite office just about 
complete 

• 80% CDBG-DR staff fulfilled 

 

 

No action taken 

 

 

 

 No action taken 

 

 



 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of August 26, 2025                                                    Page 14 of 14 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

 

3. Next proposed 
scheduled Board 
Meeting: 
Tuesdays, 
September 16, 
2025 

 

 

 

 

 

[531/25] Chairman Rivera requested that 
the board mark their calendars.  

 

[532/25] 

Commissioner Rice 

moved to adjourn. 

Commissioner Torres 

seconded the motion. 

Meeting was 

adjourned at 1:33PM 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
SEAL 
 
             ______________________________ 
       Elizabeth F. Napoli 
       Board Secretary/Executive Director 
   
       Date __________________________ 

    



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  

RESOLUTION NO. FY2025-024(A-1) 

 

Moved by:    Seconded by:    

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE “2025 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT-
DISASTER RECOVERY CITIZEN PARTICIPATION PLAN (CDBG-DR CPP)” 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to 12 GCA Section 5104, the Board of Commissioners of the 

Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority (GHURA), is given the right 
and responsibility to govern and control the operations of the Authority, and 
to establish policies for its day-to-day operations, and generally to 
undertake its responsibilities as supreme authority for the Agency; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to 12 GCA Section 5105(b), requires that GHURA comply with any 

Federal rules, requirements, regulations, or procedures and may execute 
declarations or other agreements or documents of every nature,  

                       as may be necessary, or required by the Federal Government and to fully 
comply with any conditions imposed by the Federal Government upon 
participation by GHURA in such programs; and 

 
WHEREAS, on January 21, 2025, Guam was allocated the Community Development 

Block Grant-Disaster Recovery (CDBG-DR) in the amount of 
$500,825,000.00, to aid in the long-term recovery from Typhoon Mawar  

                       in May 2023, and the mitigation of future disasters to be administered by 
GHURA; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to I.C.2. of the Universal Notice (90 FR 4759), GHURA is 

required to follow a detailed Citizen Participation Plan that satisfies 
requirements of 24 CFR 91.115 or 91.05 (except as provided for in 

notices providing waivers and alternative requirements); now, 
therefore, be it, 

 
RESOLVED, that the Board approves the amended “Community Development Block-Grant 

Disaster Recovery Citizen Participation Plan (CDBG-DR CPP)” appended 
herewith, and shall be effective immediately; and, be it further, 

 
RESOLVED, that the Executive Director may approve amendments to this policy on behalf 

of the Board of Commissioners as may be necessary, or required, and shall 
report amendments to the Board of Commissioners when exercising this 
authority; and be it further, 

 
RESOLVED, that the Deputy Director, designated as the Grant Manager, shall promulgate 

and have published subsequent procedures derived from this policy. 
 
 

 
 

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 1 of 288



IN REGULAR BOARD MEETING, SINAJANA, GUAM -SEPTEMBER 16, 2025 
PASSED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTES: 
AYES:   
NAYS:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAINED:  
 
 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, 
and correct copy of a Resolution duly adopted 
by the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal  
Authority Board of Commissioners on 
September 16, 2025. 
 

                              (SEAL) 
       _______________________________________ 
       Elizabeth F. Napoli 
       Board Secretary / Executive Director 

                  
 

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 2 of 288



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

GHURA Main Office  

117 96910, Bienvenida Ave, Sinajana, Guam 
  

 

 
(671) 477-9851 

 
 

 

 
fixinsix@guamdr.org 

  

 

 
guamcdbgdr.org 

  

  

  

  

 

Federal Register /Vol. 90, No. 5 /Wednesday, January 8, 2025 /Notices 

 

I.C.2. Citizen participation requirements. To permit a more streamlined process 

and ensure disaster recovery grants are awarded in a timely manner, provisions 

of 42 U.S.C. 5304(a)(2) and (3), 42 U.S.C. 12707, 24 CFR 570.486, 24 CFR 

1003.604, 24 CFR 91.105(b) through (d), and 24 CFR 91.115(b) through (d), with 

respect to citizen participation requirements, are waived and replaced by the 

alternative requirements in this section. Under the streamlined requirements, 

the grantee may be required to hold a public hearing(s) on the proposed Action 

Plan and must provide a reasonable opportunity (i.e., at least 30 calendar days) 

for public comment.  

 

The grantee must follow a detailed citizen participation plan that satisfies the 

requirements of 24 CFR 91.115 or 91.105 (except as provided for in notices 

providing waivers and alternative requirements). Each local government 

receiving assistance from a State grantee must follow its citizen participation 

requirements at 24 CFR 570.486 (except as provided for in notices providing 

waivers and alternative requirements). The grantee’s records must demonstrate 

that it has notified affected residents through electronic mailings, press releases, 

statements by public officials, media advertisements, social media, public service 

announcements, and/or contacts with neighborhood organizations. In addition 

to the requirements above, the streamlined citizen participation alternative 

requirements for CDBG–DR grants are as follows: Requirement for consultation 

during plan preparation (see section I.C.2.a.); Publication of the Action Plan and 

opportunity for public comment (see section I.C.2.b.); Consideration of public 

comments (see section I.C.2.c.). I.C.2.a. Consultation during Action Plan 

preparation. All grantees must consult with States, Indian Tribes, local 

governments, Federal partners, nongovernmental organizations, the private 

sector, and other stakeholders and affected parties in the surrounding 

geographic area during Action Plan preparation to ensure consistency of the 

Action Plan with applicable regional development plans. This requirement also 

includes consulting with organizations that advocate on behalf of members of 

protected classes, vulnerable populations, and other sections of the community 

impacted by the disaster to help address requirements defined in section I.C.1.c. 

for the fair housing and civil rights data collection. [Refer to FR Docket No. FR-

6489-N-01  for full details.] 

Guam Housing & Urban Renewal Authority  

CDBG-DR  

Citizen Participation Plan  

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 3 of 288



 

 

Table of Contents 
A. Citizen Participation Plan ……………………………………………………………………………………………………….……….. 3 

 Applicability ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….….. 4 

 Consultation  …………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..…….. 4 

 Action Plan ………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 4 

 Action Plan Amendments …………………………………..……………………………………………………………………………. 5 

Substantial Amendments …………………..……………………………………………………………………………………. 5 

Non-Substantial Amendment …………….……………………………………………………………………………………. 5 

Quarterly Performance Reports ………………………………………………………………………………………………. 5 

Environmental Reviews ………………………………..………………….…………………..…………………………………. 5 

       Technical Assistance ………………………………………..………………………….………………..………………………………. 6 

        Access to Information ……………………………………………………………….………………………………………………….. 6 

B. Publication and Public Notice …………………………………………………………………………….……………………………. 6 

        Table A. Limited English Proficiency (LEP) Procedures ………….………………………………………………………. 7 

C. Consideration of Public Comments .……………………………………………………………….………………………………… 9 

D. Complaint Process ……………………………………………………………..……………………………,……………………………… 9 

G. Public Website ………………………………………………………………..………….…………………..…………………………….. 10 

H. Waivers ………………………………………………………………………..……………………………………………………………….. 10 

Table C. Citizen Participation Plan, Amendment Register  ………..…………….………………..……………………….. 10 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 4 of 288



U.S. Territory of Guam’s  

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK DEVELOPMENT GRANT DISASTER RECOVERY (CDBG-DR) 

Citizen Participation Plan  

 

A. Citizen Participation Plan 

Introduction: The Guam Housing Urban Renewal Authority (GHURA) is committed to providing 

opportunities for its citizens to participate in the planning, implementation, and assessment of its 

Community Development Block Grant-Disaster Recovery (CDBG-DR) Program. GHURA will provide 

adequate information and give citizens the opportunity to provide comments. A plan developed with input 

will be comprehensive, address critical needs, and be effectively implemented.  

Increased Transparency and Trust: Open communication fosters trust between the government and the 

community, leading to greater buy-in and cooperation during the recovery process.  

Accountability: When all stakeholders are involved in the planning process, there is a shared sense of 

ownership and accountability for the plan's success. The exchange of information among the community, 

GHURA staff, and elected officials will allow for a stronger and more tailored CDBG-DR Action Plan and 

CDBG-DR programs for Guam.  

 

The Citizen Participation Plan outlined here is distinctly separate from Citizen Participation Plans used within 

GHURA for programs such as the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program, HOME Partnerships 

(HOME) Program, and the Homeless Emergency Solutions Grant (HESG). The requirements of the CDBG-DR 

Program are further outlined within the Federal Register. 

 

According to the Federal Register /Vol. 90, No. 5/Wednesday, January 8, 2025 Notice 

{Docket No. FR-6489-N-01} 

"I.C.2. Citizen participation requirements. To permit a more streamlined process and ensure disaster recovery 

grants are awarded in a timely manner, provisions of 42 U.S. C. 5304(a){2) and (3), 42 U.S. C. 12707, 24 CFR 

570.486, 24 CFR 1003.604, 24 CFR 91.105(b) through (d), and 24 CFR 91.115(b) through (d), with respect to 

citizen participation requirements, are waived and replaced by the alternative requirements in this section. 

Under the streamlined requirements, the grantee may be required to hold a public hearing(s) on the proposed 

Action Plan and must provide a reasonable opportunity (i.e., at least 30 calendar days) for public comment." 

Furthermore, Guam will consult with local governments, Federal partners, nongovernmental organizations, 

the private sector, and other stakeholders and affected parties in the surrounding geographic area during 

Action Plan preparation to ensure consistency of the Action Plan with applicable regional development plans. 

This requirement also includes consulting with organizations that advocate on behalf of members of 

protected classes, vulnerable populations, and other underserved communities impacted by the disaster to 

help address requirements defined in section I.C.1.c. for the fair housing and civil rights data collection. 

 

 

 

 

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 5 of 288



Purpose 

The goal of this Citizen Participation Plan is to increase public involvement regarding the recovery efforts 

associated with the CDBG-DR Program, which highlight the following aspects: 

1. A change in program benefit or eligibility criteria (including the expansion of eligible beneficiaries (e.g., 

establishing a new grantee-identified MID area); 

2. The addition or deletion of an eligible activity; 

3. A proposed reduction in the overall benefit requirement (as described in section III.B.l.); 

4. The allocation or reallocation of a reasonable monetary threshold specified by the grantee in its Action 

Plan; and 

5. An update to the submitted initial Action Plan if the original submission was incomplete as allowed under 

Section  

 

Applicability 

This Citizen Participation Plan details rules and procedures for public participation relating to any activity 

eligible for funding under the CDBG-DR Program. The goal of this plan is to give all citizens the opportunity to 

participate in the distribution of CDBG-DR funds. It encourages citizen participation in the development of an 

Action Plan, substantial amendments to the Action Plan, and quarterly performance reports regarding the 

CDBG-DR Program. This plan conforms to the requirements of FR-6489-N-01 and any special provision 

established by regulation in regards to CDBG-DR grants. 

 

Consultation 

While developing the Action Plan, GHURA consulted with local governments, Federal partners, 

nongovernmental organizations, the private sector, and other stakeholders in Guam, including organizations 

that advocate on behalf of members of protected classes, vulnerable populations, and other sections of the  

community impacted by the disaster, to ensure consistency of the Action Plan with applicable regional 

redevelopment plans. 

 

GHURA also consulted with other relevant government agencies, including local emergency management 

agencies as applicable. In the development of the Action Plan, GHURA conducted five (5) townhall/public 

briefings which were held at various locations throughout the island. In this effort, GHURA requested the 

communities’ input to Guam’s Unmet Needs which can be located on the CDBG-DR website in the resources 

tab. 

 

GHURA maintains direct and established open lines of communication with major stakeholders, government 

and non-government, nonprofits, and the community at large. At this time GHURA does not elect an 

advisory board, however GHURA will maintain its public engagement and will continue to meet with 

interested stakeholders and allow continued input of unmet needs throughout the duration of the CDBG-DR 

program. 

 

 

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 6 of 288



Action Plan 

The Territory of Guam’s CDBG-DR Action Plan details the overall direction that GHURA intends to pursue in 

response to the remaining unmet need post-Typhoon Mawar within the island. This plan gives the public a 

clear understanding of how the CDBG-DR funding is to be allocated. The Action Plan will be available to the 

public via the Guam CDBG-DR website at www.guamcdbgdr.org. All responses to this Action Plan will be 

addressed via the following methods which include but are not limited to: writing, email, in-person, or in the 

CDBG-DR Website at www.guamcdbgdr.org/resources. 

 

The most current and approved Action Plan along with future substantial amendments will be posted on the 

Guam CDBG-DR website. This version will allow the public to see the most recent version and avoid having to 

back-track through older versions. 

 

Action Plan Amendments 

Substantial Amendments 

A substantial amendment is an amendment to the Action Plan to meet any of the following criteria:  

• A change in program benefit or eligibility criteria,  

• The addition or deletion of an activity, or  

• Increase, decrease, or reallocation of funds amongst approved activities, where the 

change constitutes $10,000,000 or more.  

 

When GHURA proposes a substantial amendment, the substantial amendment will be posted on the 

CDBG-DR Website and other public spaces for a 30-day public comment period. GHURA will consider 

and respond to all public comments received. When considering public comments GHURA may make 

changes to the proposed substantial amendment requiring a new 30-day public comment period. If 

no changes to the substantial amendment are necessary following the 30-day public comment 

period, GHURA will submit to HUD for final approval before changes are in effect. GHURA anticipates 

proposing a substantial amendment to its initial Action Plan to include the first round of programs 

and activities currently in development. 

 

Non-Substantial Amendments 

A non-substantial amendment is an amendment to the Action Plan that includes technical 

corrections, clarifications, and budget changes that do not meet the threshold for substantial 

amendment. The threshold is set at $10,000,000 and under and will not otherwise require posting 

for public comment. GHURA will notify HUD five (5) business days before the change goes into 

effect.  

 

Quarterly Performance Reports 

GHURA will submit reports through the Disaster Recovery Grant Reporting (DRGR) system. These 

reports will allow HUD to track GHURA’s progress, ensure compliance, and monitor the use of CDBG-

DR funds throughout the lifecycle of the grant. Quarterly Performance Reports (QPRs) will be 

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 7 of 288

http://www.guamcdbgdr.org/resources


submitted to HUD no later than 30 calendar days after the end of each calendar quarter until all 

grant funds are expended and all expenditures are accounted for. These reports will provide an 

update on project activities, expenditures, and performance metrics, including data on direct benefit 

activities. After HUD approves the QPR, any personally identifiable information will be removed, and 

a public version of the report will be posted to www.guamcdbgdr.org.  

 

Environmental Reviews  

GHURA is the Responsible Entity for Guam’s allocation of CDBG-DR funds and takes on the authority 

for the decision making and completion of the environmental review per 24 CFR 58.4. 

 

 

Technical Assistance   

Prior to the program specific open application period, GHURA will offer technical assistance specific to the 

eligible program activities and the application process. GHURA will work with organizations and individual 

representatives of very low-, low- and moderate-income people including the elderly, persons with 

disabilities, and persons with limited English proficiency who are interested in submitting a proposal or 

completing program applications to obtain funding assistance under the CDBG-DR Program specific eligible 

actives. GHURA will make available to potential applicants, upon request, copies of regulations related to 

eligible activities included in the CDBG-DR Action Plan. GHURA staff will also provide guidance in the 

interpretation of the federal regulations, the strategies, and objectives of the CDBG-DR Action Plan, and will 

provide referrals to other agencies, including HUD, when necessary. 

 

Access to Information 

All CDBG-DR Program related information such as action plans, action plan amendments, policies, 

procedures, quarterly performance reports, citizen participation requirements, program information, 

procurement listings, and contracts will be available via the Guam CDBG-DR website at 

www.guamcdbgdr.org. For those who do not have access to internet service, GHURA will provide hard 

copies of program information upon request. GHURA will provide technical assistance to those who need to 

access the information through multiple avenues. Notifying the public about the CDBG-DR Program is crucial 

because the success of these funds relies heavily on public participation and accurately assessing the 

remaining unmet needs.  

 

To ensure widespread awareness, GHURA will utilize the following methods to advertise and inform the 

public about the CDBG-DR Program which include but are not limited to:  

• Local Newspaper Notices: Publishing announcements in Guam's local newspapers to reach a broad 

readership. 

• Radio Announcements: Broadcasting information through local radio stations to capture listeners 

across the island. 

• Social Media Outlets: Using platforms like Facebook, Instagram, and others to reach a and digitally 

connected audience.  

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 8 of 288



• The Guam CDBG-DR Website: Providing comprehensive program details, updates, and resources 

on a dedicated website. 

• Other Applicable Forms of Communication: Employing additional outreach methods as needed to 

maximize public notification and engagement. 

 

B. Publication and Public Notice  

 

All public notices will be published in a local newspaper of general circulation, providing notice for the 

required 30-day public comment period. Additionally, this Citizen Participation Plan and all future 

information will be included on the Guam CDBG-DR Website at www.guamcdbgdr.org/resources. 

 

GHURA will make reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities and non-English speaking 

residents upon request and in accordance with the Citizen Participation Plan. The aforementioned 

information was included in the Public Notice for the 30-day comment period.  

 

The Guam Housing Urban Renewal Authority will take reasonable steps to ensure very low-, low-, and 

moderate-income persons, including persons with disabilities, the elderly, and persons with Limited English 

Proficiency (LEP) have meaningful access and an equal opportunity to participate in our CDBG-DR services, 

activities, programs, and other benefits. The policy provides for communication of information contained in 

vital documents related but not limited to Guam's CDBG-DR program, i.e., action plans, amendments to the 

action plan, citizen participation plans, etc. All interpreters, translators and other aids needed to comply with 

this policy shall be provided without cost to the person being served, and clients and their families will be 

informed of the availability of such assistance free of charge. GHURA will incorporate solutions for 

accessibility for all public engagement efforts to address barriers for individuals with disabilities, non-English 

speakers, and other vulnerable populations. GHURA will hold public hearings in places convenient to the 

general population, with special attention paid to locations serviced frequently by public transit. For all 

Public Notices, a portable Phonic Ear system for the deaf will be available with 72 hours’ notice. Sign 

language interpretation will be available if requested at least 5 days in advance. Staff will assist persons with 

visual impairment by reading material to them on request. Accommodations for populations with Limited 

English Proficiency (LEP) include on-site translation services for public hearings and public notices or postings 

of the Citizen Participation Plan, draft Action Plan, substantial amendments, and all other CDBG-DR required 

documentation in alternate languages. 

 

The Guam CDBG-DR website will now be compatible with assistive screen reader technology. GHURA will 

inform the public through media, paid advertisements, our website, LEP notices, posters, literature, and 

outreach. 

 

 

 

Table A. Limited English Proficiency (LEP) Procedures: 

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 9 of 288

http://www.guamcdbgdr.org/resources


1. Identifying LEP 

Persons and Their 

Language 

GHURA will promptly identify the language and communication needs of the 

LEP person. If necessary, staff will use a language identification card (or "I speak 

cards," available online at www.lep.gov) or posters to determine the language. 

 

2. Obtaining a 

Qualified Interpreter 

 

To ensure effective language access, GHURA's CDBG-DR admin staff will 

maintain a current directory of bilingual employees, detailing their name, 

language proficiency, contact information, and working hours; facilitate 

interpretation by connecting with appropriate and qualified bilingual staff 

members when their language skills are required; secure external 

interpretation services if suitable bilingual staff are unavailable or do not speak 

the necessary language. GHRUA understands that LEP individuals may wish to 

use a family member or friend as an interpreter. This is permissible only if the 

individual makes a specific request after being informed of, and understanding, 

their right to a free interpreter provided by our facility. This offer and their 

decision will be documented. When an LEP person opts for a family member or 

friend, we will evaluate the interpreter's competency, ability to ensure 

confidentiality and privacy, and potential for conflicts of interest. Should the 

family member or friend prove unsuitable for any of these reasons, professional 

interpreting services will be arranged for the LEP person. Children and other 

clients/residents will not be used to interpret, to ensure confidentiality of 

information and accurate communication.  

3. Providing Written 

Translations 

 

When vital documents require translation, each unit within the GHURA CDBG-

DR Program will submit approved documents with accurate legal information to 

a pre-determined entity such as: a. An Established Private Translation Company, 

b. the Judicial Court, c. University of Guam, or d. An Established Community 

based Non-profit offering such services for translation into frequently-

encountered languages. Additionally, facilities will provide translation of other 

written materials as needed, along with written notice of their free availability 

to Limited English Proficiency (LEP) individuals. Over time, GHURA will establish 

benchmarks for translating vital documents into more languages.  

 

4. Providing Notice 

to LEP Persons 

To guarantee LEP individuals are aware of the free language assistance available 

to them, GHURA will provide written notices that they can easily understand. 

These notices will be prominently displayed as signs and announcements in all 

intake areas and points of entry across GHURA’s CDBG-DR Office. GHURA will 

also post them on bulletin boards at government agencies and local businesses. 

Furthermore, GHURA will spread the word through various channels like 

outreach materials, local newspapers, radio, and television broadcasts, and 

partnerships with community-based organizations. 

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 10 of 288



5. Monitoring 

language Needs and 

Implementation 

On an ongoing basis, GHURA will assess changes in demographics, types of 

services or other needs that may require reevaluation of this policy and its 

procedures. In addition, GHURA will regularly assess the efficacy of these 

procedures, including but not limited to mechanisms for securing interpreter 

services, equipment used for the delivery of language assistance, complaints 

filed by LEP persons, feedback from clients and community organizations, etc. 

GHURA will conduct a regular review of the language access needs of the LEP 

population, as well as update and monitor the implementation of this policy 

and these procedures, as necessary. 

 

 

C. Consideration of Public Comments 

 

GHURA will publish the Action Plan at www.guamcdbgdr.org for public comments on May 1, 2025 – June 2, 

2025. The community will be notified through our website, press releases, the Government of Guam Public 

Notices Portal, and by print, radio, television, and social media. Comments will be collected by e-mail to 

fixinsix@guamdr.org, public hearings, through our website at www.guamcdbgdr.org, and may delivered to 

117 Bien Venida Ave Sinajana, GU 96910. Prior to drafting the Action Plan, GHURA solicited public input by 

hosting six (6) townhalls at times conducive for public participation. Comments received prior to drafting the 

Action Plan may be found in Appendix C of the Action Plan and on the Resources tab on the CDBG-DR 

website www.guamcdbgdr.org. 

Comments received during the public comment period (May 1 – June 2) will be categorized and a summary 

response provided. These comments will be placed in Appendix A of the Action Plan. 

 

GHURA will continue to consider all written comments regarding the Action Plan and all subsequent 

substantial amendments, such comments will be recorded and made available at the Resources tab on the 

CDBG-DR website www.guamcdbgdr.org. 

 

D. Complaint Process  

 

Table B.  

Complaints alleging violation of fair 

housing laws will be directed to HUD for 

immediate review. 

Phone: 1-800-347-3739 (Region IX) or 1-800-669-9777 

(National) E-Mail: complaintsoffice09@hud.gov (Region IX) 

Online: https://www.hud.gov/contactus/file-complaint 

Complaints regarding fraud, waste, or 

abuse of funds will be forwarded to the 

HUD OIG Fraud Hotline 

Phone: 1-800-347-3735 E-Mail: hotline@hudoig.gov 

 

 

A written appeal may be filed when an individual is dissatisfied with program policies, eligibility, level of 

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 11 of 288

http://www.guamcdbgdr.org/
http://www.guamcdbgdr.org/


service, or other issues. In programs that serve individual applicants, applicants may appeal their award 

determinations or denials that are contingent on program policies. However, it should be noted that  GHURA 

does not have the authority to grant an appeal of a statutory, regulatory, or HUD-specified CDBG-DR 

requirement. GHURA shall provide a written response to every complaint relating to CDBG-DR within fifteen 

(15) working days of receipt. If additional time is needed, GHURA will document the reason for needing 

additional time, not to exceed ten (10) working days. GHURA will execute its Appeals Process in response to 

appeals received. The appeal shall include a statement of facts and circumstances regarding the situation as 

well as any supporting documentation that substantiates the claim. Materials related to the appeal may be 

submitted to GHURA via email at fixinsix@guamdr.org. The appropriate program supervisor will review the 

submitted materials and provide the appellant with a written response, which may be by email. If program 

supervisor denies the appeal, the final step in the appeals process is to appeal to the CDBG-DR Grants 

Manager who will make a final determination within thirty (30) working days 

 

G. Public Website  

 

Guam’s Community Development Block Grant Disaster Recovery (CDBG-DR) will have a stand-alone website 

(www.guamcdbgdr.org). All relevant data will be posted on the Guam CDBG-DR website.  

 

H. Waivers  

 

GHURA will seek any waiver needed and/or that may be available or issued by HUD.  

 

 

Table C. Citizen Participation Plan, Amendment Register  

Ref No.  Date  Amendment Ref.  Effective Date  Approval Date 

1 7/8/2025 Resolution FY2025-024(A) 7/8/2025 7/8/2025 

2 9/16/2025 Resolution FY2025-02(A) 9/16/2025 9/16/2025 

     

     

     

     

 

 
 

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 12 of 288

http://www.guamcdbgdr.org/


GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
RESOLUTION NO. FY2025-033 

 
 
Moved by:   Seconded by:   ____________________________ 
 

 
RESOLUTION COMMENDING MS. ANA C. SAHAGON, INTERVIEWER CLERK, FOR HER 
DEDICATION AND CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL 
AUTHORITY (GHURA) 
 
 
WHEREAS, Ms. Ana C. Sahagon dedicated a total of 19 years and 12 days in the Government of 

Guam; and 
 
WHEREAS, Before joining GHURA, Ms. Sahagon began her public service career at the Department 

of Public Health and Social Services (DPHSS), serving as a Claims Specialist I and II 
from 1992 to 1999; and 

 
WHEREAS, from 2007 to 2012, she continued her service at DPHSS as a Clerk III and later as an 

Eligibility Specialist II; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ms. Sahagon returned to DPHSS from 2013 to 2014, serving as an Eligibility Specialist I; 

and 
 
WHEREAS, she further contributed to public service by participating in the Senior Community Service 

Employment Program (SCSEP) under the Department of Labor (DOL) from 2018 to 2019, 
serving as a Clerical Trainee; and 

 
WHEREAS, on September 19, 2019, Ms. Sahagon joined the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal 

Authority (GHURA) as a Clerk I (temporary position) in the Public Housing-AMP1 
Division; and 

 
WHEREAS, she was subsequently promoted to Clerk III on April 1, 2021, and later to Interviewer 

Clerk on April 1, 2023; and 
 
WHEREAS, during her tenure at GHURA, Ms. Sahagon rendered 5 years and 11 months of 

committed service, contributing meaningfully to the mission and goals of the Authority; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, her dedication and contributions to the Public Housing-AMP1 Division positively impacted 

the operations of the Authority and the broader Guam community; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners extend its recognition and gratitude to Ms. Ana C. Sahagon, 

commending her on her retirement from the Authority, and best wishes on her future 
endeavors; now, therefore be it 

 
RESOLVED, that the Chairman of the Board of Commissioners shall certify, and the Executive Director 

attest the adoption hereof BOC Resolution No. FY2025-033, and that thereafter shall be 
presented to Ms. Ana C. Sahagon, whereby a copy shall be placed in her official 
personnel file, and a copy provided to the Governor of Guam. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 13 of 288



IN REGULAR BOARD MEETING, SINAJANA, GUAM – SEPTEMBER 16, 2025 
PASSED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTES: 
AYES:     
NAYS:        
ABSENT:        
ABSTAINED:         
 

 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct 
copy of a Resolution duly adopted by the Guam Housing and 
Urban Renewal Authority Board of Commissioners on   
September 16, 2025. 
 

         (SEAL) 
________________________________ 
ELIZABETH F. NAPOLI 

               Board Secretary / Executive Director  

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 14 of 288



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
RESOLUTION NO. FY2025-034 

 
 
Moved By:      Seconded By:      

 
RESOLUTION APPROVING THE DETAIL APPOINTMENT EXTENSION FOR AN ADDITIONAL 90 
DAYS FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2025 for KATHLEEN JEAN P. TAITINGFONG (CDBG-DR 
PROGRAM) 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 5104, Title 12 of the Guam Code Annotated, the Board of 

Commissioners of the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority (GHURA) is given 
the right and responsibility to govern and control the operations of the Authority, and 
to establish policies for its day-to-day operations, and generally to undertake its 
responsibilities as supreme authority for the Agency; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of GHURA is empowered to establish a position 

classification and pay plan for each class of position necessary to carry out the 
responsibilities of the Authority, and is subject to the Position Classification and Salary 
Administration Plan of the Authority; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners recognizes the need for continuity in the Community 

Development Block-Grant Disaster Recovery (CDBG-DR) Program and needed the 
detail assignment to cover the Administrative Assistant duties; and 

 
WHEREAS, CDBG-DR management appointed Ms. Kathleen Jean P. Taitingfong, Data Control 

Clerk II to serve in the detail capacity of an Administrative Assistant from 06/16/2025-
09/14/2025 (initial 90 days); and 

 
WHEREAS, the staff identified above has met the job’s qualification of work experience required 

for the position; and 
 
WHEREAS,  in accordance with GHURA Personnel Rules and Regulations, Section 4.806(E), 

management now requests the Board of Commissioners to approve the detail 
appointment extension of Ms. Kathleen Jean P. Taitingfong from 09/15/2025 – 
12/13/2025 (90 days); and 

 
WHEREAS,  funding for this position is available under CDBG-DR funds; and now, therefore, be it 
 
RESOLVED, that the detail appointment extension for Kathleen Jean P. Taitingfong is hereby 

approved. 
 
 
IN A REGULAR BOARD MEETING, SINAJANA, GUAM – SEPTEMBER 16, 2025 
PASSED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTES: 
AYES:  
NAYS:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAINED:  
 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and 
correct copy of a Resolution duly adopted by the 
Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority Board of 
Commissioners on September 16, 2025. 
 

               (SEAL) 
                            ______________________________ 

ELIZABETH F. NAPOLI 
Board Secretary / Executive Director 

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 15 of 288



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
RESOLUTION NO. FY2025-035 

 
 
Moved By:      Seconded By:      

 
RESOLUTION APPROVING THE DETAIL APPOINTMENT EXTENSION FOR AN ADDITIONAL 90 
DAYS FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2025 for CARLO N. ONGKLUNGEL (CDBG-DR PROGRAM) 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 5104, Title 12 of the Guam Code Annotated, the Board of 

Commissioners of the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority (GHURA) is given 
the right and responsibility to govern and control the operations of the Authority, and 
to establish policies for its day-to-day operations, and generally to undertake its 
responsibilities as supreme authority for the Agency; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of GHURA is empowered to establish a position 

classification and pay plan for each class of position necessary to carry out the 
responsibilities of the Authority, and is subject to the Position Classification and Salary 
Administration Plan of the Authority; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners recognizes the need for continuity in the Community 

Development Block-Grant Disaster Recovery (CDBG-DR) Program and needed the 
detail assignment to cover the Personnel Specialist III duties; and 

 
WHEREAS, CDBG-DR management appointed Mr. Carlo N. Ongklungel, Personnel Specialist II to 

serve in the detail capacity of a Personnel Specialist III from 06/27/2025-09/25/2025 
(initial 90 days); and 

 
WHEREAS, the staff identified above has met the job’s qualification of work experience required 

for the position; and 
 
WHEREAS,  in accordance with GHURA Personnel Rules and Regulations, Section 4.806(E), 

management now requests the Board of Commissioners to approve the detail 
appointment extension of Mr. Carlo N. Ongklungel from 09/26/2025 – 12/25/2025 (90 
days); and 

 
WHEREAS,  funding for this position is available under CDBG-DR funds; and now, therefore, be it 
 
RESOLVED, that the detail appointment extension for Carlo N. Ongklungel is hereby 

approved. 
 
 
IN A REGULAR BOARD MEETING, SINAJANA, GUAM – SEPTEMBER 16, 2025 
PASSED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTES: 
AYES:  
NAYS:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAINED:  

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and 
correct copy of a Resolution duly adopted by the 
Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority Board of 
Commissioners on September 16, 2025. 

               (SEAL) 
 
                              ______________________________ 

ELIZABETH F. NAPOLI 
Board Secretary / Executive Director 

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 16 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 17 of 288



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY  

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 RESOLUTION NO.    FY2025-036 
 
 

Moved by:      Seconded by: 

 

 

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ADOPT THE REVISED PUBLIC HOUSING 2025 ADMISSIONS 

AND CONTINUED OCCUPANCY POLICY (ACOP) THAT INCLUDES AN APPENDIX 

RELATING TO THE CHANGES MANDATED BY THE HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES 

THROUGH MODERNIZATION ACT (HOTMA) OF 2016  
 
 

WHEREAS,  24 CFR 960 requires all Public Housing Agencies with a Public Housing Program to adopt a 

written Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy (ACOP) that establishes local policies 
for the administration of the Public Housing Program in accordance with requirements 
prescribed by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD); and 

 

WHEREAS,  the passage of the Housing and Opportunity Through Modernization Act (HOTMA) of 2016 

(P.L. 114-201), included requirements that made significant changes to the United States 

Housing Act of 1937, and HUD promulgated mandates for PHAs to revise their Public Housing 

ACOP and implement new regulatory changes in accordance with Sections 102 and 104 of the 

law; and 

 

WHEREAS,  policy modifications to the Housing Act are relevant to asset and income calculations; 
deductions and expenses; applicable Fair Housing and Civil Rights requirements; household 
composition; income (types and sources); income exclusions; inflationary adjustments; interim 
adjustments; and verifications; and 

 

WHEREAS, the revisions to the ACOP consist of both mandatory and discretionary policies that are 
necessary to ensure access to fair and equal housing for all; and  

 
WHEREAS,  GHURA created an appendix (Exhibit 1) that contains the HOTMA policies that are “on hold” 

and have yet to be implemented; now, therefore, be it 
 

RESOLVED,  that the Board of Commissioners hereby approves and adopts the Public Housing 2025 

Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy (ACOP) for the Public Housing Program. 
 

 

IN REGULAR BOARD MEETING, SINAJANA, GUAM – SEPTEMBER 16, 2025 

PASSED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTES: 

AYES:  

NAYES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAINED:  
 
 
 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and 

correct copy of the Resolution duly adopted by the Guam 

Housing and Urban Renewal Authority Board of 

Commissioners on September 16, 2025. 

 

             (S E A L) 

        

ELIZABETH F. NAPOLI 

Board Secretary / Executive Director   
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 18 of 288



EXHIBIT I: APPENDIX 

HOTMA 102/104 Policies Not Yet Implemented 

Chapter 00: Introduction     No HOTMA 102/104 policies apply. 

Chapter 1: Overview of the Program and Plan  No HOTMA 102/104 policies apply. 

Chapter 2: Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity  No HOTMA 102/104 policies apply. 

Chapter 3: Eligibility 

Policy section 3-I.B. FAMILY AND HOUSEHOLD is amended to comply with section E.1 of 

Notice PIH 2023-27, Definition of Family 

Policy section 3-I.K. FOSTER CHILDREN AND FOSTER ADULTS is amended to comply 

with section E.2 of Notice PIH 2023-27, New Definitions of Foster Adult and Foster Child 

Policy section 3-II.D. FAMILY CONSENT TO RELEASE OF INFORMATION is amended to 

comply with section J.2 of Notice PIH 2023-27, Revocation of Consent 

Policy section 3-III.C. RESTRICTION ON ASSISTANCE BASED ON ASSETS is added to 

comply with section A.1 of Notice PIH 2023-27, Asset Limitation 

Chapter 4: Applications, Waiting List and Tenant Selection No HOTMA 102/104 policies apply. 

Chapter 5: Occupancy Standards and Unit Offers No HOTMA 102/104 policies apply. 

Chapter 6: Income and Rent Determinations 

Prior to the PHA’s HOTMA compliance date, the PHA will follow policies in Chapter 6.A. 

Upon the PHA’s HOTMA compliance date, the PHA will follow policies in Chapter 6.B. 

Chapter 7: Verification 

Prior to the PHA’s HOTMA compliance date, the PHA will follow policies in Chapter 7.A. 

Upon the PHA’s HOTMA compliance date, the PHA will follow policies in Chapter 7.B. 

Chapter 8: Leasing and Inspections   No HOTMA 102/104 policies apply.  

Chapter 9: Reexaminations 

Prior to the PHA’s HOTMA compliance date, the PHA will follow policies in Chapter 9.A. 

Upon the PHA’s HOTMA compliance date, the PHA will follow policies in Chapter 9.B. 

Chapter 10: Pets      No HOTMA 102/104 policies apply. 

Chapter 11: Community Service    No HOTMA 102/104 policies apply. 

Chapter 12: Transfer Policy     No HOTMA 102/104 policies apply. 

  

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 19 of 288



Chapter 13: Lease Terminations 

Policy section 13-II.B. FAILURE TO PROVIDE CONSENT is amended to comply with 

section J.2 of Notice PIH 2023-27, Revocation of Consent 

Policy section 13-III.C. OTHER AUTHORIZED REASONS FOR TERMINATION is 

amended to comply with section A.1 of Notice PIH 2023-27, Asset Limitation 

Chapter 14: Grievances and Appeals   No HOTMA 102/104 policies apply. 

Chapter 15: Program Integrity 

Policy section 15-II.C. PHA-CAUSED ERRORS OR PROGRAM ABUSE is amended to 

comply with 24 CFR 5.609(c)(4), De Minimis Errors 

Chapter 16: Program Administration   No HOTMA 102/104 policies apply. 

Glossary 

The following definitions are applicable upon the PHA’s implementation of HOTMA 

102/104: 

• Annual income (revised) 

• Day laborer 

• De minimis error 

• Earned income 

• Family (revised) 

• Foster adult 

• Foster child 

• Independent contractor 

• Inflationary index 

• Net family assets (revised) 

• Real property 

• Seasonal worker 

• Unearned income 

 

 

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 20 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 21 of 288



Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
FY 2026 Budget

Mission Statement

MISSION STATEMENT:

“Strengthening Families and Building Communities One Project at A Time”

GOALS AND OBJECTIVES:

GHURA’s overarching goal is:

Public Law 6-135, GHURA’s purpose is to “… promote the health, safety and welfare of Guam’s people by the elimination of 
slum and blight conditions, by the orderly redevelopment and renewal of communities, by proper planning of community 
development and by provision of safe, decent and sanitary dwellings for low to moderate-income families, through all available 
federal and local governmental programs and through encouragement of Guam’s private enterprises to participate in the 
common task of improving our island community, while upholding family values.”

Goal #1:  To provide adequate housing and community planning for those who reside in GHURA-managed housing and who 
participate in GHURA-supported rental and homeownership programs and activities across the island

Goal #2:  To enable island residents to fulfill goals of securing safe, decent, and sanitary housing for themselves and their 
families within well-developed island communities

Goal #3:  To create opportunities for our client’s successful participation in the workforce, and housing in the private/public 
sector

Goal #4:  To actively pursue community partnerships with NGOs, government, and private entities to allow for the 
implementation of programs beneficial to island residents and in particular, GHURA tenants

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 22 of 288



FY2026
ORGANIZATIONAL CHARTS

Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority

As of August 12, 2025

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 23 of 288



GHURA
Board of Commissioners

GHURA
Legal Counsel

Executive Director

Administration

Deputy Director

Human
Resources

Research, 
Planning & 
Evaluation

Architectural/
Engineering

Community 
Development

Fiscal

Audit &
Compliance

Public Housing
AMP1

GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY

FY2026
ORGANIZATIONAL CHART - Overall

Public Housing
AMP2

Public Housing
AMP3

Public Housing
AMP4

Management
Information

Systems
Procurement Modernization

Section 8
(HCVP)

Guma
Trankilidat

Resident 
Opportunity & 

Self-Sufficiency 
Program

Multifamily 
Service 

Program (GT)

(Revised  by new Executive Management – 01/03/2025)
 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 24 of 288



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY

FY2026 Organizational Chart

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 25 of 288



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY

FY2026 Organizational Chart
ADMINISTRATION / EXECUTIVE / 

AUDIT & COMPLIANCE

Note:  TP – Temporary Position; TA – Temporary Appointment.

Executive Director
ELIZABETH F. NAPOLI, 

(Unclassified)

Special Assistant
AUDREY A. AGUON

(Unclassified)

Deputy Director
FERNANDO B. ESTEVES

(Unclassified)

Data Control Clerk II

KATHLEEN J.P. 

TAITINGFONG Program Coordinator II 
Multi-family Service Coordinator 

(MFSC)/ Guma Trankilidat (GT)

IRMA O. ABWE

Program Coordinator II
Resident Opportunities and Self-

Sufficiency (ROSS)

JENNA NICOLE L. ALANO

Program Coordinator III 

Family Self-Sufficiency (FSS)

SANDRINA CEPEDA

Program Coordinator II

Family Self-Sufficiency (FSS)

ROBIN L. MACARAIG

Attorney IV

GHURA Legal Counsel
ELISEO M. FLORIG

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 26 of 288



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY

FY2026 Organizational Chart
HUMAN RESOURCES

Personnel Services Administrator
KIMBERLY KOWALSKI BERSAMIN, DBA

Personnel Specialist II
CARLO N. ONGKLUNGEL

Note:  TP – Temporary Position; TA – Temporary Appointment.

Personnel Specialist I
(VACANT)

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 27 of 288



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY

FY2026 Organizational Chart
PROCUREMENT

HOUSING PROCUREMENT 
ADMINISTRATOR

ANTONIO C. CAMACHO

Note:  TP – Temporary Position; TA – Temporary Appointment.

Buyer II
(VACANT)

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 28 of 288



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY

FY2026 Organizational Chart
MANAGEMENT INFORMATION SYSTEMS

Data Processing Manager
JULIEANN G. LUJAN

Computer Systems Analyst II
WILLIAM ERIKSEN

Systems Programmer
JOYCELYN S. AGUON

Note:  TP – Temporary Position; TA – Temporary Appointment.

Computer Systems Analyst I
CHRISTOPHER R.A. UNTALAN

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 29 of 288



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY

FY2026 Organizational Chart
FISCAL

Controller
FRANCES T. DANIELI

Accountant I
SHAWNESE N. MOLINOS (TA)

Accounting Technician I
MAXINE C. PANGELINAN (TA)

Accountant I
FLOILA G. CAMACHO

Accountant I
ROSA Q. SANTOS

Note:  TP – Temporary Position; TA – Temporary Appointment.

Accounting Technician I
DYLAN P. NAJERA (TA)

Accounting Technician I
JAKE KOKI K. ELIGIO (TA)

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 30 of 288



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY

FY2026 Organizational Chart
MODERNIZATION (CFP)

Program Manager
PATRICK S. LUCES

Program Coordinator II
MARIA CHERRY L. CANETE

Note:  TP – Temporary Position; TA – Temporary Appointment.

Accountant II
NARICEL T. CARLOS

Program Coordinator II
BREANNE KIM OI BLISS

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 31 of 288



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY

FY2026 Organizational Chart
RESEARCH, PLANNING & EVALUATION

Chief Planner
KATHERINE T.E. TAITANO

Planner IV
(VACANT)

Planner III
FRANCESCA L. GATUZ

Accounting Technician III
AGNES C. FLISCO

Note:  TP – Temporary Position; TA – Temporary Appointment.

General Accounting Supervisor
(VACANT)

Accountant II
MICHAEL JULIUS G. LEGASPI

Planner II
JACQUALINE B. FATHAL

Planner II
WAYNE C. CHARGUALAF

Planner I
KENNETH LEE D. ROLDAN

Program Coordinator III
(VACANT)

Accountant I
SUNNY EUN CHO (TA)

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 32 of 288



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY

FY2026 Organizational Chart
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
MANAGER

JO LYN Q. TERLAJE

Program Coordinator II
BRANDON F. SANTOS

Note:  TP – Temporary Position; TA – Temporary Appointment.

Program Coordinator II
LOUISE F. DUENAS (TA)

Program Coordinator II
(VACANT)

Program Coordinator I
TASHIA MARIE D. JORDAN(TA)

Program Coordinator III
PERFECTO B. TALADOC JR

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 33 of 288



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
FY2026 Organizational Chart

PUBLIC HOUSING - Asset Management Program

Resident Relations 
Specialist

Nanette Sayama-
Toves

Housing Specialist
Danielle Balajadia

Housing Admin. 
Officer

Tina Nelson

Interviewer Clerk
Sky Gabayeron
Joanne Pablo

Nicholas Baza (TA)

Property Site Manager
NARCISSA P. ADA

Property Site Manager
GINA M.CURA

Property Site Manager
PATRICK R. BAMBA

Property Site Manager
PHILLY SAN NICOLAS 

Resident Relations 
Specialist

Bernadette Tyquiengco

Housing Admin. 
Officer

Darlene C. Pablo

Interviewer Clerk
Anastasia Monforte

Clerk III
Mayrenalyn MT Muna 

(TA)

Bldg. Maint. 
Supervisor
Michael Orot

Maint. Worker
Roy C. Vidal

Patrick G. Cruz
Peter P. Acfalle

Resident Relations 
Specialist

Virginia R. Blas

Housing Admin. 
Officer

Maria M. Mendiola

Interviewer Clerk
Elizabeth Quenga
Shirley Rogolofoi

Clerk III
Atrin Saladier 

Bldg. Maint. 
Supervisor

Gemar B. Balicha

Maint. Worker
Julius Manabat

Laborer
Rey Pineda (TA)

Ricardo Olandez(TA)
Manny K. Cruz (TA)

Resident Relations 
Specialist

Jeanna Blas

Housing Admin. 
Officer

Velma N. Naputi

Interviewer Clerk
Maedale Q. Cruz

Ana C. Sahagon(TA)

Clerk III
Mary Grace 

Santiago (TA)

Bldg. Maint. Sup.
John E. Danieli

Bldg. Maint. Leader
Josue Morales

Maint. Worker
Raymond Macias
Chris Rodriguez

Ryoichi Leo Iwanaga
Ponciano Elbo
Denny Vegafria

Program 
Coordinator II (TA)
Samyra L. Tenorio

Erica L. Iwase
Christine Ricafrente

Housing Facilities 
Assistant

JOSEPH J. CRUZ 

PH-AMP3
SOUTHWEST – 195 units

GHURA 99 (Agat-99)
GHURA 82 (Agat-32; Merizo-9)

GHURA 83 (Merizo-28; Umatac-27)

PH-AMP4
NORTH – 234 units
GHURA 250 (Toto-118)
GHURA 82 (Dededo-33)
GHURA 35 (Dededo-35)
GHURA 48 (Dededo-48)

PH-AMP2 
SOUTHEAST – 163 units

GHURA 100 (Yona-99)
GHURA 83 (Inarajan-28)
GHURA 82 (Talofofo-8)

GHURA 28 (Talofofo-28)

PH-AMP1 
CENTRAL – 158 units
GHURA 250 (Sinajana-46,              

Agana Heights-38,
Mongmong-48)

GHURA 26 (Asan-26)

Deputy Director
(Asset Manager)

Housing Facilities Assistant
JOANN G. MINER (TA)

Bldg. Maint. 
Supervisor

Dante C. Lungcay

Maint. Worker
Yong Nam Kim
David Ignacio

Eric Kelly
Thomas Rechy

Florencio Santos
Joel Dolojan 

Alfredo Cacabilos 
(TA)

Housing Facilities Assistant
VACANT

Housing Facilities Assistant
MARIA A. MACHIE

Note:  TP – Temporary Position; TA – Temporary Appointment.

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 34 of 288



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY

FY2026 Organizational Chart
GUMA TRANKILIDAT (ELDERLY)

Property Site Manager
PEARLY JEAN  MENDIOLA

Note:  TP – Temporary Position; TA – Temporary Appointment.

Maintenance Worker
VACANT

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 35 of 288



HOUSING SPECIALISTS
TEAM 1:

Housing Specialist Supervisor
JOANNE C. BALAJADIA

Housing Specialist
EMMA T. REYES

DENISE R. WHITE
VENESSA MENDIOLA

Interviewer Clerk
LISA SABLAN

TEAM 2:
Housing Specialist Supervisor

ROSIE E. FRANCISCO

Housing Specialist
JOYLEEN M. DEBIBAR
MARITESS L. BONDAL

Interviewer Clerk
VANESSA J. C. SANTOS
PEARL PADRONES (TA)

TEAM 3:
Housing Specialist Supervisor

SEBASTIAN R. QUENGA

Housing Specialist
DAVINA O. QUINTANILLA
JOHANNA M.T. TAITAGUE

JAVIER ISIDRO

Interviewer Clerk
RONNIE Q. SANTOS

INSPECTORS

Building Inspector Supervisor
STEPHEN C. BAZA

Building Inspector
JESSE M. ANDERSON
JOHN C. SAN AGUSTIN

NICK PEREZ
MARK MCCORMICK

Interviewer Clerk
ERICA GUMATAOTAO
JANA DEL ROSARIO

Section 8 Administrator
NICOLE R. ALEJANDRO

GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
FY2026 Organizational Chart

SECTION 8 (Housing Choice Voucher Program)

Note:  TP – Temporary Position; TA – Temporary Appointment.

Program Coordinator III
SHERRENE R.A. MANTANONA

Customer Service Representative
NARIE ILON

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 36 of 288



Design/Construction

Planner III
ANDREW M. MANGLONA

Program Coordinator III
ERVIN S. SANTIAGO

Engineer III
MICHAEL  S. RACUYAL

Architectural/Engineering Manager
SONNY P. PEREZ

GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY

FY2026 Organizational Chart
ARCHITECTURAL / ENGINEERING

Note:  TP – Temporary Position; TA – Temporary Appointment.

Planner III
ROBERT W. HESS

Engineer II
MIGUEL FERNANDEZ

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 37 of 288



Program Coordinator III

JOVYNA S.A. LUJAN

DOMINIC JEROME M. CALVO

SHERYLYN V. TABLAN

NICOLAS G. CRUZ

ROSIE A. BLAS

Deputy Director
(Grant Manager)

GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY

FY2026 Organizational Chart
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT – DISASTER RECOVERY (CDBG-DR)

Note:  TP – Temporary Position; TA – Temporary Appointment.

Chief Planner

ALICIA P. AGUON

Deputy Controller

JERRICHO C. GARCIA

Accountant III

FLLOYD JACOB QUENGA

Program Coordinator II

JULIA ALICIA ROBERTO

CALEN MICHEL C. MENO

KRISTEN E. MENDIOLA

BRITTANY M.C. PALOMO

PENDING

VACANT

Program Coordinator I

FUMINE T. SERRANO

APRIL M. CAGUIN

VALENE C. VERIATO

TUWA C. SAKISAT

JACQUELINE O. UNTALAN

CAROLYN D. CHARGUALAF

Planner III

JEFFREY S. PINAULA

ADAM S.T. SUHARTO

VACANT

SUPPORT TEAM

  Procurement

PATRICIA B. CAMACHO (Buyer Supervisor II)

ANDREW P. CHAMBERLAIN (Buyer II)

BRENCIS B. BRIONES (Buyer II)

PENDING (Buyer Supervisor II)

Human Resources

              DETAILED (Personnel Specialist III)

THALIA C. PABLO (Personnel Specialist I)

A/E

MARIE N. VILLANUEVA (Program Coordinator II)

EDDIE P. PAULINO (Program Coordinator I)

  Fiscal

 VACANT (Accountant I)

  Legal

VACANT (Paralegal II)

Program Coordinator I

PHILLIP V CRUZ

Accountant II

VACANT

VACANT

Community Program Aide II

VACANT

VACANT

VACANT

VACANT

Community Program Aide I

VACANT

VACANT

VACANT

VACANT

Program Coordinator II

LEILANIE V. DELIGUIN

Public Information Officer

TYLER M. MORTERA

Administrative Assistant

DETAILED

Data Control Clerk II

VACANT

Program Coordinator IV

VACANT

Loan Administrator 

VACANT

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 38 of 288



Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
FY 2026 Budget

Summary

Budget Category Budget Line Item

Public and 
Indian Housing

(AMP)

Housing 
Choice 

Vouchers

Supportive
Housing

for the Elderly
(Guma

Trankilidat)

Capital Fund 
Program

(CFP)

Community 
Development 

Programs
(CD)

Research 
Planning and 

Evaluation 
Programs

(RP&E)

Central Office 
Cost Center

(COCC)
Other 

Programs

CDBG - 
Disaster
Recovery Grand Total

Revenue 100 Operating Receipts (1,229,914)$     -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    (1,229,914)$     
101 Administrative Fees -                      (3,449,598)       -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      (3,449,598)       
102 Interest Income (3,270)              -                      (100)                 -                      (119,468)          (5)                    -                      -                      -                      (122,843)          
103 Other Income (183,863)          -                      (2,200)              -                      -                      (547,785)          -                      (43,257)            -                      (777,105)          
104 Grants -                      -                      (77,806)            -                      (12,868,828)     (11,891,063)     -                      -                      (37,015,716)     (61,853,413)     
106 Subsidies - Federal (4,974,804)       -                      (879,648)          (11,205,518)     -                      -                      -                      (409,094)          -                      (17,469,064)     
109 Year-end Cash Balance (3,633,914)       (1,883,737)       (201,068)          -                      -                      -                      (876,743)          -                      -                      (6,595,462)       
110 Revenue - Management Fees -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      (1,705,702)       -                      -                      (1,705,702)       
111 Revenue - Housing Assistance Payments -                      (49,195,691)     -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      (49,195,691)     

Revenue Total (10,025,765)     (54,529,026)     (1,160,822)       (11,205,518)     (12,988,296)     (12,438,853)     (2,582,445)       (452,351)          (37,015,716)     (142,398,793)   
Expenditures:
 Personnel 801 Salaries and Wages 2,970,985        1,517,213        159,401           259,894           833,441           1,636,063        1,443,916        219,378           2,738,894        11,779,185      

802 Overtime 45,000             -                      2,400               1,500               -                      -                      -                      -                      10,000             58,900             
803 Employee Benefits 2,723,634        971,939           129,332           176,790           351,303           858,401           907,226           163,735           1,520,571        7,802,931        

  Personnel Total 5,739,619        2,489,152        291,133           438,184           1,184,744        2,494,464        2,351,142        383,113           4,269,465        19,641,016      

 Utilities 804 Electricity 251,800           30,800             176,955           -                      6,600               22,000             54,938             -                      60,000             603,093           
805 Water/Sewage 166,605           3,846               80,000             -                      330                  1,100               2,380               -                      -                      254,261           

 Utilities Total 418,405           34,646             256,955           -                      6,930               23,100             57,318             -                      60,000             857,354           

 Travel 810 Off-Island Travel 10,000             30,000             10,000             -                      -                      11,000             -                      5,000               30,000             96,000             

        
 Contractual 807 Security Deposit -                      93,581             -                               -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      93,581             

812 Auto Maintenance 57,000             7,500               1,500                      250                  -                      2,750               1,000               1,000               15,000             86,000             
813 Auto - Gas 52,639             31,000             3,000                      250                  110                  2,200               600                  853                  15,000             105,652           
814 Communication 56,042             4,000               5,000                      -                      -                      8,415               9,903               451                  50,000             133,811           
815 Copy Machine 13,650             12,000             -                               -                      -                      2,200               2,834               -                      18,000             48,684             
816 Custodial Services 35,196             9,000               16,000                    -                      -                      5,500               28,400             -                      60,000             154,096           
817 Insurance Services 114,989           19,500             4,100                      -                      1,320               19,800             62,000             -                      49,000             270,709           
818 Storage -                      11,000             -                               1,000               -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      12,000             
820 Property Management Fee 718,560           1,046,808        50,568                    -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      1,815,936        
821 Bookkeeping Fee 67,500             246,270           4,000                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      317,770           
822 Asset Management Fee 90,000             -                      -                               90,000             -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      180,000           
824 Office Rent -                      144,359           -                               -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      138,251           282,610           
825 Legal 9,200               10,000             3,000                      250                  -                      -                      -                      -                      100,000           122,450           
826 Office Equipment Maintenance -                      4,000               2,000                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      5,000               11,000             
827 Plumbing, Sewer Services 61,000             -                      5,000                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      66,000             
828 Professional Services 111,400           120,000           11,277                    -                      6,820               48,245             6,500               -                      30,000,000      30,304,242      
829 Protective Services 188,500           -                      95,055                    -                      110                  110                  300                  -                      -                      284,075           
830 Software Maintenance 30,500             5,000               5,000                      -                      110                  44,000             20,000             -                      50,000             154,610           
832 Audit 12,440             47,360             1,000                      750                  3,850               23,100             5,000               -                      50,000             143,500           
833 Advertising 10,300             18,500             5,000                      12,000             1,430               34,540             25,000             -                      150,000           256,770           
850 Maintenance Contracts 352,720           -                      30,376                    -                      -                      7,590               -                      -                      25,000             415,686           
851 Staff Training 75,000             66,000             6,020                    105,000           2,750               5,500               -                      2,500               100,000           362,770           

  Contractual Total 2,056,636        1,895,878        247,896           209,500           16,500             203,950           161,537           4,804               30,825,251      35,621,952      

FY 2026
ALL PROGRAMS

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 39 of 288



Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
FY 2026 Budget

Summary

Budget Category Budget Line Item

Public and 
Indian Housing

(AMP)

Housing 
Choice 

Vouchers

Supportive
Housing

for the Elderly
(Guma

Trankilidat)

Capital Fund 
Program

(CFP)

Community 
Development 

Programs
(CD)

Research 
Planning and 

Evaluation 
Programs

(RP&E)

Central Office 
Cost Center

(COCC)
Other 

Programs

CDBG - 
Disaster
Recovery Grand Total

FY 2026
ALL PROGRAMS

 Equipment 831 Equipment 332,754           -                      11,062             70,000             -                      4,400               -                      3,117               490,000           911,333           

 Other 835 Collection Loss 123,000           2,700               -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      125,700           
836 Computer Services -                      14,000             -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      595                  10,000             24,595             
839 Custodial Supplies 5,400               2,700               -                      -                      2,200               -                      1,200               -                      5,000               16,500             
842 Membership Dues 5,300               5,000               1,250               100                  -                      1,650               1,500               336                  1,000               16,136             
843 Miscellaneous 34,300             25,000             1,200               2,000               -                      1,668               500                  52,387             100,000           217,055           
844 Office Supplies 19,000             22,000             2,600               2,000               -                      220                  3,500               2,500               20,000             71,820             
845 Ordinary Maintenance & Materials 323,902           -                      10,000             -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      333,902           
846 Office Building Repair & Maintenance 52,000             52,000             -                      -                      -                      1,650               5,000               -                      10,000             120,650           
847 Postage/Courier 9,180               29,000             1,300               100                  110                  110                  250                  -                      5,000               45,050             
848 Printing 16,000             26,000             200                  1,000               -                      -                      -                      -                      30,000             73,200             
852 Subscriptions 1,280               1,500               745                  -                      -                      -                      500                  500                  160,000           164,525           
854 Payment in lieu of taxes (PILOT) 32,808             -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      32,808             
860 Portability Admin Fees -                      32,448             -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      32,448             
862 PH FSS Expense 60,181             -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      60,181             

  Other Total 682,351           212,348           17,295             5,200               2,310               5,298               12,450             56,318             341,000           1,334,570        

Capital Outlays 855 Capital Outlays 786,000           -                      200,000           10,482,634      11,777,812      9,696,641        -                      -                      1,000,000        33,943,087      

Loan Payments 857 Loan Payments -                      -                      126,480           -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      126,480           

Housing Assistance Payments 859 Housing Assistance Payments -                      49,867,001      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      49,867,001      

Expenditures Total 10,025,765      54,529,026      1,160,822        11,205,518      12,988,296      12,438,853      2,582,445        452,351           37,015,716      142,398,792    

(Surplus) Deficit -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 40 of 288



Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
FY 2026 Budget

Public and Indian Housing
(Asset Management Properties)

Budget Category Budget Line Item AMP - 1 AMP - 2 AMP - 3 AMP - 4 Grand Total AMP - 1 AMP - 2 AMP - 3 AMP - 4 Grand Total

Revenue 100 Operating Receipts (325,405)$        (165,416)$        (157,145)$        (581,948)$        (1,229,914)$   (244,054)$   (202,058)$   (217,153)$   (616,198)$   (1,279,463)$     
101 Administrative Fees -                   -                     -                   
102 Interest Income (560.00)            (694)                 (1,025)              (991)                 (3,270)            (420)            (80)              (115)            (294)            (909.53)            
103 Other Income (72,004.80)       (24,535)            (48,972)            (38,351)            (183,863)        (54,004)       (15,433)       (36,816)       (26,326)       (132,578.11)     
104 Grants -                   -                     -                   
106 Subsidies - Federal (1,302,912.00)  (1,189,985.33)  (1,249,253.33)  (1,232,654.67)  (4,974,804)     (664,999)     (780,092)     (873,077)     (873,157)     (3,191,325.60)  
109 Year-end Cash Balance (481,206.00)     (660,017)          (798,804)          (1,693,887)       (3,633,914)     (711,714)     (568,834)     (1,048,382)  (1,765,515)  (4,094,444.00)  
110 Revenue - Management Fees -                   -                     -                   
111 Revenue - Housing Assistance Payments -                   -                       -                       -                       -                     -                  -                  -                  -                  -                       

Revenue Total (2,182,088)       (2,040,648)       (2,255,199)       (3,547,832)       (10,025,765)   (1,675,191)  (1,566,498)  (2,175,543)  (3,281,489)  (8,698,720)       
Expenditures:
Personnel 801 Salaries and Wages 682,298           600,658           683,214           1,004,815        2,970,985       663,341      595,250      656,377      949,577      2,864,545        

802 Overtime 30,000             -                       15,000             45,000            25,000        30,000        25,200        15,000        95,200             
803 Employee Benefits 498,992           866,555           569,076           789,011           2,723,634       424,438      386,520      489,857      647,966      1,948,781        

  Personnel Total 1,211,290        1,467,213        1,252,290        1,808,826        5,739,619       1,112,779   1,011,770   1,171,434   1,612,543   4,908,526        

Utilities 804 Electricity 46,000             34,000             46,800             125,000           251,800          46,000        34,000        46,800        75,000        201,800           
805 Water/Sewage 2,000               16,285             73,320             75,000             166,605          2,000          16,285        73,320        60,000        151,605           

 Utilities Total 48,000             50,285             120,120           200,000           418,405          48,000        50,285        120,120      135,000      353,405           

Travel 810 Off-Island Travel -                       5,000               -                       5,000               10,000            -                  5,000          -                  5,000          10,000             

           
Contractual 807 Security Deposit -                       -                     -                  -                       

812 Auto Maintenance 12,000             9,000               24,000             12,000             57,000            12,000        9,000          24,000        20,000        65,000             
813 Auto - Gas 12,500             8,000               22,139             10,000             52,639            12,500        8,000          22,139        11,000        53,639             
814 Communication 12,000             7,522               14,520             22,000             56,042            7,000          7,522          14,520        12,000        41,042             
815 Copy Machine 4,000               3,000               3,600               3,050               13,650            4,000          3,000          3,600          2,700          13,300             
816 Custodial Services 5,000               4,000               20,736             5,460               35,196            5,000          4,000          20,736        5,460          35,196             
817 Insurance Services 13,550             26,380             35,059             40,000             114,989          13,550        26,380        35,059        40,000        114,989           
818 Storage -                     -                       
820 Property Management Fee 151,377           156,167           186,826           224,191           718,560          151,377      156,167      186,826      224,191      718,560           
821 Bookkeeping Fee 14,220             14,670             17,550             21,060             67,500            14,220        14,670        17,550        21,060        67,500             
822 Asset Management Fee 18,960             19,560             23,400             28,080             90,000            18,960        19,560        23,400        28,080        90,000             
824 Office Rent -                     -                       
825 Legal 4,000               3,000               1,200               1,000               9,200              6,000          3,000          1,200          1,500          11,700             
826 Office Equipment Maintenance -                     -                       
827 Plumbing, Sewer Services 9,000               3,000               9,000               40,000             61,000            9,000          3,000          9,000          40,000        61,000             
828 Professional Services 9,000               10,000             32,400             60,000             111,400          9,000          10,000        32,400        60,000        111,400           

FY 2026 FY 2025 Approved Budget

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 41 of 288



Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
FY 2026 Budget

Public and Indian Housing
(Asset Management Properties)

Budget Category Budget Line Item AMP - 1 AMP - 2 AMP - 3 AMP - 4 Grand Total AMP - 1 AMP - 2 AMP - 3 AMP - 4 Grand Total

FY 2026 FY 2025 Approved Budget

829 Protective Services 5,000               2,000               1,500               180,000           188,500          5,000          2,000          1,500          75,000        83,500             
830 Software Maintenance 2,700               5,000               7,800               15,000             30,500            2,700          5,000          7,800          15,000        30,500             
832 Audit 7,000               2,440               3,000               12,440            1,200          2,440          3,000          6,640               
833 Advertising 1,000               2,000               4,800               2,500               10,300            1,000          2,000          4,800          3,000          10,800             
850 Maintenance Contracts 59,220             28,500             120,000           145,000           352,720          35,050        28,500        120,000      145,000      328,550           
851 Staff Training 12,000             30,000             12,000             21,000             75,000            12,000        30,000        12,000        21,000        75,000             

  Contractual Total 352,527           334,239           536,530           833,341           2,056,636       319,557      334,239      536,530      727,991      1,918,316        

Equipment 831 Equipment 119,652           28,102             125,000           60,000             332,754          65,002        28,102        125,000      75,000        293,104           

Other 835 Collection Loss 12,000             18,000             18,000             75,000             123,000          8,000          18,000        18,000        75,000        119,000           
836 Computer Services -                     -                       
839 Custodial Supplies 600                  500                  1,000               3,300               5,400              600             500             1,000          3,300          5,400               
842 Membership Dues 1,500               800                  3,000               5,300              1,500          800             3,000          5,300               
843 Miscellaneous 2,500               15,800             6,000               10,000             34,300            2,500          15,800        6,000          12,000        36,300             
844 Office Supplies 4,000               5,000               6,000               4,000               19,000            4,000          5,000          6,000          4,000          19,000             
845 Ordinary Maintenance & Materials 40,000             68,902             95,000             120,000           323,902          40,000        68,902        95,000        120,000      323,902           
846 Office Building Repair & Maintenance 2,000               50,000             52,000            2,000          145,000      147,000           
847 Postage/Courier 680                  2,000               1,500               5,000               9,180              680             2,000          1,500          4,000          8,180               
848 Printing 3,000               1,000               3,000               9,000               16,000            3,000          1,000          3,000          9,000          16,000             
852 Subscriptions 500                  100                  180                  500                  1,280              500             100             180             500             1,280               
854 Payment in lieu of taxes (PILOT) 2,073               579                  30,156             32,808            2,073          579             30,156        32,808             
860 Portability Admin Fees -                     -                       
862 PH FSS Expense 10,765             18,707             -                       30,709             60,181            -                  -                  1,200          10,000        11,200             

  Other Total 79,618             130,809           131,259           340,665           682,351          64,853        112,102      132,459      415,956      725,370           

Capital Outlays 855 Capital Outlays 371,000           25,000             90,000             300,000           786,000          65,000        25,000        90,000        310,000      490,000           

Loan Payments 857 Loan Payments -                       -                       -                       -                       -                     -                  -                  -                  -                  -                       

Housing Assistance Payments 859 Housing Assistance Payments -                       -                       -                       -                       -                     -                  -                  -                  -                  -                       

Expenditures Total 2,182,087        2,040,648        2,255,199        3,547,832        10,025,765     1,675,191   1,566,498   2,175,543   3,281,490   8,698,720        

(Surplus) Deficit -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                   -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                     

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 42 of 288



Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
FY 2026 Budget

Public and Indian Housing
(Asset Management Properties)

Budget Category Budget Line Item

Revenue 100 Operating Receipts
101 Administrative Fees
102 Interest Income
103 Other Income
104 Grants
106 Subsidies - Federal
109 Year-end Cash Balance
110 Revenue - Management Fees
111 Revenue - Housing Assistance Payments

Revenue Total
Expenditures:
Personnel 801 Salaries and Wages

802 Overtime
803 Employee Benefits

  Personnel Total

Utilities 804 Electricity
805 Water/Sewage

 Utilities Total

Travel 810 Off-Island Travel

 
Contractual 807 Security Deposit

812 Auto Maintenance
813 Auto - Gas
814 Communication
815 Copy Machine
816 Custodial Services
817 Insurance Services
818 Storage
820 Property Management Fee
821 Bookkeeping Fee
822 Asset Management Fee
824 Office Rent
825 Legal
826 Office Equipment Maintenance
827 Plumbing, Sewer Services
828 Professional Services

AMP - 1 AMP - 2 AMP - 3 AMP - 4 Grand Total AMP - 1 AMP - 2 AMP - 3 AMP - 4 Grand Total

66,421$      64,211$        86,199$        131,241$      348,072$      (177,633)$   (137,847)$      (130,954)$       (484,957)$    (931,391)$    
-                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

27               (498)              (739)              (532)              (1,741)           (393)            (578)               (854)                (826)              (2,651)           
(4,860)        (5,013)           (3,994)           (5,633)           (19,501)         (58,864)       (20,446)          (40,810)           (31,959)        (152,079)      

969             9,109            5,568            2,198            17,844          969              9,109             5,568               2,198            17,844          
(312,185)    (112,397)       (63,863)         (51,334)         (539,778)       (977,184)     (892,489)        (936,940)         (924,491)      (3,731,104)   
(177,295)    (1,128,785)    (1,711,203)    (582,286)       (3,599,569)    (889,009)     (1,697,619)     (2,759,585)      (2,347,801)   (7,694,014)   

-                    -                    
-                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                   -                     -                       -                    -                    

(426,924)    (1,173,372)    (1,688,032)    (506,347)       (3,794,674)    (2,102,114)  (2,739,870)     (3,863,575)      (3,787,836)   (12,493,395) 

147,993      165,095        186,992        242,294        742,374        515,348      430,155         469,385          707,283        2,122,171     
24,530        29,953          25,200          15,000          94,683          470              47                  -                    517               

179,753      188,607        270,865        377,948        1,017,173     244,685      197,913         218,992          270,018        931,608        
352,276      383,655        483,057        635,242        1,854,230     760,503      628,115         688,377          977,301        3,054,296     

16,443        10,236          30,075          38,214          94,968          29,557        23,764           16,725            36,786          106,832        
1,003          1,908            26,685          11,278          40,874          997              14,377           46,635            48,722          110,731        

17,446        12,144          56,760          49,492          135,842        30,554        38,141           63,360            85,508          217,563        

(3,262)        2,146            (2,853)           2,142            (1,827)           3,262           2,854             2,853               2,858            11,827          

          
-                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

6,417          6,747            15,865          16,821          45,850          5,583           2,253             8,135               3,179            19,150          
9,209          3,448            21,655          6,673            40,985          3,291           4,552             484                  4,327            12,654          

(2,852)        (1,166)           7,262            (6,604)           (3,360)           9,852           8,688             7,258               18,604          44,402          
2,184          1,120            1,898            868               6,070            1,816           1,880             1,702               1,832            7,230            
2,519          94                 (19,276)         1,365            (15,298)         2,481           3,906             40,012            4,095            50,494          

10,911        23,334          32,719          36,254          103,218        2,639           3,046             2,340               3,746            11,771          
-                    -                    

40,799        45,269          52,056          66,108          204,231        110,578      110,898         134,770          158,083        514,329        
3,832          4,252            4,890            6,210            19,184          10,388        10,418           12,660            14,850          48,316          
4,740          4,890            5,850            7,020            22,500          14,220        14,670           17,550            21,060          67,500          

-                    -                    
6,000          3,000            1,200            1,500            11,700          -                   -                     -                    -                    

-                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
9,000          3,000            8,751            29,187          49,938          249                  10,813          11,062          
7,181          8,963            31,801          55,587          103,532        1,819           1,037             599                  4,413            7,868            

FY 2025 Actual (06-30-2025)FY 2025 Budget-to-Actual (06-30-2025)

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 43 of 288



Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
FY 2026 Budget

Public and Indian Housing
(Asset Management Properties)

Budget Category Budget Line Item

829 Protective Services
830 Software Maintenance
832 Audit
833 Advertising
850 Maintenance Contracts
851 Staff Training

  Contractual Total

Equipment 831 Equipment

Other 835 Collection Loss
836 Computer Services
839 Custodial Supplies
842 Membership Dues
843 Miscellaneous
844 Office Supplies
845 Ordinary Maintenance & Materials
846 Office Building Repair & Maintenance
847 Postage/Courier
848 Printing
852 Subscriptions
854 Payment in lieu of taxes (PILOT)
860 Portability Admin Fees
862 PH FSS Expense

  Other Total

Capital Outlays 855 Capital Outlays

Loan Payments 857 Loan Payments

Housing Assistance Payments 859 Housing Assistance Payments

Expenditures Total

(Surplus) Deficit

AMP - 1 AMP - 2 AMP - 3 AMP - 4 Grand Total AMP - 1 AMP - 2 AMP - 3 AMP - 4 Grand Total

FY 2025 Actual (06-30-2025)FY 2025 Budget-to-Actual (06-30-2025)

4,760          1,130            1,260            67,315          74,465          240              870                240                  7,685            9,035            
(2,661)        (1,723)           958               7,555            4,129            5,361           6,723             6,842               7,445            26,371          
1,200          2,440            -                    3,000            6,640            -                   -                    -                    

743             1,027            4,095            1,778            7,643            257              973                705                  1,222            3,157            
1,159          (18,349)         107,328        115,718        205,856        33,891        46,849           12,672            29,282          122,694        
8,011          28,585          10,710          19,585          66,891          3,989           1,415             1,290               1,415            8,109            

113,152      116,061        289,022        435,940        954,174        206,405      218,178         247,508          292,051        964,142        

(36,912)      (208,203)       (16,947)         35,668          (226,394)       101,914      236,305         141,947          39,332          519,498        

6,276          25,142          (27,762)         65,584          69,240          1,724           (7,142)            45,762            9,416            49,760          
(9)                (10)                (9)                  (13)                (41)                9                  10                  9                      13                 41                 

(158)           500               1,000            2,476            3,818            758              824               1,582            
334             (403)              (1,439)           1,273            (235)              1,166           1,203             1,439               1,727            5,535            

(16,742)      11,113          (2,471)           (5,768)           (13,868)         19,242        4,687             8,471               17,768          50,168          
1,056          129               2,181            (420)              2,946            2,944           4,871             3,819               4,420            16,054          
4,334          27,891          27,870          (9,264)           50,831          35,666        41,011           67,130            129,264        273,071        
2,000          -                    -                    145,000        147,000        -                    

670             473               541               2,414            4,098            10                1,527             959                  1,586            4,082            
3,000          1,000            2,500            7,530            14,030          500                  1,470            1,970            

352             (51)                11                 310               622               148              151                169                  190               658               
(12,690)      (18,779)         (15,350)         (18,753)         (65,572)         14,763        18,779           15,929            48,909          98,380          

-                    -                    
(8,074)        (14,030)         1,200            (13,032)         (33,936)         8,074           14,030           -                       23,032          45,136          

(19,651)      32,975          (11,728)         177,337        178,933        84,504        79,127           144,187          238,619        546,437        

65,000        59,965          90,000          310,000        524,965        -                   (34,965)          -                       -                    (34,965)        

-                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                   -                     -                       -                    -                    

-                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                   -                     -                       -                    -                    

488,049      398,743        887,311        1,645,821     3,419,923     1,187,142   1,167,755      1,288,232       1,635,669     5,278,798     

61,125$      (774,628)$     (800,721)$     1,139,474$   (374,751)$     (914,972)$   (1,572,115)$   (2,575,343)$    (2,152,167)$ (7,214,597)$ 

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 44 of 288



Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
FY 2026 Budget

Public and Indian Housing
(Asset Management Properties)

Line Item Line Item Description Budget Amount AMP 1 Justification for FY 2026 Budget

802 OVERTIME 30,000                           

Increase of $5,000 from $25,000 to $30,000. Maintenance staff address unit renovations followed by NSPIRE repairs 
(71 units pending). Other charges to this line item include unexpected emergencies (total of 8 units) and the 
expectation of HUD- NSPIRE inspection for this upcoming Fiscal Year. 

804 ELECTRICTY 46,000                           

Request to keep this the same. This covers AMP 1 street lights at the sites; electricity for AMP 1 office and Rec 
Center providing outreach services to all public housing residents. Expenses for emergency transfers (GT); to 
include tenant remibursements/GPA meters required for health & safety will come from here.  AMP 1 had 3 
emergency relocation of families for lodging at a local hotel this year due to  replacement of GPA distribution box & 1 
General transfer relocation from within AMP 1 site.   

805 WATER/SEWER 2,000                             

Budget remains the same. Please note any unforseen water leaks at any of the developments will be an expense 
that will come out of this line item; expenses for emergency general transfers (to incluse tenant 
reimbursements/usage of utilities); required for health & safety will come from here. 

812 AUTO REPAIRS 12,000                           
Budget remains the same. The aging needs of the fleet is on-going and the prices of repairs are high. Two(2) 
vehicles needed repairs and a total of five (5) vehicles were disposed & charged here.

813 AUTO GAS 12,500                           
Budget to remain the same as last year.  Expenses this year have only been posted through Jan. 2025.  Note: There 
are delays in processing payments in this area with DOA forwarding invoices months later.  

814 COMMUNICATION 12,000                           

Request for $5,000 increase here.Metrolan, internet and voice services (PDS) is not included here 
($450x12=$5,400). AMP sites will also cost share the Resident Center in Toto Garden for FAX ($233);INTERNET 
(($750) & METROLAN ($600).

815 COPY MACHINE 4,000                             Request to keep the same amount as last year

816 CUSTODIAL SERVICES 5,000                             Request to keep the same amount as last year

825 LEGAL 4,000                             Decrease from $6,000 to $4,000. Any consulation from Legal charged here re:evictions, fair housing etc. 

827 PLUMBING 9,000                             
Request to keep the same amount as last year. Any unforseen plumbing issue during the FY will come out from 
here.  

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 45 of 288



Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
FY 2026 Budget

Public and Indian Housing
(Asset Management Properties)

Line Item Line Item Description Budget Amount AMP 1 Justification for FY 2026 Budget

828 PROFESSIONAL  SERVICES 9,000                             

Request to keep the same as last year. GPD clearances, pest control, termites and special maintenance services 
are paid out from this line item. There appears to be a highter number of abandoned units and housekeeping issues 
from this FY. Pest control for rodents is expected to increase for FY26 & contract for termites. 

829 PROTECTIVE SERVICES 5,000                             

Request to keep this the same. Contract for alarm monitoring and security services for emergency after hour calls 
and security roving services fall here. ALARM MONITORING ($30x12=$360); AFTER HRS (($30X12=$360); 
TROUBLE SHOOTING ($75X5=$375); SECURITY ROVING ($315 per week x 10= $3,150)

831 EQUIPMENT 119,652                         

Increase of $54,652 for a total of $119,652 requested here: MAINTENANCE TOOLS/EQUIP ($9,985); 
RANGES/REFRIG/WATER HEATERS ($27,667); MIS UPDATES ($2,000); FILE ROOM ($30,000); TRUCK 
W/TOMMY LIFT OR SUPPLY VAN ($50,000) See spreadsheet for more info. 

832 AUDIT 1,200                             Request to keep this the same. 

833 ADVERTISING 1,000                             
Request to keep this the same. This needed to cover any advertising cost for bid announcement co-shared among 
the AMP's and other advertising needs. AMP 1 expects to open our wait list this FY26

835 COLLECTION LOSS 12,000                           Increase from $8,000 to $12,000 as reflected this past FY 25 (total of 5 units totalling $12,012.73 in charges)

839 CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES 600                                Request to keep this the same

842 MEMBERSHIP DUES 1,500                             

Request to keep this the same. Membership Dues under PHADA, NAHRO & any updates to the ACOP will fall under 
this area. Housing staff will need constant updates from each as it relates to housing. In addition, any ACOP 
revisions will be updated for GHURA with additional cost.

843 MISCELLANEOUS 2,500                             Request to keep this the same. Safety gear & uniforms for current staff.  

844 OFFICE SUPPLIES 4,000                             Request to keep this the same.  

845 ORDINARY MAINTENANCE AND MATERIALS 40,000                           

Request to keep this the same. Budget is expected to be exhausted by the end of the FY. NOTE: Public housing 
anticipates to be inspected by HUD FY25 or FY26.  Aside from consumable inventory purchases; Window damages 
and repairs have increased. Inspections for upcoming HUD NSPIRE repairs continue in the remaining months 
through FY 26.   

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 46 of 288



Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
FY 2026 Budget

Public and Indian Housing
(Asset Management Properties)

Line Item Line Item Description Budget Amount AMP 1 Justification for FY 2026 Budget

846 OFFICE BUILDING REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 2,000                             
Request to keep this the same. This area covers costs associated with the AMP 1 office building repairs & 
maintenance and request will be the same as FY24

847 POSTAGE/COURIER 680                                Request to remain the same. AMP 1 expects to open Wait List in FY 2026

848 PRINTING 3,000                             
Request to remain the same. Updating and printing forms and materials for move-in packets, tenant Educational 
materials (laminated) for the units as a new NSPIRE model is implemented.

850 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 59,220                           

Increase from $35,050 to $59,220 mainly due to increase of grass cutting contract. This line item addresses the 
fence area within the office compound, rental equipment, AC service, small engine repair, global recycling (disposals 
for refrigerator/stove/water heaters) etc. The funds need to be retained as contractors will be utilized.  

AMP 1 currently has one contractor GRASS CUTTING =$46,020

SERVICING AMP 1 AC UNITS OFFICE/WAREHOUSE TOTAL OF -9

 $150 x 9 = $1,350 x 2x a year= $2,700

DISPOSAL OF VEHICLES (5)= $2,700

DISPOSAL OF APPLIANCES, HOUSEHOLD ITEMS, GREEN WASTE, etc. through the year= $2,800

PEST CONTRAL ESTIMATE= $5,000

851 STAFF TRAINING 12,000                           Request to keep this the same. Although Agency training Bid did not go through this year, it is expected this FY 26. 

852 SUBSCRIPTIONS 500                                Request to keep this the same. Funds needed to maintain professional subscriptions.

855 CAPITAL OUTLAY PROJECTIONS 371,000                         
CONVERSION OF CONCRETE SINK TO PLASTIC- $620x 50 units =$31,000; REPLACE LIGHTING (all sites)- 
$25,000; WATER BLAST/PLAINTING- $15,000

EXPANSION OF AMP1 MAINTENANCE SHOP- $100,000; EXPANSION OF AMP 1 PARKING/STAGING-$100,000

ADDITIONAL PARKING AT THE SITES (MM-SINJ-AH) - $100,000

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 47 of 288



Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
FY 2026 Budget

Public and Indian Housing
(Asset Management Properties)

Line Item Line Item Description Budget Amount AMP 1 Justification for FY 2026 Budget

851 STAFF TRAINING 12,000                           
Request to increase with several training and recertifications for both maintenance and staff this year - NSPIRE 
(maintenance and housing staff) HOTMA (Housing staff); CORE (Maintenance staff)

852 SUBSCRIPTIONS 500                                Funds needed to maintain professional subscriptions.

855 CAPITAL OUTLAY PROJECTIONS 65,000                           Replace signage (all sites)- $25,000; Replace lighting (all sites)- $25,000; Water blasting/painting- $15,000

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 48 of 288



Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
FY 2026 Budget

Public and Indian Housing
(Asset Management Properties)

Line Item Line Item Description Budget Amount AMP 2 Justification for FY2026 Budget

831 EQUIPMENT - MAINTENANCE 28,102                   

Pipe Bender EMT 3/4"                            50 1 Qty x $50 Needed in shop to perform repairs

Industrial Fan for Shop                          300 1 Qty x $300 Replacement neeeded

Concrete Masonary Rotary Hammer Drill                          199 1 Qty x $199 Needed by maintenanace for use at Unit Renos

Wheelbarrow with steel handles, Flat Tire free                          278 2 Qty x $278 Needed by maintenanace for use at Unit Renos

115 Volt K 400 Drain Cleaning Drum Machine. Integral wound cable and tool set                         800 
1 Qty x $800 Needed by maintenance for use at Unit Renos and occupied units with drain 
issues

Gas 2 stroke Cycle Hedge Trimmer                          250 1 Qty x $250 Needed for Ground Maintenance

5/16 in X 50 ft Slotted - End Replacement Cable                          258 3 Qty x $86 Replacement needed

4-piece Plumbers Cutter Sets                            60 2 Qty x $30 Needed in shop to perform repairs

Electric Tile Scraper Machine                       2,000 1 Qty x $2,000 Needed by maintenanace for use at Unit Renos

3000W Pure Sine Inverter                       1,170 3 Qty x $390 Portable power for tools at jobsite

All-Purpose Rubber Boots                          120 4 Qty x $30 Maintenance Use

Push Mower 22" High Wheel                          450 1 Qty x $450 Needed for Ground Maintenance

Trap Snake 6 ft Toilet Augar Drain Cleaning Kit                          800 4 Qty x $200 Needed by maintenance for occupied units with drain issues

Waterblaster                       1,400 1 Qty x $1,400 Maintenance Use

Waterblaster Hose 3/8 x 50                          200 2 Qty x $100 Maintenance Use

Floor Buffer                          850 1 Qty x $850 Maintenance Use

Buffer Pad                            56 2 Qty x 28 Maintenance Use

Chainsaw                          978 2  Qty x $489 Needed for Ground Maintenance

Backpack Blower                          539 1 Qty x $539 Needed for Gounds Maintenance

Canopy 20x40                          500 1 Qty x $500 Replacement needed in shop

SeeSnake MicroReel Video Inspection Camera System                       5,400 1 Qty x $5,400 Needed to assess leaks in units and laundry

Bench Vise 6"-8"                          400 1 Qty x  $400 Needed for cutting metal, rebar etc. small jobs

Floor Jack 3 Ton                          139 1 Qty x $139 Needed in shop to perform repairs

Jack Hammer                          900 1 Qty x $900 Needed by maintenanace for use at Unit Renos

Bench Grinder 8"                          140 1 Qty x $140 Replacement needed

Portable Pipe Vise                          390 1 Qty x $390 Needed in shop to perform repairs

Dolley - Hand/Truck                          160 2 Qty x $80 Maintenance Use

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 49 of 288



Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
FY 2026 Budget

Public and Indian Housing
(Asset Management Properties)

Line Item Line Item Description Budget Amount AMP 2 Justification for FY2026 Budget

Trailer Lights (above 80")                          120 3 Qty x $40 Replacement for trailers

Rubbermaid Trashbin 33gal                          105 3 Qty x $35 Maintenance Use

Desktop computer                       6,000 3 Qty x $2,000 Replacement for PSM, IC, HFA, Front Desk

Printer                       2,000 1 Qty x $2,000 Purchase for HAO

Batterty Backup                          480 4 Qty x $120 Replacement for PSM, IC, HFA, Front Desk

Folding Chairs                          240 12 Qty x $20 Replacement of lobby chairs

Plastic Tables 6ft                          280 4 Qty x $70 Office use for lobby area

Plastic Tables 4ft                            90 2 Qty x $45 Office use 

845 ORDINARY EQUIPMENT - MAINTENANCE 68,902                   

Refrigerators (18 cf. top mount w/handles 110V frost free)                     34,000 50 Qty x Current cost $680

Refrigerators (17 cf. top mount w/handles 110V frost free)                       4,120 5 Qty x Current cost $824

Ranges (rear control) w/ electric cord                       9,666 18 Qty x Current cost $537

Ranges (front control) w/ electric cord                       3,116 4 Qty x Current cost $779

Waterheaters (30 gal Highboy 220V)                     18,000 40 Qty x Current cost $450

855 Capital Outlays 25,000                   

Sedan                     25,000 Need to replace office fleet

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 50 of 288



Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
FY 2026 Budget

Public and Indian Housing
(Asset Management Properties)

Line Item Line Item Description Budget Amount AMP 4 Justification for FY2026 Budget

801 SALARIES              1,004,815 
Include Employee Benefits for 3 Program Coordinators; Salaries/Employee Benefits/OT/ST to be divided 
by 4 AMPs

802 OVERTIME                   15,000 Overtime for Renovation and Repairs on NSPIRE inspections; review/disposal of former tenants' folders

803 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS                 789,011 
Include Employee Benefits for 3 Program Coordinators; Salaries/Employee Benefits/OT/ST to be divided 
by 4 AMPs

804 ELECTRICITY 125,000                

                124,700 To include the utility cost for Toto Gardens Basketball Court

                       300 
Electricity - Reimburse Residents - To pay residents for the use of power by maintenance; 
reimbursement

805 WATER/SEWAGE 75,000                  

                  74,700 To cover increase in water rates; RSC; Toto Gardens BB Court Restroom

                       300 Water - Reimburse Residents - To pay residents for the use of water by maintenance; reimbursement

810 OFF-ISLAND TRAVEL                     5,000 

812 AUTO MAINTENANCE                   12,000 With new fleet of vehicles, preventive maintenance on vehicles is minimal

813 AUTO - GAS                   10,000 10% Projected increase in fuel prices

814 COMMUNICATION (List not all inclusive)                   22,000 

1) Totts Line (fax/alarm) - Office/Ded Satellite                        931 Tots Line (fax/alarm) for AMP4 office & Dededo Satellite - $77.58x12 (a4) = $930.96

2) Totts Line (fax/alarm) - RSC                        233 RSC-$77.58x12 = $930.96/4 AMPs = $232.75 per AMP

3) Cell Phones & MiFi: IT&E                     7,860 CELL PHONES(8) - $520*12 = $6,240; MIFI(3) - $135*12 = $1,620 = $7,860

4) Internet @ Toto/Dededo Satellite                     6,000 Internet - $250x12(t); $250x12(d) = $6,000

5) Internet @ RSC                        750 RSC-$250x12 = $3,000/4 AMPs = $750 per AMP

6) Metrolan @ Toto/Dededo Satellite                     4,800 Metrolan - $200x12(t); $200x12(d) = $4,800

7) Metrolan @ RSC                        600 RSC-$200x12 = $2,400/4 AMPs = $600 per AMP

815 COPY MACHINE (List not all inclusive)                     3,050 

                    2,700 AMP4 OFFICE - Xerox; Final Year - $2700

                       334 
RSC- Allstar Inc; 4/29/25 - 4/29/26; $99.44x12 = $1,193.28; .007 over 3000 allowance (est 
2000/mo*10mo*.007) = $140 == $1,333.28/4 AMPs = $333.32 per AMP

816 CUSTODIAL SERVICES                     5,460 
LAGU: TRASH CONTAINERS: 1 Bin @ Toto ($217x12=$2,604); 1 Bin @ Ded Elderly ($217x12=$2,604); 
1 Cardboard Box Bin @ Toto ($21x12=$252) == $5,460

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 51 of 288



Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
FY 2026 Budget

Public and Indian Housing
(Asset Management Properties)

Line Item Line Item Description Budget Amount AMP 4 Justification for FY2026 Budget

817 INSURANCE SERVICES                   40,000 Full coverage for new vehicles

825 LEGAL                     1,000 Drop by $500

827 Plumbing , Sewer Services                   40,000 Aging Infrastructure

828 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES (List not all inclusive)                  60,000 

1) Utility Allowance: Atlas; Year 2                        375 Atlas, Utility Allowance Study; Year 2; $1,500/year; $375 per AMP

2) GPD Clearances                   10,530 234 residents/applicants x 3/HH x $15 = $10,530

3) Drug Testing / In-Processing                        180 Random Drug Testing ($70x5empx4)=$1400; New Employee Processing ($90x2)=$180

4) Pest Control (Office PM)                     2,020 Office PM on Pest Control; quarterly ($505 x 4)

5) Troubleshoot Service for MIS MIS contact to troubleshoot systems, hardware, antennae

829 PROTECTIVE SERVICES (List not all inclusive)                180,000 

1) Foot Patrol @ Ded Eld ($13,436x12mo) Pending Award

2) Roaming Service ($609/wk x 26 wks) Pending Award

3) G4S - Alarm Monitoring ($360*3 areas)                     1,080 ALARM ($30x12mox3 areas)=$1,080

4) G4S - After Hour Emerg ($30*12mo)                        360 AFTER-HR ($30x12mo)=$360

5) G4S - Installation ($75/hr x 8 hrs)                        600 INSTALLATION ($75/hrx8hrs)=$600

6) G4S - Troubleshoot ($75/hr x 8 hrs)                        600 TROUBLESHOOTING ($75/hrx8hrs)=$600

830 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE                   15,000 MRI Software, Shortel, Other Software Programs

832 AUDIT                     3,000 Status Quo

833 ADVERTISING                     2,500 ADS: Open/Close WL(2ads); ACOP(3ads); PHA Plan(3ads)x$250=$2,000

831 MINOR EQUIPMENT                   15,000 Office Furniture ($5,000), Computer Hardware ($1,000), Maintenance Tools ($9,000)

831 EXPENDABLE EQUIPMENT                   60,000 Appliances ($40,000); Maintenance Equipment ($20,000)

835 COLLECTION LOSS                   75,000 STATUS QUO

839 CUSTODIAL SERVICES                     3,300 10% increase in cost of products

842 MEMBERSHIP DUES                     3,000 NAHRO; PHADA

843 MISCELLANEOUS                   10,000 Uniforms; Maintenance Gear - Office ($5,000); Maintenance ($5,000)

844 OFFICE SUPPLIES                     4,000 Increase in supply usage

845 ORDINARY MAINTENANCE & MATERIALS                 120,000 Enhancement and cost of product increase

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 52 of 288



Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
FY 2026 Budget

Public and Indian Housing
(Asset Management Properties)

Line Item Line Item Description Budget Amount AMP 4 Justification for FY2026 Budget

846 OFFICE BUILDING REPAIR & MAINTENANCE                  50,000 Interior Painting

847 POSTAGE/COURIER                     5,000 Increase in postage stamps and usage

848 PRINTING                     9,000 NSPIRE and ACOP books and  Form Replenishment

850 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS                 145,000 

1) Fire Extinguishers

2) Window Replacement

3) Consumables

4) Disposal - all areas

5) Towing

6) Grounds Maintenance: Gets - Year2

7) A/C Preventive Maintenance

8) Vehicle Repair/PM

9) Miscellaneous A4 Construction

851 STAFF TRAINING                   21,000 Apprenticeship, NSPIRE, Program, Administrative

852 SUBSCRIPTIONS                        500 NMA ACOP ($150); PIH ALERTS ($150)

854 PILOT                   30,156 

855 CAPITAL OUTLAY                 300,000 

Mailboxes for Dededo Elderly - To replace old mailboxes ($50,000)

Office Expansion - To expand AMP4 Office ($100,000)

Playground Center - To build secured playground center for children ($100,000)

Resident Services Center Supply Room - To provide storage space for RSC materials ($50,000)

862 PH FSS EXPENSE                   30,709 

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 53 of 288



Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
FY 2026 Budget

HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHERS PROGRAMS

Budget Category Budget Line Item

Housing 
Choice

Vouchers
Mainstream

Voucher

Emergency 
Housing
Voucher Grand Total

Housing Choice
Vouchers

Mainstream
Voucher

Emergency 
Housing
Voucher Grand Total

Revenue 100 Operating Receipts -$                    -$                    -$                   -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                    
101 Administrative Fees (3,236,171)      (39,868)           (173,560)        (3,449,598)         (4,164,960)         (4,164,960)      
102 Interest Income -                         -                      
103 Other Income -                         -                      
104 Grants -                         -                      
106 Subsidies - Federal -                         -                      
109 Year-end Cash Balance (1,717,047)      (166,690)        (1,883,737)         (128,084)            (128,084)         
110 Revenue - Management Fees -                         -                      
111 Revenue - Housing Assistance Payments (47,239,111)    (502,379)         (1,454,201)     (49,195,691)       (47,758,186)       (497,288)            (1,472,443)         (49,727,917)    

Revenue Total (52,192,328)    (542,246)         (1,794,451)     (54,529,026)       (52,051,230)       (497,288)            (1,472,443)         (54,020,961)    
Expenditures:
 Personnel 801 Salaries and Wages 1,517,213       1,517,213          1,584,937          1,584,937       

802 Overtime -                         -                      
803 Employee Benefits 971,939          -                      -                     971,939             1,024,889          -                         -                         1,024,889       

  Personnel Total 2,489,152       -                      -                     2,489,152          2,609,826          -                         -                         2,609,826       

 Utilities 804 Electricity 25,800            5,000              30,800               25,800               28,000                53,800            
805 Water/Sewage 2,346              -                      1,500              3,846                 2,346                 -                         5,000                  7,346              

 Utilities Total 28,146            -                      6,500              34,646               28,146               -                         33,000                61,146            

 Travel 810 Off-Island Travel 30,000            -                      -                     30,000               15,000               -                         -                         15,000            

         
 Contractual 807 Security Deposit 93,581            93,581               93,581                93,581            

812 Auto Maintenance 7,500              7,500                 6,000                 6,000              
813 Auto - Gas 30,000            500                 500                 31,000               25,900               50                      50                       26,000            
814 Communication 4,000              4,000                 3,316                 3,316              
815 Copy Machine 12,000            12,000               12,000               12,000            
816 Custodial Services 9,000              9,000                 8,800                 8,800              
817 Insurance Services 18,500            500                 500                 19,500               6,500                 6,500              
818 Storage 10,250            250                 500                 11,000               10,250               250                    500                     11,000            
820 Property Management Fee 844,200          55,717            146,891          1,046,808          844,200             55,717               146,891              1,046,808       
821 Bookkeeping Fee 236,970          2,500              6,800              246,270             225,000             2,970                 7,830                  235,800          
822 Asset Management Fee -                         -                      
824 Office Rent 144,359          144,359             144,359             144,359          
825 Legal 10,000            10,000               10,000               10,000            

FY 2026 FY 2025 Approved Budget

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 54 of 288



Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
FY 2026 Budget

HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHERS PROGRAMS

Budget Category Budget Line Item

Housing 
Choice

Vouchers
Mainstream

Voucher

Emergency 
Housing
Voucher Grand Total

Housing Choice
Vouchers

Mainstream
Voucher

Emergency 
Housing
Voucher Grand Total

FY 2026 FY 2025 Approved Budget

826 Office Equipment Maintenance 4,000              4,000                 3,000                 3,000              
827 Plumbing, Sewer Services -                      -                         -                         -                      
828 Professional Services 90,000            15,000            15,000            120,000             90,000               15,000               15,000                120,000          
829 Protective Services -                      -                         -                         -                      
830 Software Maintenance 5,000              5,000                 5,000                 5,000              
832 Audit 45,860            1,500              47,360               45,860               1,500                  47,360            
833 Advertising 18,500            -                     18,500               17,600               -                         17,600            
850 Maintenance Contratcs -                      -                         -                         -                      
851 Staff Training 65,000            500                 500                 66,000               63,500               500                    1,000                  65,000            

  Contractual Total 1,555,139       74,967            265,772          1,895,878          1,521,285          74,487               266,352              1,862,124       

 Equipment 831 Equipment -                      -                      -                     -                         -                         -                         -                         -                      

 Other 835 Collection Loss 2,500              100                 100                 2,700                 -                      
836 Computer Services 14,000            14,000               -                      
839 Custodial Supplies 2,500              100                 100                 2,700                 1,760                 1,760              
842 Membership Dues 5,000              5,000                 5,000                 5,000              
843 Miscellaneous 24,000            500                 500                 25,000               24,000               500                     24,500            
844 Office Supplies 20,500            1,000              500                 22,000               16,500               100                    500                     17,100            
845 Ordinary Maintenance & Materials -                         -                      
846 Office Building Repair & Maintenance 50,000            1,000              1,000              52,000               5,000                 5,000              
847 Postage/Courier 28,000            500                 500                 29,000               25,000               25,000            
848 Printing 25,000            500                 500                 26,000               10,500               500                    500                     11,500            
852 Subscriptions 1,500              1,500                 1,500                 1,500              
854 Payment in lieu of taxes (PILOT) -                         -                      
860 Portability Admin Fees 29,527            2,921              32,448               29,527               29,527            
861 Portability In -                         -                      
862 PH FSS Expense -                      -                      -                     -                         -                         -                         -                         -                      

  Other Total 202,527          3,700              6,121              212,348             118,787             600                    1,500                  120,887          

Capital Outlays 855 Capital Outlays -                      -                      -                     -                         -                         -                         -                         -                      

Loan Payments 857 Loan Payments -                      -                      -                     -                         -                         -                         -                         -                      

Housing Assistance Payments 859 Housing Assistance Payments 47,887,364     463,579          1,516,059       49,867,001        47,758,186        422,201             1,171,592           49,351,979     

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 55 of 288



Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
FY 2026 Budget

HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHERS PROGRAMS

Budget Category Budget Line Item

Housing 
Choice

Vouchers
Mainstream

Voucher

Emergency 
Housing
Voucher Grand Total

Housing Choice
Vouchers

Mainstream
Voucher

Emergency 
Housing
Voucher Grand Total

FY 2026 FY 2025 Approved Budget

Expenditures Total 52,192,328     542,246          1,794,451       54,529,026        52,051,230        497,288             1,472,444           54,020,962     

(Surplus) Deficit -$                    -$                    -$                   -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                    

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 56 of 288



Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
FY 2026 Budget

HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHERS PROGRAMS

Budget Category Budget Line Item

Revenue 100 Operating Receipts
101 Administrative Fees
102 Interest Income
103 Other Income
104 Grants
106 Subsidies - Federal
109 Year-end Cash Balance
110 Revenue - Management Fees
111 Revenue - Housing Assistance Payments

Revenue Total
Expenditures:
 Personnel 801 Salaries and Wages

802 Overtime
803 Employee Benefits

  Personnel Total

 Utilities 804 Electricity
805 Water/Sewage

 Utilities Total

 Travel 810 Off-Island Travel

 
 Contractual 807 Security Deposit

812 Auto Maintenance
813 Auto - Gas
814 Communication
815 Copy Machine
816 Custodial Services
817 Insurance Services
818 Storage
820 Property Management Fee
821 Bookkeeping Fee
822 Asset Management Fee
824 Office Rent
825 Legal

Housing Choice
Vouchers

Mainstream
Voucher

Emergency 
Housing
Voucher Grand Total

Housing 
Choice

Vouchers
Mainstream

Voucher

Emergency 
Housing
Voucher Grand Total

-$                       -$                       -$                     -$                      -$                   -$                   -$                      -$                       
(2,427,128)         (36,671)              (130,170)          (2,593,969)        (1,737,832)     36,671           130,170            (1,570,991)         

-                        -                     -                     -                        -                         
(125,316)            (7,565)              (132,881)           (125,316)        -                     (7,565)               (132,881)            

-                        -                     -                     -                        -                         
-                        -                     -                     -                        -                         

(2,354,181)         (129,329)            (213,097)          (2,696,607)        (2,226,097)     (129,329)        (213,097)           (2,568,523)         
-                        -                     -                     -                        -                         

(35,429,333)       (376,784)            (1,090,651)       (36,896,768)      (12,328,853)   (120,504)        (381,792)           (12,831,149)       
(40,335,958)       (542,784)            (1,441,483)       (42,320,225)      (16,418,098)   (213,162)        (472,284)           (17,103,544)       

1,045,403          1,888               1,047,291         539,534         -                     (1,888)               537,646              
883                    883                   (883)               -                     -                        (883)                   

455,586             -                         -                       455,586            569,303         -                     -                        569,303              

1,501,872          -                         1,888               1,503,760         1,107,954      -                     (1,888)               1,106,066           

30,000               1,029               31,029              (4,200)            -                     26,971              22,771                
1,389                 -                         363                  1,752                957                -                     4,637                5,594                  

31,389               -                         1,392               32,781              (3,243)            -                     31,608              28,365                

1,036                 -                         -                       1,036                13,964           -                     -                        13,964                

        
4,042               4,042                -                     -                     89,539              89,539                

2,845                      2,845                3,155             -                     -                        3,155                  
-                         -                        25,900           50                  50                     26,000                

9,755                 9,755                (6,439)            -                     -                        (6,439)                
4,848                 4,848                7,152             -                     -                        7,152                  

15,723               15,723              (6,923)            -                     -                        (6,923)                
4,231                 4,231                2,269             -                     -                        2,269                  
6,761                 6,761                3,489             250                500                   4,239                  

552,413             6,691                 19,515             578,619            291,787         49,026           127,376            468,189              
171,788             1,815                 5,070               178,673            53,212           1,155             2,760                57,127                

-                        -                     -                     -                        -                         
1,630                 1,630                142,729         -                     -                        142,729              

-                        10,000           -                     -                        10,000                

FY 2025 Actual (06-30-2025) FY 2025 Budget-to-Actual (06-30-25)

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 57 of 288



Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
FY 2026 Budget

HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHERS PROGRAMS

Budget Category Budget Line Item

826 Office Equipment Maintenance
827 Plumbing, Sewer Services
828 Professional Services
829 Protective Services
830 Software Maintenance
832 Audit
833 Advertising
850 Maintenance Contratcs
851 Staff Training

  Contractual Total

 Equipment 831 Equipment

 Other 835 Collection Loss
836 Computer Services
839 Custodial Supplies
842 Membership Dues
843 Miscellaneous
844 Office Supplies
845 Ordinary Maintenance & Materials
846 Office Building Repair & Maintenance
847 Postage/Courier
848 Printing
852 Subscriptions
854 Payment in lieu of taxes (PILOT)
860 Portability Admin Fees
861 Portability In
862 PH FSS Expense

  Other Total

Capital Outlays 855 Capital Outlays

Loan Payments 857 Loan Payments

Housing Assistance Payments 859 Housing Assistance Payments

Housing Choice
Vouchers

Mainstream
Voucher

Emergency 
Housing
Voucher Grand Total

Housing 
Choice

Vouchers
Mainstream

Voucher

Emergency 
Housing
Voucher Grand Total

FY 2025 Actual (06-30-2025) FY 2025 Budget-to-Actual (06-30-25)

-                        3,000             -                     -                        3,000                  
-                        -                     -                     -                        -                         

16,086               16,086              73,914           15,000           15,000              103,914              
-                        -                     -                     -                        -                         

55,974               55,974              (50,974)          -                     -                        (50,974)              
-                        45,860           -                     1,500                47,360                

8,710                 8,710                8,890             -                     -                        8,890                  
-                         -                        -                     -                     -                        -                         

15,794               -                         -                       15,794              47,706           500                1,000                49,206                

866,558             8,506                 28,627             903,691            654,727         65,981           237,725            958,433              

63,016               -                         -                       63,016              (63,016)          -                     -                        (63,016)              

-                        -                     -                     -                        -                         
41                      41                     (41)                 -                     -                        (41)                     

1,080                 1,080                680                -                     -                        680                     
-                        5,000             -                     -                        5,000                  

7,404                 243                  7,647                16,596           -                     257                   16,853                
29,263               29,263              (12,763)          100                500                   (12,163)              

-                        -                     -                     -                        -                         
474                    474                   4,526             -                     -                        4,526                  

18,722               18,722              6,278             -                     -                        6,278                  
13,921               13,921              (3,421)            500                500                   (2,421)                

-                        1,500             -                     -                        1,500                  
-                        -                     -                     -                        -                         

33,154               430                  33,584              (3,627)            -                     (430)                  (4,057)                
-                        -                     -                     -                        -                         

-                         -                         -                       -                        -                     -                     -                        -                         

104,059             -                         673                  104,732            14,728           600                827                   16,155                

369,800             -                         -                       369,800            (369,800)        -                     -                        (369,800)            

-                         -                         -                       -                        -                     -                     -                        -                         

35,915,523        347,684             1,137,044        37,400,251       11,842,663    74,517           34,548              11,951,728         

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 58 of 288



Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
FY 2026 Budget

HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHERS PROGRAMS

Budget Category Budget Line Item

Expenditures Total

(Surplus) Deficit

Housing Choice
Vouchers

Mainstream
Voucher

Emergency 
Housing
Voucher Grand Total

Housing 
Choice

Vouchers
Mainstream

Voucher

Emergency 
Housing
Voucher Grand Total

FY 2025 Actual (06-30-2025) FY 2025 Budget-to-Actual (06-30-25)

38,853,253        356,190             1,169,624        40,379,067       13,197,977    141,098         302,820            13,641,895         

(1,482,705)$       (186,594)$          (271,859)$        (1,941,158)$      (3,220,121)$   (72,064)$        (169,464)$         (3,461,649)$       

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 59 of 288



Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
FY 2026 Budget

Supportive Housing for the Elderly

Budget Category Budget Line Item

Supportive
Housing

for the Elderly
Guma

Trankilidat

Multi-Family
Housing Service

Coordinator
(MFSC)

Grand Total

Supportive
Housing

for the Elderly
Guma

Trankilidat

Multi-Family
Housing Service

Coordinator
(MFSC)

Grand Total

Revenue 100 Operating Receipts -$                                    -$                             -$                                 -$                            
101 Administrative Fees -                               -                              
102 Interest Income (100)                          (100)                        (100)                           (100)                        
103 Other Income (2,200)                       (2,200)                     (2,200)                        (2,200)                    
104 Grants (77,806)                          (77,806)                   (75,393)                       (75,393)                  
106 Subsidies - Federal (879,648)                  (879,648)                (879,648)                    (879,648)                
109 Year-end Cash Balance (201,068)                  (201,068)                (112,148)                    (112,148)                
110 Revenue - Management Fees -                               -                              
111 Revenue - Housing Assistance Payments -                           -                               -                               -                            -                             -                              

Revenue Total (1,083,016)           (77,806)                    (1,160,822)         (994,096)               (75,393)                  (1,069,490)        
Expenditures:
 Personnel 801 Salaries and Wages 115,543                    43,858                            159,401                  115,543                     39,915                        155,458                 

802 Overtime 2,400                        2,400                      2,400                         2,400                      
803 Employee Benefits 103,249                    26,083                            129,332                  103,249                     29,397                        132,646                 

  Personnel Total 221,192               69,941                     291,133             221,192                69,312                   290,504             

 Utilities 804 Electricity 176,955                    176,955                  180,000                     180,000                 
805 Water/Sewage 80,000                      -                                      80,000                    80,000                       -                                   80,000                   

 Utilities Total 256,955                    -                                      256,955                  260,000                     -                                   260,000                 

 Travel 810 Off-Island Travel 5,000                   5,000                       10,000                    5,000                    3,226                     8,226                      

       
 Contractual 807 Security Deposit -                               -                              

812 Auto Maintenance 1,500                        1,500                      1,000                         1,000                      
813 Auto - Gas 3,000                        3,000                      3,000                         3,000                      
814 Communication 5,000                        5,000                      5,000                         5,000                      
815 Copy Machine -                               -                              
816 Custodial Services 16,000                      16,000                    16,000                       16,000                   
817 Insurance Services 4,100                        4,100                      6,100                         6,100                      
818 Storage -                               -                              
820 Property Management Fee 50,568                      50,568                    48,216                       48,216                   
821 Bookkeeping Fee 4,000                        4,000                      -                              
822 Asset Management Fee -                               -                              
824 Office Rent -                               -                              
825 Legal 3,000                        3,000                      3,000                         3,000                      
826 Office Equipment Maintenance 2,000                        2,000                      -                              
827 Plumbing, Sewer Services 5,000                        5,000                      5,000                         5,000                      
828 Professional Services 11,277                      11,277                    7,900                         7,900                      
829 Protective Services 95,055                      95,055                    45,000                       45,000                   
830 Software Maintenance 5,000                        5,000                      5,000                         5,000                      
832 Audit 1,000                        1,000                      1,000                         1,000                      

FY 2026 FY 2025 Approved Budget

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 60 of 288



Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
FY 2026 Budget

Supportive Housing for the Elderly

Budget Category Budget Line Item

Supportive
Housing

for the Elderly
Guma

Trankilidat

Multi-Family
Housing Service

Coordinator
(MFSC)

Grand Total

Supportive
Housing

for the Elderly
Guma

Trankilidat

Multi-Family
Housing Service

Coordinator
(MFSC)

Grand Total

FY 2026 FY 2025 Approved Budget

833 Advertising 5,000                        5,000                      3,200                         3,200                      
850 Maintenance Contratcs 30,376                      30,376                    2,000                         2,000                      
851 Staff Training 5,000                   1,020                       6,020                      -                            1,020                     1,020                      

  Contractual Total 246,876               1,020                       247,896             151,416                1,020                     152,436             

 Equipment 831 Equipment 11,062                 -                               11,062                    14,557                  -                             14,557                   

 Other 835 Collection Loss -                               -                              
836 Computer Services -                               -                              
839 Custodial Supplies -                               -                              
842 Membership Dues 1,000                        250                                 1,250                      1,000                         1,000                      
843 Miscellaneous 1,200                        1,200                      1,200                         835                              2,035                      
844 Office Supplies 1,600                        1,000                              2,600                      1,600                         1,000                           2,600                      
845 Ordinary Maintenance & Materials 10,000                      10,000                    10,000                       10,000                   
846 Office Building Repair & Maintenance -                               -                              
847 Postage/Courier 1,300                        1,300                      1,300                         1,300                      
848 Printing 200                           200                         200                             200                         
852 Subscriptions 150                           595                                 745                         150                             150                         
854 Payment in lieu of taxes (PILOT) -                               -                              
860 Portability Admin Fees -                               -                              
862 PH FSS Expense -                           -                               -                               -                            -                             -                              

  Other Total 15,450                 1,845                       17,295               15,450                  1,835                     17,285               

Capital Outlays 855 Capital Outlays 200,000               -                               200,000             200,000                -                             200,000             

Loan Payments 857 Loan Payments 126,480               -                               126,480             126,480                -                             126,480             

Housing Assistance Payments 859 Housing Assistance Payments -                           -                               -                         -                            -                             -                        

Expenditures Total 1,083,016            77,806                     1,160,822          994,096                75,393                   1,069,490          

(Surplus) Deficit -$                         -$                             -$                       -$                          -$                           -$                      

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 61 of 288



Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
FY 2026 Budget

Supportive Housing for the Elderly

Budget Category Budget Line Item

Revenue 100 Operating Receipts
101 Administrative Fees
102 Interest Income
103 Other Income
104 Grants
106 Subsidies - Federal
109 Year-end Cash Balance
110 Revenue - Management Fees
111 Revenue - Housing Assistance Payments

Revenue Total
Expenditures:
 Personnel 801 Salaries and Wages

802 Overtime
803 Employee Benefits

  Personnel Total

 Utilities 804 Electricity
805 Water/Sewage

 Utilities Total

 Travel 810 Off-Island Travel

 
 Contractual 807 Security Deposit

812 Auto Maintenance
813 Auto - Gas
814 Communication
815 Copy Machine
816 Custodial Services
817 Insurance Services
818 Storage
820 Property Management Fee
821 Bookkeeping Fee
822 Asset Management Fee
824 Office Rent
825 Legal
826 Office Equipment Maintenance
827 Plumbing, Sewer Services
828 Professional Services
829 Protective Services
830 Software Maintenance
832 Audit

Supportive
Housing

for the Elderly
Guma

Trankilidat

Multi-Family
Housing Service

Coordinator
(MFSC)

Grand Total

Supportive
Housing

for the Elderly
Guma

Trankilidat

Multi-Family
Housing Service

Coordinator
(MFSC)

Grand Total

(112,430)$               -$                                         (112,430)$            (112,430)$                 -$                                  (112,430)$            
-                            -                                  -                                    -                             

(95)                           (95)                        5                                 -                                    5                            
(2,674)                      (2,674)                  (474)                           -                                    (474)                      

(19,225)                               (19,225)                -                                  (56,168)                        (56,168)                 
(538,749)                 (538,749)              340,899                     -                                    340,899                

-                            112,148                     -                                    112,148                
-                            -                                  -                                    -                             

-                          -                                   -                            -                            -                              -                       

(653,948)             (19,225)                        (673,173)          340,148                (56,168)                   283,980            

101,643                   30,784                                132,427               13,900                       9,131                            23,031                  
-                                -                            2,400                         -                                    2,400                    

44,695                     15,733                                60,428                 58,554                       -                                    58,554                  
146,338              46,517                         192,855           74,854                  9,131                      83,985              

124,132                   124,132               55,868                       -                                    55,868                  
42,528                     -                                           42,528                 37,472                       -                                    37,472                  

166,660                   -                                           166,660               93,340                       -                                    93,340                  

-                          -                                   -                            5,000                         3,226                            8,226                

      
-                            -                                  -                                    -                             

127                          127                       873                             -                                    873                       
-                                -                            3,000                         -                                    3,000                    

2,964                       2,964                    2,036                         -                                    2,036                    
-                                -                            -                                  -                                    -                             

11,907                     11,907                 4,093                         -                                    4,093                    
4                               4                           6,096                         -                                    6,096                    
-                                -                            -                                  -                                    -                             

33,930                     33,930                 14,286                       -                                    14,286                  
4,785                       4,785                    (4,785)                        -                                    (4,785)                   

-                                -                            -                                  -                                    -                             
-                                -                            -                                  -                                    -                             
-                                -                            3,000                         -                                    3,000                    
-                                -                            -                                  -                                    -                             

6,190                       6,190                    (1,190)                        -                                    (1,190)                   
465                          465                       7,435                         -                                    7,435                    

5,163                       5,163                    39,837                       -                                    39,837                  
3,949                       3,949                    1,051                         -                                    1,051                    

-                                -                            1,000                         -                                    1,000                    

FY 2025 Actuals (06-30-2025) FY 2025 Budget-to-Actual (06-30-2025)

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 62 of 288



Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
FY 2026 Budget

Supportive Housing for the Elderly

Budget Category Budget Line Item

833 Advertising
850 Maintenance Contratcs
851 Staff Training

  Contractual Total

 Equipment 831 Equipment

 Other 835 Collection Loss
836 Computer Services
839 Custodial Supplies
842 Membership Dues
843 Miscellaneous
844 Office Supplies
845 Ordinary Maintenance & Materials
846 Office Building Repair & Maintenance
847 Postage/Courier
848 Printing
852 Subscriptions
854 Payment in lieu of taxes (PILOT)
860 Portability Admin Fees
862 PH FSS Expense

  Other Total

Capital Outlays 855 Capital Outlays

Loan Payments 857 Loan Payments

Housing Assistance Payments 859 Housing Assistance Payments

Expenditures Total

(Surplus) Deficit

Supportive
Housing

for the Elderly
Guma

Trankilidat

Multi-Family
Housing Service

Coordinator
(MFSC)

Grand Total

Supportive
Housing

for the Elderly
Guma

Trankilidat

Multi-Family
Housing Service

Coordinator
(MFSC)

Grand Total

FY 2025 Actuals (06-30-2025) FY 2025 Budget-to-Actual (06-30-2025)

1,487                       1,487                    1,713                         -                                    1,713                    
18,809                     18,809                 (16,809)                      -                                    (16,809)                 
1,887                  -                                   1,887                    (1,887)                   1,020                      (867)                 

91,667                -                                   91,667             59,749                  1,020                      60,769              

7,152                  -                                   7,152                    7,405                    -                              7,405                

-                                -                            -                                  -                                    -                             
4                               4                           (4)                                -                                    (4)                           

-                            -                                  -                                    -                             
-                                -                            1,000                         -                                    1,000                    

2,298                       2,298                    (1,098)                        835                               (263)                      
1,291                       1,291                    309                             1,000                            1,309                    
6,732                       6,732                    3,268                         -                                    3,268                    

-                            -                                  -                                    -                             
53                             53                         1,247                         -                                    1,247                    

-                            200                             -                                    200                       
199                          199                       (49)                             -                                    (49)                        

-                            -                                  -                                    -                             
-                            -                                  -                                    -                             

-                          -                                   -                            -                            -                              -                       

10,578                -                                   10,578             4,872                    1,835                      6,707                

-                          -                                   -                       200,000                -                              200,000            

94,860                -                                   94,860             31,620                  -                              31,620              

-                          -                                   -                       -                            -                              -                       

517,255              46,517                         563,772           476,840                15,212                    492,052            

(136,693)$           27,292$                       (109,401)$        816,988$              (40,956)$                 776,032$          

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 63 of 288



Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
FY 2026 Budget

Supportive Housing for the Elderly

Line Item Line Item Description Budget Amount Supportive Housing for the Elderly Justification for FY 2026 Budget

804 ELECTRICITY 176,955                              

805 WATER/SEWAGE 80,000                                

810 TRAVEL OFF-ISLAND 5,000                                  

812 AUTO MAINT 1,500                                  Auto repair, Oil change (maintenance), tire repair/replacement & rotation 

813 AUTO GAS 3,000                                  24 hours vehicle/ after hrs emergency respond / increase in fuel price

814 COMMUNICATION 5,000                                  

816 CUSTODIAL SERVICES 16,000                                Garbage Disposal Service Fees Contract IFB: GHURA-COCC-021-008 $1302 p/m

817 INSURANCE 4,100                                  

820 MANAGEMENT FEES-COCC 50,568                                FY2026 Anticipated increase fr: $82 to $86 ($86 per UML x 49 x12mos) 

821 BOOKKEEPING FEES 4,000                                  FY2026 Anticipated bookkeeping fees

825 LEGAL & ATTY FEES/COURT COSTS 3,000                                  

826 Office Equipment 2,000                                  9000-12000btu Split AC unit & office paper shedder

827 Pluming Services 5,000                                  Plumbing services GT holding tank ,units and sewer lines

828 Professional Services 11,277                                

GPD clr $15per Adult (residents x52)+(applicants x15)=$1005 / Employee drug test $34 per person 
x2x4qtr=$272 / Office AC unit maintenance & parts $1000/ Termites and Pest Control Services $1000 /  
Rent Reasonable Study $8000

829 Protective Services 95,055                                

G4S - Intrusion Monitoring $30mo x 12= $360yr / After Hrs Answering Services $30mo x 12 = $360yr / 
Alarm System Troubleshooting repairs or replacements of alarm system unit $75 hrly rate x 2 = $150yr 
/ Stationary Security Guard (weekends only from 6pm Fridays to 6am Mondays, and including 
Holidays) $7,848.75 monthly x 12 = $94,185 annually

830 Software Maintenance 5,000                                  Included: Software - Rent Payment; Winten2 &, ADP, etc.

831 Minor Equipment 11,062                                

Water heaters ($474x10) $4740 / GT Maintenance Tools $800 / washer ($2011 x 2) = $4022 / dryer 
($1500 x 1) = $1500                                                   

832 Audit 1,000                                  

833 Advertising 5,000                                  Open/Close Waitlist / Tenant Selection Plan / Management Plan / Lease & House Rules / BID notices

842 Membership Dues 1,000                                  

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 64 of 288



Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
FY 2026 Budget

Supportive Housing for the Elderly

Line Item Line Item Description Budget Amount Supportive Housing for the Elderly Justification for FY 2026 Budget

843 Misc. &BANK FEES 1,200                                  

Transaction fees for rent payment $.75 (per transaction/per mo)=$441.00 / Charge back fees (invalid acct 
$25, no acct $25, NSF$30, & blocked acct. $75 - per transaction) est. $200.00 and other related bank 
fees

844 Office Supplies 1,600                                  Pens, laser & copier ink, paper, folders (resident/applicants), boxes (terminated and dummy files) 

845 Ordinary Maintenance & Materials 10,000                                Maintenance consumable materials/supplies

847 Postage/Courier 1,300                                  Waitlist, Certified Mail, & Move-outs Invoices.

848 Printing 200                                     Applications, pamphlets/brochures & forms

850 Rental/Equipment Repair (Maint. Contract) 30,376                                

Small engine repairs $1000 (bushcutter, chainsaws, riding mower, etc.), equipment rentals (water 
blasters, generators, etc.)  GROUNDS MAINT. $2448 p/m = $29,376        

851 Staff Training 5,000                                  
GT PSM & Service Coordinator - Supervision & Management/PHAS/NSPIRE/Eligibility, Occupancy & Rent 
Certifications; MAINTENANCE: PHAS, NSPIRE, CORE, SAFETY, HVAC, PESTICIDE - CERTIFICATIONS

852 Subscription 150                                     NMA $47.80 & PIH ALERTS $83.80 SUBSCRIPTION

855 Captial Outlay 200,000                              

857 Loan Payable 126,480                              

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 65 of 288



Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
FY 2026 Budget

Capital Fund Program

Budget Category Budget Line Item GQ501-22 GQ501-23 GQ501-22HR GQ501-24 GQ501-25 Grand Total GQ501-21 GQ501-22 GQ501-23 GQ501-24 Grand Total

Revenue 100 Operating Receipts -                       -                       -                     -                     -                     -                     
101 Administrative Fees -                       -                     
102 Interest Income -                       -                     
103 Other Income -                       -                     
104 Grants -                       -                     
106 Subsidies - Federal (284,481)         (1,695,266)         (5,000,000)         (2,525,615)          (1,700,156)         (11,205,518)         (500,000)              (1,970,895)         (2,815,711)         (1,000,000)         (6,286,607)         
109 Year-end Cash Balance -                       -                     
110 Revenue - Management Fees -                       -                     
111 Revenue - Housing Assistance Payments -                  -                      -                     -                      -                     -                       -                       -                     -                     -                     -                     

Revenue Total (284,481)         (1,695,266)         (5,000,000)         (2,525,615)          (1,700,156)         (11,205,518)         (500,000)              (1,970,895)         (2,815,711)         (1,000,000)         (6,286,607)         
Expenditures:
 Personnel 801 Salaries and Wages 86,631                86,631                86,632               259,894               61,164                 61,164               61,164               183,493             

802 Overtime 500                     500                     500                    1,500                   1,000                   1,000                 1,000                 3,000                 
803 Employee Benefits -                  58,930                -                     58,930                58,930               176,790               52,672                 52,672               52,672               -                     158,016             

  Personnel Total -                  146,061              -                     146,061              146,062             438,184               114,836               114,836             114,836             -                     344,509             

 Utilities 804 Electricity -                       -                     
805 Water/Sewage -                  -                      -                     -                      -                     -                       -                       -                     -                     -                     -                     

 Utilities Total -                  -                      -                     -                      -                     -                       -                       -                     -                     -                     -                     

 Travel 810 Off-Island Travel -                  -                      -                     -                      -                     -                       -                       10,000               -                     -                     10,000               

          
 Contractual 807 Security Deposit -                       -                     

812 Auto Maintenance 250                     -                     250                      -                       250                    -                     250                    
813 Auto - Gas 250                     -                     250                      -                       250                    -                     250                    
814 Communication -                       -                     
815 Copy Machine -                       -                       100                    100                    
816 Custodial Services -                       -                     
817 Insurance Services -                       -                     
818 Storage 1,000                  1,000                   -                     
820 Property Management Fee -                       -                     
821 Bookkeeping Fee -                       -                     
822 Asset Management Fee 30,000                30,000                30,000               90,000                 63,000               63,000               
824 Office Rent -                       -                     
825 Legal -                  -                     -                       -                       250                    -                     250                    
826 Office Equipment Maintenance -                       -                     
827 Plumbing, Sewer Services -                       -                     
828 Professional Services -                  250                     250                      -                       -                     
829 Protective Services -                       -                     
830 Software Maintenance -                  -                     -                       -                       250                    -                     250                    
832 Audit 750                     750                      750                    750                    
833 Advertising -                  4,000                  4,000                  4,000                 12,000                 -                       -                     
850 Maintenance Contratcs -                       -                     
851 Staff Training -                  5,000                  -                     100,000              -                     105,000               -                       5,000                 10,000               -                     15,000               

  Contractual Total -                  41,500                -                     134,000              34,000               209,500               -                       69,850               10,000               -                     79,850               

FY 2025 Approved budgetFY 2026

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 66 of 288



Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
FY 2026 Budget

Capital Fund Program

Budget Category Budget Line Item GQ501-22 GQ501-23 GQ501-22HR GQ501-24 GQ501-25 Grand Total GQ501-21 GQ501-22 GQ501-23 GQ501-24 Grand Total

FY 2025 Approved budgetFY 2026

 Equipment 831 Equipment (MOD laptop, display board and vehicle) -                  -                      -                     -                      70,000               70,000                 -                       -                     -                     -                     -                     

 Other 835 Collection Loss -                       -                     
836 Computer Services -                       -                     
839 Custodial Supplies -                       500                    500                    
842 Membership Dues -                  100                     -                     100                      -                       100                    -                     -                     100                    
843 Miscellaneous -                  2,000                  2,000                   -                       25,000               20,000               -                     45,000               
844 Office Supplies -                  2,000                  2,000                   -                       1,000                 1,000                 
845 Ordinary Maintenance & Materials -                       -                     
846 Office Building Repair & Maintenance -                  -                     -                       -                       -                     -                     
847 Postage/Courier -                  100                     100                      -                       100                    100                    
848 Printing -                  1,000                  1,000                   -                       1,000                 1,000                 
852 Subscriptions -                       -                     
854 Payment in lieu of taxes (PILOT) -                       -                     
860 Portability Admin Fees -                       -                     
862 PH FSS Expense -                  -                      -                     -                      -                     -                       -                       -                     -                     -                     -                     

  Other Total -                  5,200                  -                     -                      -                     5,200                   -                       27,700               20,000               -                     47,700               

Capital Outlays 855 Capital Outlays 284,481          1,502,505           5,000,000          2,245,554           1,450,094          10,482,634          385,164               1,748,509          2,670,875          1,000,000          5,804,548          

Loan Payments 857 Loan Payments -                  -                      -                     -                      -                     -                       -                       -                     -                     -                     -                     

Housing Assistance Payments 859 Housing Assistance Payments -                  -                      -                     -                      -                     -                       -                       -                     -                     -                     -                     

Expenditures Total 284,481          1,695,266           5,000,000          2,525,615           1,700,156          11,205,518          500,000               1,970,895          2,815,711          1,000,000          6,286,607          

(Surplus) Deficit -                  -                      -                     -                      -                     -                       -                       -                     -                     -                     -                     

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 67 of 288



Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
FY 2026 Budget

Capital Fund Program

Line Item Line Item Description Capital Fund Project Justification for FY2026 Budget
GQ501-22 GQ501-23 GQ501-22HR GQ501-24 GQ501-25

801 Salaries and Wages 86,631                        86,631                   86,632                Include employee salaries for 2 Program coordinators and 1 Accountant
802 Overtime 500                             500                        500                     

803 Employee Benefits 58,930                        58,930                   58,930                Include employee salaries for 2 Program coordinators and 1 Accountant
812 Auto Maintenance 250                             

813 Auto - Gas 250                             

818 Storage  - MOD direct cost 1,000                          Storage of boxes to Bradley building
822 Asset Management Fee (all COCC indirect cost) 30,000                        30,000                   30,000                Increase the rate from $7.5 to $10 per unit

 1) Electricity and Water

 2) Bank fees, ADP fee and service charge

 3) Communication 

 4) Copy Machine - base and billable prints

 5) Custodial sevices - trash bin pickup and office cleaning

 6) Insurance

 7) Professional services - drug testing / in-processing, MIS troubleshoot service

 8) Protective services - main office alarm monitoring

 9) Software maintenance 

10) Membership dues - NAHRO, PHADA, AGA

11) Maintenance contracts - generator, fire extinguisher

12) Legal

13) Postage/courier

14) Miscelleneous

15) Office supplies

16) Advertising

17) Subscription

18) Printing

825 Legal - MOD direct cost

828 Professional services - MOD direct cost 250                             Random drug testing to MOD personnel
831 Equipment - MOD laptop,  display board, MOD vehicle 70,000                

 1) Computer/Laptop (1 laptop x $2,500)

 2) Promethean Boards (1x $15,000 big) and small (1*7,500)

 3) Vehicle - 1 SUV for MOD ($45,000)

832 Audit - CFP Closeout (1480 account) 750                             CFP closeout audit fee
833 Advertising - 1410 account (2,000) and 1480 account (10,000) - MOD Direct cost 4,000                          4,000                     4,000                  PHA Plan, CFP 5 Year action plan, ads related to projects
842 Membership dues - MOD direct cost 100                             AGA membership fee
843 Miscellaneous - MOD direct cost 2,000                          Uniform
844 Office supplies - MOD direct cost 2,000                          Storage boxes, MOD office supplies
847 Postage/courier- MOD direct cost 100                             postage stamps
848 Printing - MOD direct cost 1,000                          CFP Flyers
851 Staff Training - MOD direct cost and 1408 management improvement

  1) Staff training - 1410 account 5,000                          AGA training, procurement and CFP training
  2) Management improvement (1408 account) 100,000                  On island  AMPs and MOD training based on audit findings

855 CAPITAL OUTLAY PROJECTIONS

 1) A/E Salaries & Benefits 40,581                     298,436                      

 2) IFB GHURA-24-004 RENO & UPGRADE OF BASKETBALL COURT & GENERATOR 243,900                   

 3) IFB GHURA-25-012 MOD#2 429,032                      

 4) IFB GHURA-25-007 MOD 8 (AMPs 2 & 3) 325,037                      

 5) MOD5 (111AATD, 111BATD, 2RDA8, 30BPAQ, 10RDA8) + MOD10 (A&E working on SOW) 400,000                      

 6) Fiscal Renovation (1406 account) 50,000                        

 7) RADON - Education, Testing, Mitigation, Retesting (All AMPs) 4,000,000             

 8) MOLD, MILDEW - Testing, Mitigation (All AMPs) 1,000,000             

 9) IFB GHURA-25-008 Replacement of Typhoon Shutters - AMP 3 1,486,708               

10) IFB GHURA-25-006 Property Boundaries Fence Replacement & Upgrades at Toto Garden 478,246                  

11) IFB GHURA-25-009 Backup generator at Amp 4 118,000                  

12) IFB GHURA-24-004 RENO & UPGRADE OF BASKETBALL COURT & GENERATOR (Change order #1) 162,600                  Increase from 1,010,000 to 1,172,600)
13) A/E consultant - LBP Abatement 100,000              

14) Anti-drug (ESSG ) (1406 account) 50,000                

15) Water Blasting and Exterior Painting  (All AMPs) - projected 484,760              

16) Roof Waterblasting, Concrete Repair, Coating (All AMPs except Yona) -projected 400,000              

17) Thermal Insulation & Moisture Protection - All AMPs - projected 260,334              

18) LBP Removal/Abatement (All AMPs) 155,000              

Budget Amount

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 68 of 288



Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
FY 2026 Budget

Community Development

Budget Category Budget Line Item HOME HOME ARP HTF Grant Total HOME HOME ARP HTF Grant Total

Revenue 100 Operating Receipts -$                   -$                  -$                    -$                       -$                  -$                    -$                   -$                   
101 Administrative Fees -                     -                    -                      -                         -                    -                      -                     -                     
102 Interest Income (119,468)        -                    -                      (119,468)            (119,468)       -                      -                     (119,468)        
103 Other Income -                     -                    -                      -                         -                    -                      -                     -                     
104 Grants (9,009,600)     (3,299,307)    (559,921)         (12,868,828)       (9,755,334)    (3,299,307)      (580,561)        (13,635,202)   
106 Subsidies - Federal -                     -                    -                      -                         -                    -                      -                     -                     
109 Year-end Cash Balance -                     -                    -                      -                         -                    -                      -                     -                     
110 Revenue - Management Fees -                     -                    -                      -                         -                    -                      -                     -                     
111 Revenue - Housing Assistance Payments -                     -                    -                      -                         -                    -                      -                     -                     

Revenue Total (9,129,068)     (3,299,307)    (559,921)         (12,988,296)       (9,874,802)    (3,299,307)      (580,561)        (13,754,670)   
Expenditures:
 Personnel 801 Salaries and Wages 516,762          109,155        207,523          833,441             469,784        99,232            18,866           587,882          

802 Overtime -                     -                    -                      -                         -                    -                      -                     -                     
803 Employee Benefits 279,634          60,636          11,032            351,303             254,213        55,124            10,029           319,366          

  Personnel Total 796,397          169,792        218,555          1,184,743          723,997        154,356          28,895           907,248          

 Utilities 804 Electricity 6,600              -                    -                      6,600                 6,000            -                      -                     6,000              
805 Water/Sewage 330                 -                    -                      330                    300               -                      -                     300                 

 Utilities Total 6,930              -                    -                      6,930                 6,300            -                      -                     6,300              

 Travel 810 Off-Island Travel -                     -                    -                      -                         -                    -                      -                     -                     

     
 Contractual 807 Security Deposit -                     -                    -                      -                         -                    -                      -                     -                     

812 Auto Maintenance -                     -                    -                      -                         -                    -                      -                     -                     
813 Auto - Gas 110                 -                    -                      110                    100               -                      -                     100                 
814 Communication -                     -                    -                      -                         -                    -                      -                     -                     
815 Copy Machine -                     -                    -                      -                         -                    -                      -                     -                     
816 Custodial Services -                     -                    -                      -                         -                    -                      -                     -                     
817 Insurance Services 1,320              -                    -                      1,320                 1,200            -                      -                     1,200              
818 Storage -                     -                    -                      -                         -                    -                      -                     -                     
820 Property Management Fee -                     -                    -                      -                         -                    -                      -                     -                     
821 Bookkeeping Fee -                     -                    -                      -                         -                    -                      -                     -                     
822 Asset Management Fee -                     -                    -                      -                         -                    -                      -                     -                     
824 Office Rent -                     -                    -                      -                         -                    -                      -                     -                     
825 Legal -                     -                    -                      -                         -                    -                      -                     -                     
826 Office Equipment Maintenance -                     -                    -                      -                         -                    -                      -                     -                     
827 Plumbing, Sewer Services -                     -                    -                      -                         -                    -                      -                     -                     

FY 2026 FY 2025 Approved Budget

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 69 of 288



Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
FY 2026 Budget

Community Development

Budget Category Budget Line Item HOME HOME ARP HTF Grant Total HOME HOME ARP HTF Grant Total
FY 2026 FY 2025 Approved Budget

828 Professional Services 6,820              -                    -                      6,820                 6,200            -                      -                     6,200              
829 Protective Services 110                 -                    -                      110                    100               -                      -                     100                 
830 Software Maintenance 110                 -                    -                      110                    100               -                      -                     100                 
832 Audit 2,750              1,100            -                      3,850                 2,500            1,000              -                     3,500              
833 Advertising 330                 1,100            -                      1,430                 300               1,000              -                     1,300              
850 Maintenance Contracts -                     -                    -                      -                         -                    -                      -                     -                     
851 Staff Training 2,750              -                    -                      2,750                 2,500            -                      -                     2,500              

  Contractual Total 14,300            2,200            -                      16,500               13,000          2,000              -                     15,000            

 Equipment 831 Equipment -                     -                    -                      -                         -                    -                      -                     -                     

 Other 835 Collection Loss -                     -                    -                      -                         -                    -                      -                     
836 Computer Services -                     -                    -                      -                         -                    -                      -                     
839 Custodial Supplies 2,200              -                    -                      2,200                 2,000            -                      -                     2,000              
842 Membership Dues -                     -                    -                      -                         -                    -                      -                     -                     
843 Miscellaneous -                     -                    -                      -                         -                    -                      -                     -                     
844 Office Supplies -                     -                    -                      -                         -                    -                      -                     -                     
845 Ordinary Maintenance & Materials -                     -                    -                      -                         -                    -                      -                     -                     
846 Office Building Repair & Maintenance -                     -                    -                      -                         -                    -                      -                     -                     
847 Postage/Courier 110                 -                    -                      110                    100               -                      -                     100                 
848 Printing -                     -                    -                      -                         -                    -                      -                     -                     
852 Subscriptions -                     -                    -                      -                         -                    -                      -                     -                     
854 Payment in lieu of taxes (PILOT) -                     -                    -                      -                         -                    -                      -                     -                     
860 Portability Admin Fees -                     -                    -                      -                         -                    -                      -                     -                     
862 PH FSS Expense -                     -                    -                      -                         -                    -                      -                     -                     

  Other Total 2,310              -                    -                      2,310                 2,100            -                      -                     2,100              

Capital Outlays 855 Capital Outlays 8,309,131       3,127,315     341,366          11,777,812        9,129,405     3,142,951       551,666         12,824,022     

Loan Payments 857 Loan Payments -                     -                    -                      -                         -                    -                      -                     -                     

Housing Assistance Payments 859 Housing Assistance Payments -                     -                    -                      -                         -                    -                      -                     -                     

Expenditures Total 9,129,068       3,299,307     559,921          12,988,296        9,874,802     3,299,307       580,561         13,754,670     

(Surplus) Deficit -$                   -$                  -$                    -$                       -$                  -$                    -$                   -$                   

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 70 of 288



Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
FY 2026 Budget

Research Planning and Evaluation

Budget Category Budget Line Item Astumbo CDBG CoC ESG LIHTC Grant Total Astumbo ** CDBG CoC ** ESG LIHTC Grant Total

Revenue 100 Operating Receipts -$                  -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                   -$                       -$                  -$                    -$                   -$                    -$                    -$                    
101 Administrative Fees -                    -                      -                      -                      -                     -                         -                    -                      -                     -                      -                      -                      
102 Interest Income (5)                  -                      -                      -                      -                     (5)                       (5)                  -                      -                     -                      -                      (119,473)        
103 Other Income (24,185)         -                      -                      -                      (523,600)        (547,785)            (24,185)         -                      -                     -                      (523,600)        (547,785)        
104 Grants -                    (9,247,862)     (2,144,945)     (498,256)        -                     (11,891,063)       -                    (10,786,368)   (1,382,278)     (754,588)        -                      (26,558,436)   
106 Subsidies - Federal -                    -                      -                      -                      -                     -                         -                    -                      -                     -                      -                      -                      
109 Year-end Cash Balance -                    -                      -                      -                      -                     -                         -                    -                      -                     -                      -                      -                      
110 Revenue - Management Fees -                    -                      -                      -                      -                     -                         -                    -                      -                     -                      -                      -                      
111 Revenue - Housing Assistance Payments -                    -                      -                      -                      -                     -                         -                    -                      -                     -                      -                      -                      

Revenue Total (24,190)         (9,247,862)     (2,144,945)     (498,256)        (523,600)        (12,438,853)       (24,190)         (10,786,368)   (1,382,278)     (754,588)        (523,600)        (27,225,694)   
Expenditures:
 Personnel 801 Salaries and Wages 10,640          1,406,359       90,571            15,802            112,691         1,636,063          9,673            1,346,480       14,365           14,365            102,446         1,487,329      

802 Overtime -                    -                      -                      -                      -                     -                         -                    -                      -                     -                      -                      -                      
803 Employee Benefits 5,657            759,951          27,171            8,401              57,221           858,401             5,143            707,928          7,637             7,637              52,019            780,364         

  Personnel Total 16,297          2,166,310       117,742         24,203            169,912         2,494,464          14,816          2,054,408       22,002           22,002            154,465         2,267,693      

 Utilities 804 Electricity -                    22,000            -                      -                      -                     22,000               -                    20,000            -                     -                      -                      20,000            
805 Water/Sewage -                    1,100              -                      -                      -                     1,100                 -                    1,000              -                     -                      -                      1,000              

 Utilities Total -                    23,100            -                      -                      -                     23,100               -                    21,000            -                     -                      -                      21,000            

 Travel 810 Off-Island Travel -                    11,000            -                      -                      -                     11,000               -                    10,000            -                     -                      -                      10,000            

           
 Contractual 807 Security Deposit -                    -                      -                      -                      -                     -                         -                    -                      -                     -                      -                      -                      

812 Auto Maintenance -                    2,750              -                      -                      -                     2,750                 -                    2,500              -                     -                      -                      2,500              
813 Auto - Gas -                    2,090              -                      -                      110                2,200                 -                    1,900              -                     -                      100                 2,000              
814 Communication -                    8,415              -                      -                      -                     8,415                 -                    7,650              -                     -                      -                      7,650              
815 Copy Machine -                    2,200              -                      -                      -                     2,200                 -                    2,000              -                     -                      -                      2,000              
816 Custodial Services -                    5,500              -                      -                      -                     5,500                 -                    5,000              -                     -                      -                      5,000              
817 Insurance Services -                    19,800            -                      -                      -                     19,800               -                    18,000            -                     -                      -                      18,000            
818 Storage -                    -                      -                      -                      -                     -                         -                    -                      -                     -                      -                      -                      
820 Property Management Fee -                    -                      -                      -                      -                     -                         -                    -                      -                     -                      -                      -                      
821 Bookkeeping Fee -                    -                      -                      -                      -                     -                         -                    -                      -                     -                      -                      -                      
822 Asset Management Fee -                    -                      -                      -                      -                     -                         -                    -                      -                     -                      -                      -                      
824 Office Rent -                    -                      -                      -                      -                     -                         -                    -                      -                     -                      -                      -                      
825 Legal -                    -                      -                      -                      -                     -                         -                    -                      -                     -                      -                      -                      
826 Office Equipment Maintenance -                    -                      -                      -                      -                     -                         -                    -                      -                     -                      -                      -                      
827 Plumbing, Sewer Services -                    -                      -                      -                      -                     -                         -                    -                      -                     -                      -                      -                      
828 Professional Services 945               47,300            -                      -                      -                     48,245               859               43,000            -                     -                      -                      43,859            
829 Protective Services -                    110                 -                      -                      -                     110                    -                    100                 -                     -                      -                      100                 
830 Software Maintenance -                    44,000            -                      -                      -                     44,000               -                    40,000            -                     -                      -                      40,000            
832 Audit -                    13,750            -                      4,400              4,950             23,100               -                    12,500            -                     4,000              4,500              21,000            
833 Advertising 1,430            33,000            -                      110                 -                     34,540               1,300            30,000            -                     100                 -                      31,400            
850 Maintenance Contracts 440               7,150              -                      -                      -                     7,590                 400               6,500              -                     -                      -                      6,900              
851 Staff Training -                    5,500              -                      -                      -                     5,500                 -                    5,000              -                     -                      -                      5,000              

  Contractual Total 2,815            191,565          -                      4,510              5,060             203,950             2,559            174,150          -                     4,100              4,600              185,409         

FY 2025 Approved BudgetFY 2026

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 71 of 288



Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
FY 2026 Budget

Research Planning and Evaluation

Budget Category Budget Line Item Astumbo CDBG CoC ESG LIHTC Grant Total Astumbo ** CDBG CoC ** ESG LIHTC Grant Total
FY 2025 Approved BudgetFY 2026

 Equipment 831 Equipment 3,300            1,100              -                      -                      -                     4,400                 3,000            1,000              -                     -                      -                      4,000              

 Other 835 Collection Loss -                    -                      -                      -                      -                     -                         -                    -                      -                     -                      -                      -                      
836 Computer Services -                    -                      -                      -                      -                     -                         -                    -                      -                     -                      -                      -                      
839 Custodial Supplies -                    -                      -                      -                      -                     -                         -                    -                      -                     -                      -                      -                      
842 Membership Dues -                    -                      -                      -                      1,650             1,650                 -                    -                      -                     -                      1,500              1,500              
843 Miscellaneous 1,668            -                      -                      -                      -                     1,668                 3,715            -                      -                     -                      -                      3,715              
844 Office Supplies 110               -                      -                      -                      110                220                    100               -                      -                     -                      100                 200                 
845 Ordinary Maintenance & Materials -                    -                      -                      -                      -                     -                         -                    -                      -                     -                      -                      -                      
846 Office Building Repair & Maintenance -                    -                      -                      -                      1,650             1,650                 -                    -                      -                     -                      1,500              1,500              
847 Postage/Courier -                    -                      -                      -                      110                110                    -                    -                      -                     -                      100                 100                 
848 Printing -                    -                      -                      -                      -                     -                         -                    -                      -                     -                      -                      -                      
852 Subscriptions -                    -                      -                      -                      -                     -                         -                    -                      -                     -                      -                      -                      
854 Payment in lieu of taxes (PILOT) -                    -                      -                      -                      -                     -                         -                    -                      -                     -                      -                      -                      
860 Portability Admin Fees -                    -                      -                      -                      -                     -                         -                    -                      -                     -                      -                      -                      
862 PH FSS Expense -                    -                      -                      -                      -                     -                         -                    -                      -                     -                      -                      -                      

  Other Total 1,778            -                      -                      -                      3,520             5,298                 3,815            -                      -                     -                      3,200              7,015              

Capital Outlays 855 Capital Outlays -                    6,854,787       2,027,203      469,543          345,108         9,696,641          -                    8,525,810       1,360,276      728,486         361,335         10,975,907    

Loan Payments 857 Loan Payments -                    -                      -                      -                      -                     -                         -                    -                      -                     -                      -                      -                      

Housing Assistance Payments 859 Housing Assistance Payments -                    -                      -                      -                      -                     -                         -                    -                      -                     -                      -                      -                      

Expenditures Total 24,190          9,247,862       2,144,945      498,256          523,600         12,438,853        24,190          10,786,368     1,382,278      754,588         523,600         13,471,024    

(Surplus) Deficit -$                  -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                   -$                       -$                  -$                    -$                   -$                    -$                    (13,754,670)$ 

** Includes budget for CARES funds

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 72 of 288



Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
FY 2026 Budget

Central Office Cost Center (COCC)

Budget Category Budget Line Item
Executive/

Administration
Human

Resources Procurement

Management
Information

Systems Fiscal Grand Total
Executive/

Administration
Human

Resources Procurement

Management
Information

Systems Fiscal Grand Total

Revenue 100 Operating Receipts -$                             -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                  -$                   -$                      -$                          -$                   -$                          -$              -$                    
101 Administrative Fees -                     -                      
102 Interest Income -                     (179)                  (179)                
103 Other Income -                     (3,416)               (3,427)                   (6,843)             
104 Grants -                     -                      
106 Subsidies - Federal -                     -                      
109 Year-end Cash Balance (610,681)                  (266,062)       (876,743)        (200,000)           (200,000)               (200,000)        (200,000)               (200,000)   (1,000,000)      
110 Revenue - Management Fees (395,677)                  (386,449)        (239,655)        (288,246)        (395,677)       (1,705,702)     (1,048,674)        (174,049)               (27,590)          (464,130)               (444,225)   (2,158,668)      
111 Revenue - Housing Assistance Payments -                               -                     -                     -                     -                    -                     -                        -                            -                     -                            -                -                      

Revenue Total (1,006,358)               (386,449)        (239,655)        (288,246)        (661,739)       (2,582,445)     (1,252,269)        (374,049)               (227,590)        (667,557)               (644,225)   (3,165,690)      
Expenditures:
 Personnel 801 Salaries and Wages 569,761                   235,222         120,654          145,228         373,051        1,443,916      517,681            233,368                110,724         348,377                383,505    1,593,655       

802 Overtime -                     2,250                5,000                    10,000           20,000                  30,000      67,250            
803 Employee Benefits 299,892                   145,577         85,401            93,318           283,038        907,226         244,321            122,741                67,976           192,040                219,780    846,858          

  Personnel Total 869,653                   380,799         206,055          238,546         656,089        2,351,142      764,252            361,109                188,700         560,417                633,285    2,507,763       

 Utilities 804 Electricity 54,938                     54,938           54,938              54,938            
805 Water/Sewage 2,380                       -                     -                     -                     -                    2,380             2,380                -                            -                     -                            -                2,380              

 Utilities Total 57,318                     -                     -                     -                     -                    57,318           57,318              -                            -                     -                            -                57,318            

 Travel 810 Off-Island Travel -                               -                     -                     -                     -                    -                     -                        -                            -                     -                            -                -                      

             
 Contractual 807 Security Deposit -                     -                      

812 Auto Maintenance 1,000                       1,000             1,000                1,000              
813 Auto - Gas 600                          600                600                   600                 
814 Communication 2,903                       7,000             9,903             2,903                7,000                    9,903              
815 Copy Machine 1,134                       1,700             2,834             1,134                1,700                    2,834              
816 Custodial Services 20,000                     8,400             28,400           20,000              8,400                    28,400            
817 Insurance Services 50,000                     12,000           62,000           50,000              12,000                  62,000            
818 Storage -                     2,400                    2,400              
820 Property Management Fee -                     -                      
821 Bookkeeping Fee -                     -                      
822 Asset Management Fee -                     -                      
824 Office Rent -                     -                      
825 Legal -                     -                      
826 Office Equipment Maintenance -                     -                      
827 Plumbing, Sewer Services -                     -                      
828 Professional Services 5,000             1,500              6,500             7,000                    1,500             8,500              
829 Protective Services 300                 300                300                300                 
830 Software Maintenance 20,000           20,000           20,000                  20,000            
832 Audit 5,000            5,000             5,000        5,000              
833 Advertising 25,000            25,000           25,000           25,000            
850 Maintenance Contracts -                     -                      
851 Staff Training -                               -                     -                     -                     -                    -                     5,000                5,000                    5,000             5,000                    5,000        25,000            

FY 2026 FY 2025 Approved Budget

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 73 of 288



Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
FY 2026 Budget

Central Office Cost Center (COCC)

Budget Category Budget Line Item
Executive/

Administration
Human

Resources Procurement

Management
Information

Systems Fiscal Grand Total
Executive/

Administration
Human

Resources Procurement

Management
Information

Systems Fiscal Grand Total

FY 2026 FY 2025 Approved Budget

  Contractual Total 75,637                     5,000             26,800            49,100           5,000            161,537         80,637              12,000                  31,800           56,500                  10,000      190,937          

 Equipment 831 Equipment -                               -                     -                     -                     -                    -                     10,000              -                            -                     50,000                  -                60,000            

 Other 835 Collection Loss -                     -                      
836 Computer Services -                     -                      
839 Custodial Supplies 1,200              1,200             1200 1,200              
842 Membership Dues 1,500                       1,500             1500 250 250 250 2,250              
843 Miscellaneous 100                          100                100                 100                100               500                100                   100                       100                100                       100           500                 
844 Office Supplies 1,500                       500                500                 500                500               3,500             3,000                500                       500                500                       500           5,000              
845 Ordinary Maintenance & Materials -                     -                      
846 Office Building Repair & Maintenance 5,000              5,000             5,000             5,000              
847 Postage/Courier 150                          50                  50                 250                150                   50                         50             250                 
848 Printing -                     40                     40                         40                  40                         40             200                 
852 Subscriptions 500                          500                500                   500                 
854 Payment in lieu of taxes (PILOT) -                     -                      
860 Portability Admin Fees -                     -                      
862 PH FSS Expense -                               -                     -                     -                     -                    -                     -                        -                            -                     -                            -                -                      

  Other Total 3,750                       650                6,800              600                650               12,450           5,290                940                       7,090             640                       940           14,900            

Capital Outlays 855 Capital Outlays -                               -                     -                     -                     -                    -                     334,772            -                            -                     -                            -                334,772          

Loan Payments 857 Loan Payments -                               -                     -                     -                     -                    -                     -                        -                            -                     -                            -                -                      

Housing Assistance Payments 859 Housing Assistance Payments -                               -                     -                     -                     -                    -                     -                        -                            -                     -                            -                -                      

Expenditures Total 1,006,358                386,449         239,655          288,246         661,739        2,582,445      1,252,269         374,049                227,590         667,557                644,225    3,165,690       

(Surplus) Deficit -$                             -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                  -$                   -$                      -$                          -$                   -$                          -$              -$                    

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 74 of 288



Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
FY 2026 Budget

Central Office Cost Center (COCC)

Budget Category Budget Line Item

Revenue 100 Operating Receipts
101 Administrative Fees
102 Interest Income
103 Other Income
104 Grants
106 Subsidies - Federal
109 Year-end Cash Balance
110 Revenue - Management Fees
111 Revenue - Housing Assistance Payments

Revenue Total
Expenditures:
 Personnel 801 Salaries and Wages

802 Overtime
803 Employee Benefits

  Personnel Total

 Utilities 804 Electricity
805 Water/Sewage

 Utilities Total

 Travel 810 Off-Island Travel

 
 Contractual 807 Security Deposit

812 Auto Maintenance
813 Auto - Gas
814 Communication
815 Copy Machine
816 Custodial Services
817 Insurance Services
818 Storage
820 Property Management Fee
821 Bookkeeping Fee
822 Asset Management Fee
824 Office Rent
825 Legal
826 Office Equipment Maintenance
827 Plumbing, Sewer Services
828 Professional Services
829 Protective Services
830 Software Maintenance
832 Audit
833 Advertising
850 Maintenance Contracts
851 Staff Training

  Contractual Total

Executive/
Administration

Human
Resources Procurement

Management
Information

Systems Fiscal Grand Total
Executive/

Administration
Human

Resources Procurement

Management
Information

Systems Fiscal Grand Total

-$                      -$                              -$                    -$                              -$                -$                      -$                            -$                         -$                   -$                         -$                -$                 
-                        -                              -                           -                     -                           -                  -                   
-                        (179)                        -                           -                     -                           -                  (179)             

(10,578)             (10,578)                     (10,578)          (10,578)                     (10,578)       (52,888)             7,162                      10,578                 10,578           7,151                   10,578        46,045         
-                        -                              -                           -                     -                           -                  -                   
-                        -                   
-                        -                   

(296,757)           (296,757)                   (296,757)        (296,757)                   (296,757)     (1,483,787)        -                   
-                        -                                -                      -                                -                  -                        -                              -                           -                     -                           -                  -                   

(307,335)           (307,335)                   (307,335)        (307,335)                   (307,335)     (1,536,675)        6,983                      10,578                 10,578           7,151                   10,578        45,866         

333,446            135,580                    84,206            174,388                    215,445      943,065            184,235                  97,788                 26,518           173,989               168,060      650,590       
-                        2,250                      5,000                   10,000           20,000                 30,000        67,250         

130,938            50,139                      36,666            72,612                      76,028        366,383            113,383                  72,602                 31,310           119,428               143,752      480,475       

464,384            185,719                    120,872         247,000                    291,473      1,309,448         299,868                  175,390               67,828           313,417               341,812      1,198,315    

32,472              32,472              22,466                    -                           -                     -                           -                  22,466         
1,504                -                                -                      -                                -                  1,504                876                         -                           -                     -                           -                  876              

33,976              -                                -                      -                                -                  33,976              23,342                    -                           -                     -                           -                  23,342         

-                        4,833                        -                      -                                -                  4,833                -                              -                           -                     -                           -                  -                   

         
-                        -                              -                           -                     -                           -                  -                   
-                        1,000                      -                           -                     -                           -                  1,000           
-                        600                         -                           -                     -                           -                  600              

4,528                4,528                (1,625)                     -                           -                     7,000                   -                  5,375           
342 2,087          2,087                (953)                        -                           -                     1,700                   -                  747              

11,607              11,607              8,393                      -                           -                     8,400                   -                  16,793         
414                   414                   49,586                    -                           -                     12,000                 -                  61,586         

-                        -                              -                           -                     2,400                   -                  2,400           
-                        -                              -                           -                     -                           -                  -                   
-                        -                              -                           -                     -                           -                  -                   
-                        -                              -                           -                     -                           -                  -                   
-                        -                              -                           -                     -                           -                  -                   
-                        -                              -                           -                     -                           -                  -                   
-                        -                              -                           -                     -                           -                  -                   

70                     82                              2,936                        622             3,710                (70)                          6,918                   1,500             (2,936)                  (622)            4,790           
-                        -                              -                           300                -                           -                  300              

4,964                4,964                (4,964)                     -                           -                     20,000                 -                  15,036         
-                        -                              -                           -                     -                           5,000          5,000           

450                   56               506                   (450)                        -                           25,000           -                           (56)              24,494         
-                        -                              -                           -                     -                           -                  -                   

866                   -                                450                 450                           4,475          6,241                4,134                      5,000                   4,550             4,550                   525             18,759         

23,241              82                              450                 3,386                        7,240          34,057              55,651                    11,918                 31,350           53,114                 4,847          156,880       

FY 2025 Actual (06-30-2025) FY 2025 Budget-to-Actual (06-30-2025)

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 75 of 288



Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
FY 2026 Budget

Central Office Cost Center (COCC)

Budget Category Budget Line Item

 Equipment 831 Equipment

 Other 835 Collection Loss
836 Computer Services
839 Custodial Supplies
842 Membership Dues
843 Miscellaneous
844 Office Supplies
845 Ordinary Maintenance & Materials
846 Office Building Repair & Maintenance
847 Postage/Courier
848 Printing
852 Subscriptions
854 Payment in lieu of taxes (PILOT)
860 Portability Admin Fees
862 PH FSS Expense

  Other Total

Capital Outlays 855 Capital Outlays

Loan Payments 857 Loan Payments

Housing Assistance Payments 859 Housing Assistance Payments

Expenditures Total

(Surplus) Deficit

Executive/
Administration

Human
Resources Procurement

Management
Information

Systems Fiscal Grand Total
Executive/

Administration
Human

Resources Procurement

Management
Information

Systems Fiscal Grand Total

FY 2025 Actual (06-30-2025) FY 2025 Budget-to-Actual (06-30-2025)

6,664                -                                -                      -                                -                  6,664                3,336                      -                           -                     50,000                 -                  53,336         

-                        
24 24                     

647 647                   
-                        

3,385                93                              38                   133                           3,649                
1,280                168                 106                           396             1,950                1,720                      500                       332                394                       104             3,050           

-                        -                              -                           -                     -                           -                  -                   
1,155                1,155                (1,155)                     -                           5,000             -                           -                  3,845           

31               31                     150                         50                         -                     -                           19               219              
-                        40                           40                         40                  40                         40               200              
-                        500                         -                           -                     -                           -                  500              
-                        -                              -                           -                     -                           -                  -                   
-                        -                              -                           -                     -                           -                  -                   

-                        -                                -                      -                                -                  -                        -                              -                           -                     -                           -                  -                   

6,467                93                              206                 263                           427             7,456                1,255                      590                       5,372             434                       163             7,814           

-                        -                                -                      -                                -                  -                        -                              -                           -                     -                           -                  -                   

-                        -                                -                      -                                -                  -                        -                              -                           -                     -                           -                  -                   

-                        -                                -                      -                                -                  -                        -                              -                           -                     -                           -                  -                   

534,732            190,727                    121,528         250,649                    299,140      1,396,434         383,452                  187,898               104,550         416,965               346,822      1,439,687    

227,397$          (116,608)$                 (185,807)$      (56,686)$                   (8,195)$       (140,241)$         390,435$                198,476$             115,128$       424,116$             357,400$    1,485,553$  

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 76 of 288



Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
FY 2026 Budget
Other Programs

Budget Category Budget Line Item FSS ROSS

Payment in 
Lieu of Taxes

(PILOT) Grand Total FSS ROSS

Payment in 
Lieu of 
Taxes

(PILOT) Grand Total

Revenue 100 Operating Receipts -$                  -$                  -$                    -$                    -$                -$                -$                -$                    
101 Administrative Fees -                      -                      
102 Interest Income -                      -                      
103 Other Income (43,257)           (43,257)          (43,257)       (43,257)           
104 Grants (293,308)       (115,786)       (409,094)        -                      
106 Subsidies - Federal -                      (203,294)     (203,294)     (203,294)         
109 Year-end Cash Balance -                      -                      
110 Revenue - Management Fees -                      -                      
111 Revenue - Housing Assistance Payments -                    -                    -                      -                      -                  -                  -                  -                      

Revenue Total (293,308)       (115,786)       (43,257)           (452,351)        (203,294)     (203,294)     (43,257)       (246,551)         
Expenditures:
 Personnel 801 Salaries and Wages 169,051        50,327          219,378         136,395      136,395      136,395          

802 Overtime -                      -                      
803 Employee Benefits 124,257        39,478          -                      163,735         40,918        40,918        -                  40,918            

  Personnel Total 293,308        89,805          -                      383,113         177,313      177,313      -                  177,313          

 Utilities 804 Electricity -                    -                    -                      -                  -                  -                      
805 Water/Sewage -                    -                    -                      -                      -                  -                  -                  -                      

 Utilities Total -                    -                    -                      -                      -                  -                  -                  -                      

 Travel 810 Off-Island Travel -                    5,000            -                      5,000              5,000          5,000          -                  5,000              

         
 Contractual 807 Security Deposit -                      -                      

812 Auto Maintenance 1,000            1,000              1,000          1,000          1,000              
813 Auto - Gas 853               853                 853             853             853                 
814 Communication 451               451                 451             451             451                 
815 Copy Machine -                      -                      
816 Custodial Services -                      -                      
817 Insurance Services -                      -                      
818 Storage -                      -                      
820 Property Management Fee -                      -                      
821 Bookkeeping Fee -                      -                      
822 Asset Management Fee -                      -                      
824 Office Rent -                      -                      
825 Legal -                      -                      
826 Office Equipment Maintenance -                      -                      
827 Plumbing, Sewer Services -                      -                      
828 Professional Services -                      -                      
829 Protective Services -                      -                      
830 Software Maintenance -                      -                      
832 Audit -                      -                      

FY 2026 FY 2025 Approved Budget

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 77 of 288



Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
FY 2026 Budget
Other Programs

Budget Category Budget Line Item FSS ROSS

Payment in 
Lieu of Taxes

(PILOT) Grand Total FSS ROSS

Payment in 
Lieu of 
Taxes

(PILOT) Grand Total

FY 2026 FY 2025 Approved Budget

833 Advertising -                      -                      
850 Maintenance Contracts -                      -                      
851 Staff Training -                    2,500            -                      2,500              2,500          2,500          -                  2,500              

  Contractual Total -                    4,804            -                      4,804              4,804          4,804          -                  4,804              

 Equipment 831 Equipment -                    3,117            -                      3,117              3,117          3,117          -                  3,117              

 Other 835 Collection Loss -                      -                      
836 Computer Services 595               595                 595             595             595                 
839 Custodial Supplies -                      -                      
842 Membership Dues 336               336                 336             336             336                 
843 Miscellaneous 9,130            43,257            52,387            9,130          9,130          43,257        52,387            
844 Office Supplies 2,500            2,500              2,500          2,500          2,500              
845 Ordinary Maintenance & Materials -                      -                      
846 Office Building Repair & Maintenance -                      -                      
847 Postage/Courier -                      -                      
848 Printing -                      -                      
852 Subscriptions 500               500                 500             500             500                 
854 Payment in lieu of taxes (PILOT) -                      -                      
860 Portability Admin Fees -                      -                      
862 PH FSS Expense -                    -                    -                      -                      -                  -                  -                  -                      

  Other Total -                    13,061          43,257            56,318            13,061        13,061        43,257        56,318            

Capital Outlays 855 Capital Outlays -                    -                    -                      -                      -                  -                  -                  -                      

Loan Payments 857 Loan Payments -                    -                    -                      -                      -                  -                  -                  -                      

Housing Assistance Payments 859 Housing Assistance Payments -                    -                    -                      -                      -                  -                  -                  -                      

Expenditures Total 293,308        115,786        43,257            452,351         203,294      203,294      43,257        246,551          

(Surplus) Deficit -$                  -$                  -$                    -$                    -$                -$                -$                -$                    

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 78 of 288



Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
FY 2026 Budget
Other Programs

Budget Category Budget Line Item

Revenue 100 Operating Receipts
101 Administrative Fees
102 Interest Income
103 Other Income
104 Grants
106 Subsidies - Federal
109 Year-end Cash Balance
110 Revenue - Management Fees
111 Revenue - Housing Assistance Payments

Revenue Total
Expenditures:
 Personnel 801 Salaries and Wages

802 Overtime
803 Employee Benefits

  Personnel Total

 Utilities 804 Electricity
805 Water/Sewage

 Utilities Total

 Travel 810 Off-Island Travel

 
 Contractual 807 Security Deposit

812 Auto Maintenance
813 Auto - Gas
814 Communication
815 Copy Machine
816 Custodial Services
817 Insurance Services
818 Storage
820 Property Management Fee
821 Bookkeeping Fee
822 Asset Management Fee
824 Office Rent
825 Legal
826 Office Equipment Maintenance
827 Plumbing, Sewer Services
828 Professional Services
829 Protective Services
830 Software Maintenance
832 Audit

FSS ROSS

Payment in 
Lieu of 
Taxes

(PILOT) Grand Total FSS ROSS

Payment in 
Lieu of 
Taxes

(PILOT) Grand Total

-$                       -$                       -$               -$                       -$                     -$                     -$              -$                        
-                         -                       -                       -                -                          

(52)             (52)                     -                       -                       52              52                       
-                         -                       -                       (43,257)     (43,257)               
-                         -                       -                       -                -                          

(36,196)              (36,196)              (72,392)              (167,098)          (167,098)          -                (334,196)             
-                         -                       -                       -                -                          
-                         -                       -                       -                -                          

-                         -                         -                 -                         -                       -                       -                -                          

(36,196)              (36,196)              (52)             (72,443)              (167,098)          (167,098)          (43,205)     (377,402)             

25,343               25,343               50,685               111,052           111,052           -                222,104              
-                         -                       -                       -                -                          

14,299               14,299               -                 28,598               26,619             26,619             -                53,238                
39,642               39,642               -                 79,284               137,671           137,671           -                275,343              

-                         -                       -                       -                -                          
-                         -                         -                 -                         -                       -                       -                -                          
-                         -                         -                 -                         -                       -                       -                -                          

-                         -                         -                 -                         5,000               5,000               -                10,000                

        
-                         -                       -                       -                -                          

33                      33                      66                      967                  967                  -                1,934                  
-                         853                  853                  -                1,706                  
-                         451                  451                  -                902                     
-                         -                       -                       -                -                          
-                         -                       -                       -                -                          
-                         -                       -                       -                -                          
-                         -                       -                       -                -                          
-                         -                       -                       -                -                          
-                         -                       -                       -                -                          
-                         -                       -                       -                -                          
-                         -                       -                       -                -                          

991            991                    -                       -                       (991)          (991)                    
-                         -                       -                       -                -                          
-                         -                       -                       -                -                          
-                         -                       -                       -                -                          
-                         -                       -                       -                -                          
-                         -                       -                       -                -                          
-                         -                       -                       -                -                          

FY 2025 Actual (04-30-2025) FY 2025 Budget-to-Actual (04-30-2025)

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 79 of 288



Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
FY 2026 Budget
Other Programs

Budget Category Budget Line Item

833 Advertising
850 Maintenance Contracts
851 Staff Training

  Contractual Total

 Equipment 831 Equipment

 Other 835 Collection Loss
836 Computer Services
839 Custodial Supplies
842 Membership Dues
843 Miscellaneous
844 Office Supplies
845 Ordinary Maintenance & Materials
846 Office Building Repair & Maintenance
847 Postage/Courier
848 Printing
852 Subscriptions
854 Payment in lieu of taxes (PILOT)
860 Portability Admin Fees
862 PH FSS Expense

  Other Total

Capital Outlays 855 Capital Outlays

Loan Payments 857 Loan Payments

Housing Assistance Payments 859 Housing Assistance Payments

Expenditures Total

(Surplus) Deficit

FSS ROSS

Payment in 
Lieu of 
Taxes

(PILOT) Grand Total FSS ROSS

Payment in 
Lieu of 
Taxes

(PILOT) Grand Total

FY 2025 Actual (04-30-2025) FY 2025 Budget-to-Actual (04-30-2025)

4,966         4,966                 -                       -                       (4,966)       (4,966)                 
-                         -                       -                       -                -                          

-                         -                         -                 -                         2,500               2,500               -                5,000                  
33                      33                      5,957         6,023                 4,771               4,771               (5,957)       3,584                  

-                         -                         -                 -                         3,117               3,117               -                6,233                  

-                         -                       -                       -                -                          
-                         595                  595                  -                1,190                  
-                         -                       -                       -                -                          
-                         336                  336                  -                672                     

2,704         2,704                 9,130               9,130               40,553      58,813                
333                    333                    667                    2,167               2,167               -                4,333                  

-                         -                       -                       -                -                          
-                         -                       -                       -                -                          
-                         -                       -                       -                -                          
-                         -                       -                       -                -                          

150            150                    500                  500                  (150)          850                     
-                         -                       -                       -                -                          
-                         -                       -                       -                -                          

-                         -                         -                 -                         -                       -                       -                -                          

333                    333                    2,854         3,520                 12,728             12,728             40,403      65,859                

-                         -                         -                 -                         -                       -                       -                -                          

-                         -                         -                 -                         -                       -                       -                -                          

-                         -                         -                 -                         -                       -                       -                -                          

40,008               40,008               8,811         88,827               163,286           163,286           34,446      361,018              

3,812$               3,812$               8,759$       16,384$             (3,812)$            (3,812)$            (8,759)$     (16,383)$             

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 80 of 288



Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
FY 2026 Budget

CDBG Disaster Recovery

Budget Category Budget Line Item

CDBG
Disaster
Recovery Grant Total

CDBG
Disaster
Recovery Grant Total

Revenue 100 Operating Receipts -$                     -$                        -$                     -$                     
101 Administrative Fees -                       -                          -                       -                       
102 Interest Income -                       -                          -                       -                       
103 Other Income -                       -                          -                       -                       
104 Grants (37,015,716)     (37,015,716)        -                       -                       
106 Subsidies - Federal -                       -                          -                       -                       
109 Year-end Cash Balance -                       -                          -                       -                       
110 Revenue - Management Fees -                       -                          -                       -                       
111 Revenue - Housing Assistance Payments -                       -                          -                       -                       

Revenue Total (37,015,716)     (37,015,716)        -                       -                       
Expenditures:
 Personnel 801 Salaries and Wages 2,738,894        2,738,894            -                       -                       

802 Overtime 10,000             10,000                 -                       -                       
803 Employee Benefits 1,520,571        1,520,571            -                       -                       

  Personnel Total 4,269,465        4,269,465            -                       -                       

 Utilities 804 Electricity 60,000             60,000                 -                       -                       
805 Water/Sewage -                       -                          -                       -                       

 Utilities Total 60,000             60,000                 -                       -                       

 Travel 810 Off-Island Travel 30,000             30,000                 -                       -                       

   
 Contractual 807 Security Deposit -                       -                          -                       -                       

FY 2026 FY 2025 Approved Budget

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 81 of 288



Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
FY 2026 Budget

CDBG Disaster Recovery

Budget Category Budget Line Item

CDBG
Disaster
Recovery Grant Total

CDBG
Disaster
Recovery Grant Total

FY 2026 FY 2025 Approved Budget

812 Auto Maintenance 15,000             15,000                 -                       -                       
813 Auto - Gas 15,000             15,000                 -                       -                       
814 Communication 50,000             50,000                 -                       -                       
815 Copy Machine 18,000             18,000                 -                       -                       
816 Custodial Services 60,000             60,000                 -                       -                       
817 Insurance Services 49,000             49,000                 -                       -                       
818 Storage -                       -                          -                       -                       
820 Property Management Fee -                       -                          -                       -                       
821 Bookkeeping Fee -                       -                          -                       -                       
822 Asset Management Fee -                       -                          -                       -                       
824 Office Rent 138,251           138,251               -                       -                       
825 Legal 100,000           100,000               -                       -                       
826 Office Equipment Maintenance 5,000               5,000                   -                       -                       
827 Plumbing, Sewer Services -                       -                          -                       -                       
828 Professional Services 30,000,000      30,000,000          -                       -                       
829 Protective Services -                       -                          -                       -                       
830 Software Maintenance 50,000             50,000                 -                       -                       
832 Audit 50,000             50,000                 -                       -                       
833 Advertising 150,000           150,000               -                       -                       
850 Maintenance Contracts 25,000             25,000                 -                       -                       
851 Staff Training 100,000           100,000               -                       -                       

  Contractual Total 30,825,251      30,825,251          -                       -                       

 Equipment 831 Equipment 490,000           490,000               -                       -                       

 Other 835 Collection Loss -                       -                          -                       -                       

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 82 of 288



Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
FY 2026 Budget

CDBG Disaster Recovery

Budget Category Budget Line Item

CDBG
Disaster
Recovery Grant Total

CDBG
Disaster
Recovery Grant Total

FY 2026 FY 2025 Approved Budget

836 Computer Services 10,000             10,000                 -                       -                       
839 Custodial Supplies 5,000               5,000                   -                       -                       
842 Membership Dues 1,000               1,000                   -                       -                       
843 Miscellaneous 100,000           100,000               -                       -                       
844 Office Supplies 20,000             20,000                 -                       -                       
845 Ordinary Maintenance & Materials -                       -                          -                       -                       
846 Office Building Repair & Maintenance 10,000             10,000                 -                       -                       
847 Postage/Courier 5,000               5,000                   -                       -                       
848 Printing 30,000             30,000                 -                       -                       
852 Subscriptions 160,000           160,000               -                       -                       
854 Payment in lieu of taxes (PILOT) -                       -                          -                       -                       
860 Portability Admin Fees -                       -                          -                       -                       
862 PH FSS Expense -                       -                          -                       -                       

  Other Total 341,000           341,000               -                       -                       

Capital Outlays 855 Capital Outlays 1,000,000        1,000,000            -                       -                       

Loan Payments 857 Loan Payments -                       -                          -                       -                       

Housing Assistance Payments 859 Housing Assistance Payments -                       -                          -                       -                       

Expenditures Total 37,015,716      37,015,716          -                       -                       

(Surplus) Deficit -$                     -$                        -$                     -$                     

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 83 of 288



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
Staffing Pattern - Fiscal Year 2026

No. Department Division HBU Filled Vacant Position No. Position Title Position Name of Incumbent Vice Appointment Grade/Step

Salary
(Annual) Last Date Date of Next Amount

Subtotal
(M + P)

Retirement
(Q x 30.77%)

Retire (DDI)
($19.01 x 26 PP)

Social Security
(Q x 6.20%)

Medicare
(Q x 1.45%)

Life
($7.63 x 26 PP)

Medical
(PREMIUM)

($842.98 x 26 PP)

Dental
(PREMIUM)

($25.11 x 26 PP)

Total 
Benefits

( R thru X)

Total
Salaries & 
Benefits
(Q + Y)

ADMINISTRATION / EXECUTIVE / AUDIT & COMPLIANCE
Home Business Unit (010000)

1 AD/EX/AC COCC 010000 1 01001 Executive Director (Unclassified) Unclassified Napoli, Elizabeth F. (Vice:  R.S. Topasna) Exempt E-TG3-17(B) 170,759 ----- ----- 170,759 52,543 494 0 2,476 198 21,917 653 78,282 249,041
2 AD/EX/AC COCC 010000 1 01002 Deputy Director (Unclassified) Unclassified Esteves, Fernando B. (Vice:  E. Napoli) Exempt E-SG3-9(A) 120,000 8/22/2024 8/22/2025 2,400 122,400 37,662 494 0 1,775 198 21,917 653 62,700 185,100

3 AD/EX/AC COCC 010000 1 01003
Special Assistant to the Executive 
Director (Unclassified) Unclassified Aguon, Audrey A. (Vice:  M.L. Taitano) Unclassified OG5-10(E) 90,236 2/11/2025 2/11/2026 1,805 92,041 28,321 494 0 1,335 198 21,917 653 52,918 144,959

4 AD/EX/AC COCC 010000 1 01004 Attorney IV Permanent Florig, Jr., Eliseo M. (Vice:  M. A. Mafnas) CLT-Permanent ATTY-4-10 146,171 11/15/2024 11/14/2026 146,171 44,977 494 0 2,119 198 21,917 653 70,359 216,530
5 AD/EX/AC COCC 010000 1 01007 Program Coordinator II Permanent Vacant (Vice:  J. Alano) Vacant MG4-1(F) 0 ----- ----- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

6 AD/EX/AC COCC 010000 1 05005 Data Control Clerk II Permanent Taitingfong, Kathleen Jean P.

(Vice:  R.Q. Santos-FY2020 position 
reprogrammed from Accountant I to 
DCCII) CLT-Permanent FG5-6(C) 36,562 11/11/2024 11/11/2025 1,828 38,390 11,813 494 0 557 198 21,917 653 35,632 74,022

5 1 569,761 299,892 869,653

RESIDENT OPPORTUNITIES AND SELF-SUFFFICIENCY PROGRAM
Home Business Unit (010000)

1 AD/EX/AC COCC 010000 1 01012 Program Coordinator II Permanent Alano, Jenna L. (Vice:  T. A. Martinez) CLT-Permanent MG5-1(F) 45,752 2/12/2024 2/11/2025 4,575 50,327 15,486 494 0 730 198 21,917 653 39,478 89,806
1 0 50,327 39,478 89,806

FAMILY SELF-SUFFFICIENCY PROGRAM
Home Business Unit (010000)

1 AD/EX/AC COCC 120000 1 08015 Program Coordinator III Permanent Cepeda, Sandrina A. (Vice:  D.J.C. Cortez) CLT-Permanent NG5-10(B) 80,537 3/20/2025 3/20/2026 1,611 82,148 25,277 494 0 1,191 198 21,917 653 49,731 131,879
2 AD/EX/AC COCC 120000 1 12013 Program Coordinator II Permanent Macaraig, Robin L. (Vice:  R. Capati)) CLT-Permanent MG5-1(E) 45,303 2/12/2025 2/11/2026 2,265 47,568 14,637 494 0 690 198 21,917 653 38,589 86,158
3 AD/EX/AC COCC 130000 1 Program Coordinator I Permanent Vacant Vacant KG5-1(F) 39,335 ----- ----- 0 39,335 12,103 494 0 570 198 21,917 653 35,937 75,272

2 1 169,051 124,257 293,308

HUMAN RESOURCES
Home Business Unit (020000)

1 HR COCC 020000 1 02001 Personnel Services Administrator Permanent Bersamin, Kimberly K. (Vice:  D. Walters) Permanent RG4-17(A) 147,594 8/12/2022 8/12/2023 8,856 156,450 48,140 494 0 2,269 198 21,917 653 73,671 230,121
2 HR COCC 020000 1 02002 Personnel Specialist II Permanent Vacant (Vice:  J. Lujan-Nucum) Vacant MG4-1(A) 37,661 3/27/2023 --- 0 37,661 11,588 494 0 546 198 21,917 653 35,397 73,058
3 HR COCC 020000 1 02003 Personnel Specialist I Permanent Ongklungel, Carlo N. (Vice:  M.L. Jorolan) CLT-Permanent LG5-1(A) 40,305 6/3/2024 6/2/2025 806 41,111 12,650 494 0 596 198 21,917 653 36,509 77,620

2 1 235,222 145,577 380,799

PROCUREMENT
Home Business Unit (030000)

1 PROC COCC 030000 1 03001
Housing Procurement 
Administrator Permanent Camacho, Antonio C. (Vice:  G. Balmeo) Permanent PH4-2(C) 80,689 2/27/2025 2/27/2026 1,614 82,303 25,325 494 0 1,193 198 21,917 653 49,781 132,084

2 PROC COCC 030000 1 03004 Buyer II Permanent Paulino, Eddie P. CLT-Permanent IG5-3(A) 36,525 12/19/2024 12/19/2025 1,826 38,351 11,801 494 0 556 198 21,917 653 35,620 73,971
2 0 120,654 85,401 206,055

MANAGEMENT INFORMATION SYSTEMS
Home Business Unit (040000)

1 MIS COCC 040000 1 04001 Data Processing Manager Permanent Lujan, Julieann G. Permanent QG5-14(E) 135,961 10/20/2024 10/20/2025 2,719 138,680 42,672 494 0 2,011 198 21,917 653 67,946 206,626
2 MIS COCC 040000 1 04002 Systems Programmer Permanent Aguon, Joycelyn S. Permanent NG5-17(E) 124,661 3/26/2024 3/26/2025 2,493 127,154 39,125 494 0 1,844 198 21,917 653 64,232 191,386
3 MIS COCC 040000 1 04003 Computer Systems Analyst I Permanent Untalan, Christopher R.A. (Vice:  W. Eriksen) CLT-Permanent LG5-7(D) 58,839 10/21/2024 10/21/2025 1,177 60,016 18,467 494 0 870 198 21,917 653 42,600 102,616
4 MIS COCC 004000 1 04005 Computer Systems Analyst II Permanent Eriksen, William W. (Vice:  C.R. Untalan) Permanent MG5-11(F) 81,935 8/16/2023 8/16/2024 3,277 85,212 26,220 494 0 1,236 198 21,917 653 50,718 135,931

4 0 145,228 93,318 238,547

FISCAL
Home Business Unit (050000)

1 FISC COCC 050000 1 05001 Controller Permanent Danieli, Frances T. (Vice:  L. Leon Guerrero) CLT-Permanent SG5-8(A) 111,244 8/26/2024 8/26/2025 4,450 115,694 35,599 494 0 1,678 198 21,917 653 60,540 176,233
2 FISC COCC 050000 1 05002 Accountant I Permanent Santos, Rosa (Probation) (Vice: A. Tudela) Probationary LG5-1(F) 42,309 12/8/2024 12/8/2025 2,115 44,424 13,669 494 0 644 198 21,917 653 37,577 82,001
3 FISC COCC 050000 1 05003 Accountant I Permanent Camacho, Floila Gaza (Probation) (Vice:  C. Diego) Probationary LG5-4(A) 48,004 12/8/2024 12/8/2025 2,400 50,404 15,509 494 0 731 198 21,917 653 39,503 89,907
4 FISC COCC 050000 1 05004 Accountant I Permanent Molinos, Shawnese N. (Vice:  L. Awa) Temporary LG5-1(A) 40,305 ----- ----- 0 40,305 12,402 494 0 584 198 21,917 653 36,249 76,554
5 FISC COCC 050000 1 05011 Accountant III Permanent Vacant (Vice: R. De Guzman) Vacant NG5-1(A) 49,558 ----- ----- 0 49,558 15,249 494 0 719 198 21,917 653 39,231 88,789
6 FISC COCC 004000 1 04006 Accounting Technician I Permanent Pangelinan, Maxine C. (Vice: Temporary HG5-1(A) 30,357 ----- ----- 0 30,357 9,341 494 0 440 198 21,917 653 33,044 63,401
7 FISC COCC 050000 1 11016 Accountant II Permanent Vacant (Vice:  R Santos) Vacant LG5-1(F) 42,309 ----- ----- 0 42,309 13,018 494 0 613 198 21,917 653 36,895 79,204

5 2 373,051 283,038 656,089

MODERNIZATION-CAPITAL FUNDING
Home Business Unit (060000)

1 MOD COCC 060000 1 06002
Program Coordinator IV 
(reprogram 5/2022) Permanent Luces, Patrick S. (Vice:  N. Alejandro) CLT-Permanent OG5-9(D) 84,286 5/28/2024 5/28/2025 1,686 85,972 26,453 494 0 1,247 198 21,917 653 50,963 136,935

2 MOD COCC 060000 1 Program Coordinator III Temporary Vacant Vacant 0 ----- ----- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
3 MOD COCC 060000 1 06004 Accountant II Permanent Carlos, Naricel T. (Vice:  A.A. James) Probationary MG5-8(A) 65,536 11/13/2024 11/13/2025 1,311 66,847 20,569 494 0 969 198 21,917 653 44,801 111,648
4 MOD COCC 060000 1 06005 Program Coordinator II Permanent Bliss, Breanne Kim Oi (Vice:  Reprg memo 12/2022) CLT-Permanent MG5-2(B) 46,649 1/16/2025 1/16/2026 933 47,582 14,641 494 0 690 198 21,917 653 38,594 86,176
5 MOD COCC 006000 1 01011 Program Coordinator III Permanent Canete, Maria Cherry L.  (Vice:  A. James CLT-Permanent MG5-6(A) 58,327 2/12/2025 2/11/2026 1,167 59,494 18,306 494 0 863 198 21,917 653 42,432 101,925
6 MOD COCC 060000 1 13002 Maintenance Worker Temporary Vacant (Vice:  J.Q. Cepeda) Vacant ----- 0 ----- ----- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

4 2 259,894 176,790 436,684

RESEARCH, PLANNING & EVALUATION
Home Business Unit (070000)

1 RPE ----- 070000 1 06003 Accountant II Permanent Vacant (Vice:  N. Carlos) Vacant ----- 0 ----- ----- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2 RPE ----- 070000 1 07001 Chief Planner Permanent Taitano, Katherine T.E. (Vice:  M.J. Duenas) CLT-Permanent QG3-13(D) 103,610 11/25/2021 11/25/2022 8,289 111,899 34,431 494 0 1,623 198 21,917 653 59,317 171,216
3 RPE ----- 070000 1 07002 Accounting Technician III Permanent Flisco, Agnes C. (Vice:  V.J. Estella) Permanent JG5-11(A) 62,442 7/18/2023 7/17/2024 2,498 64,940 19,982 494 0 942 198 21,917 653 44,187 109,126
4 RPE ----- 070000 1 07003 Program Coordinator III Permanent Calvo, Dominic Jerome M. (Vice:  A. C. Castro) Permanent NG5-5(D) 61,339 6/6/2023 6/6/2024 3,680 65,019 20,006 494 0 943 198 21,917 653 44,212 109,232
5 RPE ----- 070000 1 07004 Planner II Permanent Chargualaf, Wayne T. (Vice: A.C. Castro) Permanent MG5-1(A) 43,585 6/17/2024 6/16/2024 6,538 50,123 15,423 494 0 727 198 21,917 653 39,413 89,535

SALARIES BENEFITS
INCREMENT

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 84 of 288



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
Staffing Pattern - Fiscal Year 2026

No. Department Division HBU Filled Vacant Position No. Position Title Position Name of Incumbent Vice Appointment Grade/Step

Salary
(Annual) Last Date Date of Next Amount

Subtotal
(M + P)

Retirement
(Q x 30.77%)

Retire (DDI)
($19.01 x 26 PP)

Social Security
(Q x 6.20%)

Medicare
(Q x 1.45%)

Life
($7.63 x 26 PP)

Medical
(PREMIUM)

($842.98 x 26 PP)

Dental
(PREMIUM)

($25.11 x 26 PP)

Total 
Benefits

( R thru X)

Total
Salaries & 
Benefits
(Q + Y)

SALARIES BENEFITS
INCREMENT

6 RPE ----- 070000 1 07006 Accountant I Permanent
Cho, Sunny Eun (Temp-Exp 
03/31/2025) (Vice:  M. Legaspi) Temporary LG5-5(D) 52,367 8/27/2024 --- 0 52,367 16,113 494 0 759 198 21,917 653 40,136 92,503

7 RPE ----- 070000 1 07007 Planner III Permanent Vacant (Vice:  A.Say) Vacant NG5-10(B) 80,537 --- --- 0 80,537 24,781 494 0 1,168 198 21,917 653 49,212 129,749
8 RPE ----- 070000 1 07009 General Accounting Supervisor Permanent Garcia, Jerricho C. (Vice:  E.G. Rabino) CLT-Permanent PG5-7(E) 82,574 6/7/2023 06/6/2024 4,954 87,528 26,933 494 0 1,269 198 21,917 653 51,465 138,993
9 RPE ----- 070000 1 07012 Planner IV Permanent Aguon, Alicia P. (Vice:  V.J. Estella) CLT-Permanent OG5-7(A) 72,891 9/14/2023 9/14/2024 2,916 75,807 23,326 494 0 1,099 198 21,917 653 47,688 123,495

10 RPE 070000 1 07013 Accountant II Permanent Legaspi, Michael Julius G. (Vice:  M. Legaspi) CLT-Permanent MG5-7(F) 64,900 6/2/2025 6/2/2026 1,298 66,198 20,369 494 0 960 198 21,917 653 44,592 110,790
11 RPE ----- 070000 1 07014 Planner I Permanent Roldan, Kenneth Lee D. (Vice:  W. Chargualaf) CLT-Permanent KG5-1(F) 39,335 9/30/2024 9/30/2025 1,967 41,302 12,709 494 0 599 198 21,917 653 36,570 77,872

12 RPE ----- 070000 1 09049 Planner II Permanent Fathal, Jacqualine B. 
(Vice: A. Flisco - reprogrammed from 
Acct Tech II) CLT-Permanent MG5-1(A) 43,585 6/17/2024 6/17/2025 872 44,457 13,679 494 0 645 198 21,917 653 37,587 82,044

13 RPE ----- 070000 1 10002 Planner III Permanent Gatuz, Francesca L. (Vice:  A.L.I. Manibusan) CLT-Permanent NG5-6(D) 65,020 11/25/2023 11/25/2024 2,601 67,621 20,807 494 0 981 198 21,917 653 45,050 112,671
11 2 807,797 262,952 1,070,749

(HBU 08000 - NO LONGER USED - formerly Housing Services)

(HBU 09000 - NO LONGER USED - formerly Facilities, Maintenance & Engineering)

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
Home Business Unit (100000)

1 CD ----- 100000 1 07010 Program Coordinator II Permanent Santos, Brandon F.
(Vice:  P.A. Peralta - reprogrammed 
from PCI to PCII) CLT-Permanent MG5-5(A) 55,025 3/16/2024 3/16/2025 1,101 56,126 17,270 494 0 814 198 21,917 653 41,347 97,472

2 CD ----- 100000 1 09044 Program Coordinator II Permanent Taladoc, Jr., Perfecto B. (Vice:  D. Calvo-Transfer to RPE) CLT-Permanent MG5-8(E) 68,119 2/19/2025 2/18/2026 1,362 69,481 21,379 494 0 1,007 198 21,917 653 45,650 115,131
3 CD ----- 100000 1 09045 Program Coordinator III Permanent Vacant (Vice:  J.Q Terlaje) Vacant NG4-15(B) 0 7/19/2022 7/19/2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 653 653 653
4 CD ----- 100000 1 09046 Planner II Permanent Vacant (Vice:  J.Q. Terlaje) Vacant ----- 0 ----- ----- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5 CD ----- 100000 1 10003 Program Coordinator I Temporary Vacant (Vice:  L. Duenas) Vacant KG5-1(A) 37,472 7/11/2023 0 37,472 11,530 494 0 543 198 21,917 653 35,336 72,808

6 CD ----- 100000 1 12006 Program Coordinator II Permanent
Duenas, Louise F. (Temp-Exp 
09/30/2025) (Vice:  J. Espino) Temporary MG5-1(A) 43,585 3/11/2024 ----- 0 43,585 13,411 494 0 632 198 21,917 653 37,306 80,891

7 CD ----- 100000 1 10004 CD Manager Permanent Terlaje, Jo Lyn Q. (Vice:  New FY2023) CLT-Permanent PG5-12(C) 108,376 12/22/2024 12/22/2025 2,168 110,544 34,014 494 0 1,603 198 21,917 653 58,880 169,424
4 3 317,207 219,172 536,379

PUBLIC HOUSING-AMP1
Home Business Unit (111000)

1 PH-AMP1 ----- 111000 1 05007 Housing Administrative Officer Permanent Laitan, Velma Naputi (Vice:  A.T. Flores-reprogrammed) Permanent LG5-11(B) 72,882 5/14/2024 5/14/2025 1,458 74,340 22,874 494 0 1,078 198 21,917 653 47,215 121,555
2 PH-AMP1 ----- 111000 1 08018 Resident Relations Specialist Permanent Blas, Jeanna Rosemarie A. (Vice:  L. Cruz) Permanent MG5-5(C ) 56,094 5/31/2024 5/31/2025 1,122 57,216 17,605 494 0 830 198 21,917 653 41,698 98,914

3 PH-AMP1 ----- 111000 1 08020 Laborer Permanent
Pineda, Rey (Temp-Exp 
09/30/2025)

(Vice:  A.B. Aflague-reprogrammed 
from Admin Asst to Laborer) Temporary FM4-2(A) 34,404 10/18/2021 ----- 0 34,404 10,586 494 0 499 198 21,917 653 34,348 68,752

4 PH-AMP1 ----- 111000 1 09017 Laborer Permanent
Cruz, Manny K.  (Temp-Exp 
09/30/2025) (Vice:  G.B. Balicha-reprogram) Temporary FM4-1(A) 32,457 12/28/2023 ----- 0 32,457 9,987 494 0 471 198 21,917 653 33,721 66,178

5 PH-AMP1 ----- 111000 1 09022 Laborer Permanent
Olandez Jr., Ricardo C.  (Temp-Exp 
09/30/2025) (Vice:  E.Acupanda Temporary FM4-1(A) 32,457 --- ----- 0 32,457 9,987 494 0 471 198 21,917 653 33,721 66,178

6 PH-AMP1 ----- 111000 1 09031 Maintenance Worker Permanent Manabat, Julius (Vice:  J.M. Anderson) CLT-Permanent HM4-7(D) 56,285 4/27/2024 4/27/2025 1,126 57,411 17,665 494 0 832 198 21,917 653 41,761 99,171
7 PH-AMP1 ----- 111000 1 09036 Housing Facilities Assistant Permanent Machie, Maria-Christina A. (Vice:  M.L.T. Fejeran) CLT-Permanent JG5-5(A) 44,019 11/16/2023 11/16/2024 4,402 48,421 14,899 494 0 702 198 21,917 653 38,864 87,285
8 PH-AMP1 ----- 111000 1 11006 Property Site Manager *** Permanent Ada, Narcissa P. (Vice:  T.S. Mesa) CLT-Permanent PH4-6(C) 103,803 10/6/2024 10/6/2025 2,076 105,879 32,579 0 0 1,535 0 0 0 34,114 139,993
9 PH-AMP1 ----- 111000 1 11015 Interviewer Clerk Permanent Cruz, Maedale Q. (Vice:  R.C. Balatocan) Permanent GG5-15(E) 66,869 1/3/2023 1/3/2024 4,012 70,881 21,810 494 0 1,028 198 21,917 653 46,101 116,982

10 PH-AMP1 ----- 111000 1 11038 Clerk III Permanent
Santiago, Mary Grace A.  (Temp-
Exp 09/30/2025)

(Vice:  NEW-BOC Res. No. FY2019-
019-reprogrammed from Clerk I to 
Clerk III) Temporary EG5-1(F) 26,572 2/12/2024 ----- 0 26,572 8,176 494 0 385 198 21,917 653 31,824 58,396

11 PH-AMP1 111000 1 11029 Interviewer Clerk Permanent
Sahagon, Ana C. (Temp-Exp 
09/30/2025) Temporary GG5-1(F) 29,869 0 29,869 9,191 494 0 433 198 21,917 653 32,887 62,756

12 PH-AMP1 ----- 111000 1 11033 Building Maintenance Supervisor Permanent Balicha, Gemar B.
(Vice:  NEW-ED Memo dtd 
10/14/2021) CLT-Permanent LM4-6(A ) 81,103 10/19/2023 10/19/2024 3,244 84,347 25,954 494 0 1,223 198 21,917 653 50,440 134,787

13 PH-AMP1 ----- 111000 1 11101 Laborer Permanent Benavente, Joshua J. (Vice:  T. Starr) Temporary FM3-1(A) 28,045 3/3/2025 ----- 0 28,045 8,629 494 0 407 198 21,917 653 32,299 60,344
13 0 682,298 498,992 1,181,291

PUBLIC HOUSING-AMP2
Home Business Unit (112000)

1 PH-AMP2 ----- 112000 1 03003 Housing Facilities Assistant Permanent Vacant (Vice:  E. Evangelista) Vacant JG5-1(A) 34,867 ----- ----- 1,743 36,610 11,265 494 0 531 198 21,917 653 35,059 71,669
2 PH-AMP2 ----- 112000 1 05008 Clerk III Permanent Saladier, Atrin J. (Vice:  S. Rogolofoi) Probationary EG5-1(F) 26,572 10/1/2024 10/1/2025 1,329 27,901 8,585 494 0 405 198 21,917 653 32,253 60,153
3 PH-AMP2 ----- 112000 1 08021 Interviewer Clerk Permanent Quenga, Elizabeth Asano Permanent GG5-14(F) 63,709 2/14/2025 2/14/2026 1,274 64,983 19,995 494 0 942 198 21,917 653 44,201 109,184
4 PH-AMP2 ----- 112000 1 08029 Resident Relations Specialist Permanent Blas, Virginia T. (Vice:  D.U. Del Rosario) CLT-Permanent MG5-4(D) 53,423 9/21/2024 9/20/2025 2,671 56,094 17,260 494 0 813 198 21,917 653 41,337 97,431
5 PH-AMP2 ----- 112000 1 09016 Interviewer Clerk Permanent Rogolofoi, Shirley Ann P. (Vice:  P. Cruz) CLT-Permanent GG5-1(F) 29,869 10/1/2024 10/1/2025 1,493 31,362 9,650 494 0 455 198 21,917 653 33,368 64,730
6 PH-AMP2 ----- 112000 1 09028 Maintenance Worker Permanent Cruz, Patrick G. (Vice:  M. Orot) CLT-Permanent HM4-1(D) 39,678 4/1/2025 4/1/2026 1,984 41,662 12,819 494 0 604 198 21,917 653 36,686 78,348
7 PH-AMP2 ----- 112000 1 11007 Property Site Manager *** Permanent Cura, Gina M. (Vice:  L.S. Castro) CLT-Permanent PH4-5( E) 99,398 12/5/2024 12/5/2025 1,988 101,386 31,196 494 0 1,470 198 21,917 653 55,930 157,315
8 PH-AMP2 ----- 112000 1 11014 Maintenance Worker Temporary Vidal, Roy Cate (Vice:  R.R. Munier) CLT-Permanent HM4-5(D) 50,093 4/1/2025 3/31/2026 1,002 51,095 15,722 494 0 741 198 21,917 653 39,726 90,821
9 PH-AMP2 ----- 112000 1 11019 Housing Administrative Officer Permanent Mendiola, Maria Magdalena (Vice:  V.M. Torres) CLT-Permanent LG5-3(C) 46,167 12/14/2024 12/13/2025 923 47,090 14,490 494 0 683 198 21,917 653 38,435 85,526

10 PH-AMP2 ----- 112000 1 11028 Clerk III Permanent Vacant (Vice:  A. Saladier) Vacant EG5-2(A) 26,832 8/26/2019 ----- 0 26,832 8,256 494 0 389 198 21,917 653 31,908 58,740

11 PH-AMP2 112000 1 11034 Building Maintenance Supervisor Permanent Orot, Michael M. (Vice: B.S. Cruz) CLT-Permanent LM4-2(A) 64,241 07/18/2024 7/17/2025 1,285 65,526 20,162 494 0 950 198 21,917 653 44,375 109,901
12 PH-AMP2 ----- 112000 1 12011 Maintenance Worker Permanent Acfalle, Peter P. (Vice:  J.D. Naputi) CLT-Permanent HM4-4(E) 47,730 10/2/2024 10/2/2025 2,387 50,117 433,277 483,394

10 2 600,658 866,555 1,467,213

PUBLIC HOUSING-AMP3
Home Business Unit (113000)

1 PH-AMP3 ----- 113000 1 09018 Maintenance Worker Permanent
Cacabilos, Alfredo R. (Temp-Exp 
09/30/2025) (Vice:  D. Lungcay) Temporary HM4-1(A) 38,555 5/9/2022 ----- 0 38,555 11,863 494 0 559 198 21,917 653 35,685 74,240

2 PH-AMP3 ----- 113000 1 09019 Maintenance Worker Temporary Kim, Yong Nam (Vice:  L.O. Torre) CLT-Permanent HM4-3(C) 42,900 11/21/2023 11/21/2024 2,145 45,045 13,860 494 0 653 198 21,917 653 37,776 82,821
3 PH-AMP3 ----- 113000 1 09020 Maintenance Worker Permanent Ignacio, David J. (Vice:  D. Ignacio) CLT-Permanent HM4-3(C) 44,162 1/30/2024 1/30/2025 2,208 46,370 14,268 494 0 672 198 21,917 653 38,203 84,574
4 PH-AMP3 ----- 113000 1 09021 Maintenance Worker Permanent Kelly, Eric Matthew (Vice:  F. A.D. Santos) CLT-Permanent HM4-1(A) 38,555 4/22/2024 4/22/2024 1,928 40,483 12,457 494 0 587 198 21,917 653 36,307 76,789

5 PH-AMP3 ----- 113000 1 09039 Housing Facilities Assistant Permanent
Miner, Joann P. (Temp-Exp 
09/30/2025) (Vice:  J.R.A. Blas) Temporary JG5-2(A) 36,959 6/29/2015 ----- 0 36,959 11,372 494 0 536 198 21,917 653 35,171 72,130

6 PH-AMP3 ----- 113000 1 09048 Administrative Assistant Permanent Vacant (Vice:  J.R.A. Blas) Vacant ----- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
7 PH-AMP3 ----- 113000 1 11002 Interviewer Clerk Permanent Monforte, Anastasia (Probation) (Vice:  R. Santiago) Probationary GG5-1(F) 29,869 10/1/2024 10/1/2025 1,493 31,362 9,650 494 0 455 198 21,917 653 33,368 64,730
8 PH-AMP3 ----- 113000 1 11008 Property Site Manager *** Permanent Bamba, Patrick R. (Vice:  P.J. Mendiola) CLT-Permanent PH4-2(B) 79,890 3/6/2023 3/6/2024 11,984 91,874 28,269 494 0 1,332 198 21,917 653 52,865 144,738
9 PH-AMP3 ----- 113000 1 11012 Maintenance Worker Temporary Dolojan, Joel P. (Vice:  D. Bersamin, Jr.) Probationary FM3-1(A) 28,045 3/27/2023 ----- 4,207 32,252 9,924 494 0 468 198 21,917 653 33,654 65,906

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 85 of 288



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
Staffing Pattern - Fiscal Year 2026

No. Department Division HBU Filled Vacant Position No. Position Title Position Name of Incumbent Vice Appointment Grade/Step

Salary
(Annual) Last Date Date of Next Amount

Subtotal
(M + P)

Retirement
(Q x 30.77%)

Retire (DDI)
($19.01 x 26 PP)

Social Security
(Q x 6.20%)

Medicare
(Q x 1.45%)

Life
($7.63 x 26 PP)

Medical
(PREMIUM)

($842.98 x 26 PP)

Dental
(PREMIUM)

($25.11 x 26 PP)

Total 
Benefits

( R thru X)

Total
Salaries & 
Benefits
(Q + Y)

SALARIES BENEFITS
INCREMENT

10 PH-AMP3 ----- 113000 1 11013 Housing Administrative Officer Permanent Pablo, Darlene C. (Vice:  J.R.A. Blas) CLT-Permanent LG5-2(B ) 43,139 12/11/2024 12/11/2025 2,157 45,296 13,938 494 0 657 198 21,917 653 37,857 83,153
11 PH-AMP3 ----- 113000 1 11021 Maintenance Worker Permanent Rechy, Thomas (Vice:  B.T. Cruz) CLT-Permanent HM4-2(A) 40,869 1/30/2025 1/30/2026 2,043 42,912 13,204 494 0 622 198 21,917 653 37,089 80,002

12 PH-AMP3 ----- 113000 1 11024 Resident Relations Specialist Permanent Tyquiengco, Bernadette V.
(Vice:  NEW-BOC Res. No. FY2016-
005) CLT-Permanent MG5-5(C) 56,094 1/16/2025 1/15/2026 1,122 57,216 17,605 494 0 830 198 21,917 653 41,698 98,914

13 PH-AMP3 ----- 113000 1 11027 Maintenance Worker Permanent Santos, Florencio A.D. (Vice:  M.S. Aquiningoc) CLT-Permanent HM4-2(A) 40,869 1/30/2025 1/30/2026 2,043 42,912 13,204 494 0 622 198 21,917 653 37,089 80,002
14 PH-AMP3 ----- 113000 1 11030 Clerk III Temporary Muna, Mayrenalyn MT (Vice: V. Santos) Temporary EG5-1(A) 25,314 4/7/2025 0 25,314 7,789 494 0 367 198 21,917 653 31,419 56,733
15 PH-AMP3 ----- 113000 1 11032 Maintenance Worker Permanent Vacant (Vice:  J. Dolojan) Vacant LG4-1(F) 38,555 ----- ----- 0 38,555 11,863 494 0 559 198 21,917 653 35,685 74,240

16 PH-AMP3 ----- 113000 1 11035 Building Maintenance Supervisor Permanent Lungcay, Dante C.
(Vice:  NEW-ED Memo dtd 
10/14/2021) CLT-Permanent LM4-2(E ) 66,773 10/19/2024 10/18/2025 1,335 68,108 20,957 494 0 988 198 21,917 653 45,208 113,316

14 2 683,214 569,076 1,252,290

PUBLIC HOUSING-AMP4
Home Business Unit (114000)

1 PH-AMP4 ----- 114000 1 01005 Laborer Permanent Vacant (Vice:  T. San Nicolas) Vacant ----- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2 PH-AMP4 ----- 114000 1 01006 Housing Administrative Officer Permanent Nelson, Tina V. (Vice:  P.R.S. Roberto) Permanent LG5-10(D) 70,079 1/29/2023 1/29/2024 2,803 72,882 22,426 494 0 1,057 198 21,917 653 46,746 119,628
3 PH-AMP4 ----- 114000 1 08017 Housing Specialist Permanent Balajadia, Danielle C. (Vice:  A. Salas) CLT-Permanent LG5-1(D) 41,479 10/2/2024 10/2/2025 2,074 43,553 13,401 494 0 632 198 21,917 653 37,296 80,849
4 PH-AMP4 ----- 114000 1 09025 Maintenance Worker Permanent Vacant (Vice:  P. Elbo) Vacant HM3-1(A) 33,315 ----- ----- 0 33,315 10,251 494 0 483 198 21,917 653 33,997 67,312

5 PH-AMP4 ----- 114000 1 09026 Interviewer Clerk Permanent
Baza, Nicholas Jorge (Temp-Exp 
09/30/2025) (Vice:  R.L. Iwanaga) Temporary GG5-1(A) 28,455 9/16/2019 ----- 0 28,455 8,756 494 0 413 198 21,917 653 32,431 60,886

6 PH-AMP4 ----- 114000 1 09029 Maintenance Worker Permanent Elbo, Ponciano Ejada (Vice:  R.C. Vidal) CLT-Permanent HM4-1(D) 39,678 4/1/2025 4/1/2026 1,984 41,662 12,819 494 0 604 198 21,917 653 36,686 78,348

7 PH-AMP4 ----- 114000 1 09035 Maintenance Worker Permanent Iwanaga, Ryoichi Leo

(Vice:  J.J. Cruz-reprogrammed from 
Laborer to Maintenance Wkr-ED 
memo dtd 10/26/2021) Permanent HM4-2(D) 42,059 11/1/2024 10/31/2025 2,103 44,162 13,589 494 0 640 198 21,917 653 37,492 81,654

8 PH-AMP4 ----- 114000 1 09041 Maintenance Worker Permanent Macias, Raymond A. (Vice:  G.S. Cruz Jr.) CLT-Permanent HM4-10(C) 66,403 8/23/2024 8/22/2025 1,328 67,731 20,841 494 0 982 198 21,917 653 45,086 112,817

9 PH-AMP4 ----- 114000 1 09043 Housing Facilities Assistant Permanent Cruz, Joseph Jay

(Vice:  S.E. Santos-FY2020 position 
reprogrammed from Laborer to 
DCCII) CLT-Permanent JG5-3(E ) 40,721 11/16/2023 11/15/2024 4,072 44,793 13,783 494 0 649 198 21,917 653 37,695 82,488

10 PH-AMP4 ----- 114000 1 11001 Program Coordinator II Temporary
Mendiola, Kristen E. (Temp-Exp 
09/30/2025) (Vice:  R. Samuel) Temporary MG5-1(F) 45,752 ----- 0 45,752 14,078 494 0 663 198 21,917 653 38,004 83,756

11 PH-AMP4 ----- 114000 1 11005 Interviewer Clerk Permanent Gabayeron, Sky-Jorge W. (Vice:  L. Santos) CLT-Permanent GG5-1(D) 29,283 1/2/2024 1/2/2025 1,464 30,747 9,461 494 0 446 198 21,917 653 33,170 63,917
12 PH-AMP4 ----- 114000 1 11009 Property Site Manager *** Permanent San Nicolas, Philomena C. (Vice:  T.D. Rotrock) CLT-Permanent PH4-9(C) 125,389 4/1/2024 4/1/2025 2,508 127,897 39,354 494 0 1,855 198 21,917 653 64,471 192,368
13 PH-AMP4 ----- 114000 1 11017 Maintenance Worker Permanent Rodriguez, Chris J. (Vice:  R.V. Flores) CLT-Permanent HM4-10(F) 68,377 10/6/2024 10/5/2025 1,368 69,745 21,460 494 0 1,011 198 21,917 653 45,735 115,479

14 PH-AMP4 ----- 114000 1 11018 Maintenance Worker Permanent Vegafria, Denny A.
from Laborer to Maintenance Wkr; 
ED memo dtd 10/26/2021) CLT-Permanent HM4-2(D) 42,059 11/1/2024 10/31/2025 2,103 44,162 13,589 494 0 640 198 21,917 653 37,492 81,654

15 PH-AMP4 ----- 114000 1 11020 Building Maintenance Leader Permanent Morales, Josue A. (Vice:  P.U. Quichocho) CLT-Permanent JM4-6(D) 64,580 5/17/2024 5/16/2025 3,229 67,809 20,865 494 0 983 198 21,917 653 45,111 112,920
16 PH-AMP4 ----- 114000 1 11022 Interviewer Clerk Permanent Pablo, Joanne Q. (Vice:  Z.M. Perez) Probationary GG5-1(A) 28,455 10/1/2024 10/1/2025 1,423 29,878 9,193 494 0 433 198 21,917 653 32,890 62,767
17 PH-AMP4 ----- 114000 1 11023 Resident Relations Specialist Permanent Sayama-Toves, Nanette F. (Vice:  J.T. Perez) CLT-Permanent MG5-5(F) 57,761 2/28/2024 2/27/2025 1,155 58,916 18,129 494 0 854 198 21,917 653 42,246 101,162
18 PH-AMP4 ----- 114000 1 11025 Program Coordinator II Temporary Vacant (Vice:  T. Pablo) Vacant KG5-1(A) 37,472 ----- ----- 0 37,472 11,530 494 0 543 198 21,917 653 35,336 72,808
19 PH-AMP4 ----- 114000 1 11026 Interviewer Clerk Temporary Vacant (Vice:  J. Pablo) Vacant ----- 0 0 0 0 494 0 0 198 21,917 653 23,263 23,263
20 PH-AMP4 ----- 114000 1 11031 Program Coordinator II Temporary Vacant (Vice:  G. Pobre) Vacant MG5-1(F) 45,752 ----- 0 45,752 14,078 494 0 663 198 21,917 653 38,004 83,756

21 PH-AMP4 114000 1 11036 Building Maintenance Supervisor Permanent Danieli, John E. (Vice: New FY2022) CLT-Permanent LM4-2(F) 67,435 12/6/2023 12/6/2024 2,697 70,132 21,580 494 0 1,017 198 21,917 653 45,860 115,992
16 5 1,004,815 789,011 1,793,826

(HBU 115000 - NOT USED - formerly Public Housing-Central Cost Team)

GUMA TRANKILIDAT
Home Business Unit (116000)

1 GT ----- 116000 1 08026 Resident Manager Permanent Vacant (Vice:  J.Q. Gofigan) Vacant ----- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2 GT ----- 116000 1 08027 Maintenance Man I Permanent Vacant (Vice:  F.J. Pangelinan) Vacant ----- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
3 GT ----- 116000 1 09024 Maintenance Worker Permanent Vacant (Vice:  R. Sablan) Vacant FM4-1(A) 32,457 0 32,457 9,987 494 0 471 198 21,917 653 33,721 66,178
4 GT ----- 116000 1 11010 Property Site Manager Permanent Mendiola, PearlyJean J. (Vice:  P.R. Bamba) CLT-Permanent PH4-2(F) 82,964 2/6/2025 2/6/2026 1,659 84,623 26,039 494 0 1,227 198 21,917 653 50,529 135,152

1 3 117,080 84,249 201,330

MULTIFAMILY SERVICE COORDINATOR
Home Business Unit (116000)

1 GT ----- 116000 1 05010 Program Coordinator III Permanent
Abwe, Irma O. (Temp-Exp 
09/30/2025)

(Vice: E. Santiago - Transferred to 
A/E Pos. No. 13007 dated 
03/13/2023) Temporary MG5-1(A) 43,585 4/10/2023 ----- 0 43,585 13,411 494 0 632 198 21,917 653 37,306 80,891

1 0 43,585 37,306 80,891

SECTION 8 (HCVP)
Home Business Unit (120000)

1 SEC8 ----- 120000 1 01010 Interviewer Clerk Permanent Ilon, Narie A. (Probation) (Vice:  J. Del Rosario) Probationary HG5-1(A) 30,357 12/16/2024 12/16/2025 1,518 31,875 9,808 494 0 462 198 21,917 653 33,533 65,408

2 SEC8 ----- 120000 1 07005 Interviewer Clerk Permanent Santos Jr., Ronnie Q.
(Vice:  M.G.B. Gagaring - FY2016 
position reprog. from PCI to IC) CLT-Permanent GG5-7(C) 41,147 1/11/2025 1/11/2026 2,057 43,204 13,294 494 0 626 198 21,917 653 37,183 80,388

3 SEC8 ----- 120000 1 08001 Section 8 Administrator Permanent Alejandro, Nicole R. (Vice: N. San Nicolas) CLT-Permanent OG5-6(A) 82,069 2/10/2025 2/10/2026 4,103 86,172 26,515 494 0 1,250 198 21,917 653 51,028 137,200
4 SEC8 ----- 120000 1 08002 Housing Specialist Permanent Quintanilla, Davina J.O. (Vice:  E.Q. Perez [Lujan]) CLT-Permanent LG5-4(C) 48,937 5/27/2024 5/26/2025 979 49,916 15,359 494 0 724 198 21,917 653 39,346 89,262
5 SEC8 ----- 120000 1 08003 Housing Specialist Supervisor Permanent Balajadia, Joanne C. Permanent NG5-15(B) 107,777 7/21/2024 7/21/2025 2,156 109,933 33,826 494 0 1,594 198 21,917 653 58,683 168,616
6 SEC8 ----- 120000 1 08004 Housing Specialist Supervisor Permanent Francisco, Rosie E. Permanent NG5-15(A) 106,740 3/12/2025 3/12/2026 2,135 108,875 33,501 494 0 1,579 198 21,917 653 58,342 167,217
7 SEC8 ----- 120000 1 08005 Housing Specialist Permanent Taitague, Johanna Marie T. (Vice:  D.U. Del Rosario) CLT-Permanent LG5-6(B) 54,461 2/6/2025 2/6/2026 1,089 55,550 17,093 494 0 805 198 21,917 653 41,161 96,711
8 SEC8 ----- 120000 1 08006 Housing Specialist Permanent Bondal, Maritess Liban (Vice:  M.S. Joshua) CLT-Permanent LG5-3(A) 45,287 9/13/2024 9/13/2025 2,264 47,551 14,632 494 0 689 198 21,917 653 38,584 86,135
9 SEC8 ----- 120000 1 08007 Housing Specialist Permanent Mendiola, Venessa V.C. (Vice:  L. Dean CLT-Permanent LG5-1(A) 40,305 8/12/2024 8/12/2025 806 41,111 12,650 0 0 596 0 0 0 13,246 54,357

10 SEC8 ----- 120000 1 08009 Housing Specialist Permanent Reyes, Emma T. (Vice:  P.J. Mendiola) CLT-Permanent LG5-10(B) 68,756 2/20/2025 2/20/2026 1,375 70,131 21,579 0 0 1,017 0 0 0 22,596 92,727
11 SEC8 ----- 120000 1 08011 Housing Specialist Permanent White, Denise Roberto (Vice:  A. Mayo-San Nicolas) CLT-Permanent LG5-6(B) 54,461 2/22/2025 2/22/2026 1,089 55,550 17,093 494 0 805 198 21,917 653 41,161 96,711

12 SEC8 ----- 120000 1 08012 Interviewer Clerk Permanent
Del Rosario, Jana Lynn P. 
(Probation)

(Vice:  M.M. Mendiola-reprogrammed 
from IC to Admin Aide) CLT-Permanent GG5-1(F) 29,869 10/1/2024 10/1/2025 1,493 31,362 9,650 494 0 455 198 21,917 653 33,368 64,730

13 SEC8 ----- 120000 1 08013 Administrative Aide Permanent Vacant (Vice:  V.M. Torres) Vacant ----- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

14 SEC8 ----- 120000 1 08014 Clerk III Permanent Vacant (Vice:  V. Santos) Vacant EG5-1(F) 26,572 ----- 0 26,572 8,176 494 0 385 198 21,917 653 31,824 58,396

15 SEC8 ----- 120000 1 08023 Housing Specialist Permanent Vacant
(Vice:  G.M. Cura-reprogrammed 
from PCII to HS - temp. funding) Vacant LG4-1(A) 34,827 ----- ----- 0 34,827 10,716 494 0 505 198 21,917 653 34,484 69,311

16 SEC8 ----- 120000 1 08024 Program Coordinator I (FSS) Permanent Vacant (Vice:  E.G. Ojeda) Vacant ----- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 86 of 288



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
Staffing Pattern - Fiscal Year 2026

No. Department Division HBU Filled Vacant Position No. Position Title Position Name of Incumbent Vice Appointment Grade/Step

Salary
(Annual) Last Date Date of Next Amount

Subtotal
(M + P)

Retirement
(Q x 30.77%)

Retire (DDI)
($19.01 x 26 PP)

Social Security
(Q x 6.20%)

Medicare
(Q x 1.45%)

Life
($7.63 x 26 PP)

Medical
(PREMIUM)

($842.98 x 26 PP)

Dental
(PREMIUM)

($25.11 x 26 PP)

Total 
Benefits

( R thru X)

Total
Salaries & 
Benefits
(Q + Y)

SALARIES BENEFITS
INCREMENT

17 SEC8 ----- 120000 1 08028 Interviewer Clerk Permanent Vacant (Vice:  M. McCormick) Vacant JG5-1(A) 34,867 ----- ----- 0 34,867 10,729 494 0 506 198 21,917 653 34,497 69,364
18 SEC8 ----- 120000 1 08030 Housing Specialist Supervisor Permanent Quenga Jr., Sebastian R. (Vice:  B. Bamba) Permanent NG5-5(C) 60,761 8/7/2024 8/7/2025 1,215 61,976 19,070 494 0 899 198 21,917 653 43,232 105,208
19 SEC8 ----- 120000 1 09002 Interviewer Clerk Permanent Sablan, Lisa A. (Vice:  M.S. Joshua) Permanent GG5-15(F) 67,531 1/2/2025 1/2/2026 1,351 68,882 21,195 494 0 999 198 21,917 653 45,457 114,338

20 SEC8 ----- 120000 1 09009
Building Inspector (Housing 
Inspector) Permanent McCormick, Mark Ray M. (Vice:  R. Darlow) CLT-Permanent JG5-1(A) 34,867 8/20/2024 8/20/2025 1,743 36,610 11,265 494 0 531 198 21,917 653 35,059 71,669

21 SEC8 ----- 120000 1 09010
Building Inspector (Housing 
Inspector) Permanent Anderson, Jesse M. (Vice:  P.B. Aguon) CLT-Permanent JG5-8(F) 55,033 10/19/2024 10/19/2025 1,101 56,134 17,272 494 0 814 198 21,917 653 41,349 97,483

22 SEC8 ----- 120000 1 09011 Housing Inspector Supervisor Permanent Baza, Stephen C. (Vice:  N. Perez-Reprogram) CLT-Permanent OG5-11( C ) 93,810 11/20/2024 11/20/2025 1,876 95,686 29,443 494 0 1,387 198 21,917 653 54,093 149,779

23 SEC8 ----- 120000 1 09012
Building Inspector (Housing 
Inspector) Permanent San Agustin, John C. Permanent JG5-12(E) 68,797 5/27/2024 5/27/2025 1,376 70,173 21,592 494 0 1,018 198 21,917 653 45,873 116,046

24 SEC8 ----- 120000 1 09038
Building Inspector II (Housing 
Inspector) Permanent Perez, Nick T. (Vice:  R.W. Hess) CLT-Permanent ----- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

25 SEC8 ----- 120000 1 12003 Interviewer Clerk Permanent Santos, Vanessa Joy C. (Vice:  V. Mendiola) CLT-Permanent GG5-1(F) 29,869 10/1/2024 10/1/2025 1,493 31,362 9,650 494 0 455 198 21,917 653 33,368 64,730

26 SEC8 ----- 120000 1 12014 Interviewer Clerk Permanent
Padrones, Pearl Ashley (Temp-Exp 
09/30/2025) (Vice: New FY2023) Temporary GG5-1(A) 28,455 6/21/2021 0 28,455 8,756 494 0 413 198 21,917 653 32,431 60,886

27 SEC8 ----- 120000 1 12005 Clerk II Permanent Vacant (Vice:  S.F. Yoma) Vacant DG5-1(A ) 24,066 ----- ----- 0 24,066 7,405 494 0 349 198 21,917 653 31,017 55,083
28 SEC8 ----- 120000 1 12007 Interviewer Clerk Permanent Gumataotao, Erica Ann Camacho (Vice:  D.R. Perez) CLT-Permanent GG5-6(D) 39,188 11/25/2024 11/25/2025 1,959 41,147 12,661 494 0 597 198 21,917 653 36,521 77,668

29 SEC8 ----- 120000 1 12008
Building Inspector (Housing 
Inspector) Permanent Vacant (Vice:  S. Baza) Vacant ----- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

30 SEC8 ----- 120000 1 12009 Housing Specialist Permanent Isidro, Javier F. (Vice:  S. Quenga) CLT-Permanent LG5-1(E) 41,894 10/9/2024 10/9/2025 2,095 43,989 13,535 494 0 638 198 21,917 653 37,436 81,425
31 SEC8 ----- 120000 1 12010 Housing Specialist Permanent Debibar, Joyleen M. (Vice:  M.A. Rivera) CLT-Permanent LG5-5(F) 53,414 3/19/2025 3/18/2026 1,068 54,482 16,764 494 0 790 198 21,917 653 40,817 95,299
32 SEC8 ----- 120000 1 12012 Program Coordinator III Permanent Alejandro, Nicole R. (Vice:  T. Cruz - Reprogram) CLT-Permanent NG5-9(A) 75,248 1/9/2024 1/9/2025 1,505 76,753 23,617 494 0 1,113 198 21,917 653 47,993 124,746

25 7 1,517,213 971,939 2,489,152

ARCHITECTURAL/ENGINEERING
Home Business Unit (130000)

1 A/E ----- 130000 1 09001 A/E Manager Permanent Perez, Sonny P. (Vice:  A.H. Santos) CLT-Permanent RM4-9(A) 135,299 2/5/2024 2/5/2025 2,706 138,005 42,464 494 0 2,001 198 21,917 653 67,728 205,733
2 A/E ----- 130000 1 09003 Planner III Permanent Hess, Robert W. (Vice:  A.M. Manglona) CLT-Permanent NG5-9(B) 75,978 1/15/2024 1/15/2025 1,520 77,498 23,846 494 0 1,124 198 21,917 653 48,233 125,730
3 A/E ----- 130000 1 09004 Planner III Permanent Manglona, Andrew M. (Vice:  R.T. Gutierrez) CLT-Permanent NG5-13(A) 94,998 1/27/2025 1/27/2026 1,900 96,898 29,816 0 0 1,405 0 0 0 31,221 128,118

4 A/E ----- 130000 1 13007 Program Coordinator III Permanent Santiago, Ervin S.
(Vice: NEW FY2023 - BOC Res. No 
2022-015) CLT-Permanent NG5-4(C) 57,321 3/17/2025 3/17/2026 1,146 58,467 17,990 494 0 848 198 21,917 653 42,101 100,569

5 A/E ----- 130000 1 13006 Program Coordinator I Permanent Vacant (Vice: M. Canete) Vacant KG4-1(F) 33,997 680 34,677 10,670 494 0 503 198 21,917 653 34,436 69,113
6 A/E ----- 130000 1 09014 Engineer III Permanent Racuyal, Michael S. (Vice:  A.A. James) CLT-Permanent OM4-7(F ) 87,816 10/28/2023 10/28/2024 1,756 89,572 27,561 494 0 1,299 198 21,917 653 52,123 141,696

7 A/E ----- 130000 1 13001 Construction Inspector III Permanent Vacant
(Vice:  NEW-BOC Res. No. FY08-
069) Vacant 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

8 A/E ----- 130000 1 13003 Engineer II Permanent Fernandez, Miguel T. (Probation) (Vice:  A.A. Tambora) Probationary NG5-9(E ) 78,214 12/11/2024 12/11/2026 1,564 79,778 24,548 494 0 1,157 198 21,917 653 48,968 128,746
9 A/E ----- 130000 1 13004 Engineer II Temporary Vacant (Vice:  M. Fernandez) Vacant NG5-9(A) 75,248 1,505 76,753 23,617 494 0 1,113 198 21,917 653 47,993 124,746

10 A/E ----- 130000 1 13005 Administrative Aide Permanent Vacant (Vice:  C. Bensan) Vacant 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6 4 651,648 372,802 1,024,450

Total 8,348,704 5,919,806 14,268,511

FTE POSITION BREAKDOWN EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT BREAKDOWN
Staffing on BOARD 126.00 Unclassified: 3 Exempt: 2 2%

Vacancies 35.00 Permanent: 146 Unclassified: 1 1%

Total Board-Approved FTE 161.00 Temporary: 12 Permanent: 19 15%
Temporary (Part-Time): 0 CLT-Permanent: 78 62%

Probationary: 9 7%
TOTAL FTE POSITIONS: 161 Limited-Term: 0 0%

Temporary: 17 13%
Temporary (Part-Time): 0 0%

TOTAL EMPLOYEE APPTS: 126 100%
Vacancy: 35

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 87 of 288



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
CDBG - DR

Staffing Pattern - Fiscal Year 2026

A B C D E F G H I J K L M N O P Q R S T U V W X Y

No. Department Division HBU Filled Vacant Position No. Position Title Position Name of Incumbent Vice Appointment Grade/Step
Salary

(Annual) Last Date
Date of 

Next Amount
Subtotal
(M + P)

Retirement
(Q x 30.77%)

Retire (DDI)
($19.01 x 26 PP)

Social 
Security

(Q x 6.20%)
Medicare

(Q x 1.45%)

Life
($7.63 x 26 

PP)

Medical
(PREMIUM)

($842.98 x 26 
PP)

Dental
(PREMIUM)
($25.11 x 26 

PP)

Total 
Benefits

( R thru X)

Total
Salaries & 
Benefits
(Q + Y)

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT DISASTER RECOVERY
Home Business Unit (DR20250)

1 AD/EX CDBG-DR 1 202501 Chief Planner Temporary Aguon, Alicia P. (Vice:  New) Temporary QG5-10(A) 103,610 ----- ----- 0 103,610 31,881 494 0 1,502 198 21,917 653 56,646 160,256
2 AD/EX CDBG-DR 1 202502 Public Informations Officer Temporary Mortera, Tyler Matanane (Vice:  New) Temporary MG5-6(D) 60,026 ----- ----- 0 60,026 18,470 494 0 870 198 21,917 653 42,603 102,629

3 AD/EX CDBG-DR 1 202503 Administrative Assistant Temporary Taitingfong, Kathleen Jean P.    (Detailed) (Vice:  New) Temporary JG5-2(F) 2,234 ----- ----- 0 38,390 11,813 494 0 557 198 21,917 653 35,632 74,022
4 AD/EX CDBG-DR 1 202504 Data Control Clerk II Temporary Vacant (Vice:  New) Vacant ----- ----- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5 AD/EX CDBG-DR 1 202505 Loan Administrator Temporary Vacant (Vice:  New) Vacant ----- ----- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
6 AD/EX CDBG-DR 1 202506 Planner III Temporary Pinaula, Jeffrey Shawn (Vice:  New) Temporary NG5-9(D) 77,439 ----- ----- 0 77,439 23,828 494 0 1,123 198 21,917 653 48,214 125,653
7 AD/EX CDBG-DR 1 202507 Planner III Temporary Suharto, Adam Susilo T. (Vice:  New) Temporary NG5-5(C) 60,761 ----- ----- 0 60,761 18,696 494 0 881 198 21,917 653 42,840 103,601

8 AD/EX CDBG-DR 1 202508 Program Coordinator II Temporary Meno, Calen Michel Cruz (Vice:  New) Temporary MG5-6(A) 58,327 ----- ----- 0 58,327 17,947 494 0 846 198 21,917 653 42,056 100,383
9 AD/EX CDBG-DR 1 202509 Program Coordinator I Temporary Cruz Jr., Phillip V. (Vice:  New) Temporary KG5-3(A) 42,103 ----- ----- 0 42,103 12,955 494 0 610 198 21,917 653 36,829 78,932
10 FISCAL CDBG-DR 1 202510 Deputy Controller Temporary Garcia, Jerricho C. (Vice:  New) Temporary RG5-8(B) 102,085 ----- ----- 0 102,085 31,412 494 0 1,480 198 21,917 653 56,155 158,240
11 FISCAL CDBG-DR 1 202511 Accountant III Temporary Quenga, Flloyd Jacob (Vice:  New) Temporary NG5-8(A) 70,988 ----- ----- 0 70,988 21,843 494 0 1,029 198 21,917 653 46,135 117,123
12 FISCAL CDBG-DR 1 202512 Accountant II Temporary Vacant (Vice:  New) Vacant ----- ----- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
13 FISCAL CDBG-DR 1 202513 Accountant II Temporary Vacant (Vice:  New) Vacant ----- ----- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
14 PROC DIV CDBG-DR 1 202514 Buyer Supervisor Temporary Camacho, Patricia B. (Vice:  New) Temporary LG5-8(E) 62,993 ----- ----- 0 62,993 19,383 494 0 913 198 21,917 653 43,559 106,552
15 PROC DIV CDBG-DR 1 202515 Buyer II Temporary Chamberlain, Andrew P. (Vice:  New) Temporary IG5-6(E) 45,216 ----- ----- 0 45,216 13,913 494 0 656 198 21,917 653 37,832 83,048
16 PROC DIV CDBG-DR 1 202516 Buyer II Temporary Briones, Brencis B. (Vice:  New) Temporary IG5-7(F) 48,404 ----- ----- 0 48,404 14,894 494 0 702 198 21,917 653 38,859 87,263
17 PROC DIV CDBG-DR 1 202517 Buyer II Temporary Vacant (Vice:  New) Vacant ----- ----- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
18 ACT SUPP CDBG-DR 1 202518 Program Coordinator II Temporary Deliguin, Leilanie. V. (Vice:  New) Temporary MG5-8(A) 65,536 ----- ----- 0 65,536 20,165 494 0 950 198 21,917 653 44,379 109,915
19 ACT SUPP CDBG-DR 1 202519 Community Program Aide II Temporary Vacant (Vice:  New) Vacant ----- ----- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
20 ACT SUPP CDBG-DR 1 202520 Community Program Aide II Temporary Vacant (Vice:  New) Vacant ----- ----- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
21 ACT SUPP CDBG-DR 1 202521 Community Program Aide II Temporary Vacant (Vice:  New) Vacant ----- ----- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
22 ACT SUPP CDBG-DR 1 202522 Community Program Aide II Temporary Vacant (Vice:  New) Vacant ----- ----- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
23 ACT SUPP CDBG-DR 1 202523 Community Program Aide I Temporary Vacant (Vice:  New) Vacant ----- ----- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
24 ACT SUPP CDBG-DR 1 202524 Community Program Aide I Temporary Vacant (Vice:  New) Vacant ----- ----- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
25 ACT SUPP CDBG-DR 1 202525 Community Program Aide I Temporary Vacant (Vice:  New) Vacant ----- ----- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
26 ACT SUPP CDBG-DR 1 202526 Community Program Aide I Temporary Vacant (Vice:  New) Vacant ----- ----- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
27 HOUSING CDBG-DR 1 202527 Program Coordinator III Temporary Calvo, Dominic Jerome M. (Vice:  New) Temporary NG5-9(A) 75,248 ----- ----- 0 75,248 23,154 494 0 1,091 198 21,917 653 47,508 122,756
28 HOUSING CDBG-DR 1 202528 Program Coordinator III Temporary Tablan, Sherylyn V. (Vice:  New) Temporary NG5-7(C) 68,271 ----- ----- 0 68,271 21,007 494 0 990 198 21,917 653 45,260 113,531
29 HOUSING CDBG-DR 1 202529 Program Coordinator II Temporary Mendiola, Kristen E. (Vice:  New) Temporary MG5-5(C) 56,094 ----- ----- 0 56,094 17,260 494 0 813 198 21,917 653 41,336 97,430
30 HOUSING CDBG-DR 1 202530 Program Coordinator II Temporary Roberto, Julia Alicia (Vice:  New) Temporary MG5-8(A) 65,536 ----- ----- 0 65,536 20,165 494 0 950 198 21,917 653 44,379 109,915
31 HOUSING CDBG-DR 1 202531 Program Coordinator II Temporary Palomo, Brittany M.C. (Vice:  New) Temporary MG5-6(A) 58,327 ----- ----- 0 58,327 17,947 494 0 846 198 21,917 653 42,056 100,383
32 HOUSING CDBG-DR 1 202532 Program Coordinator I Temporary Serrano, Fumine Toyama (Vice:  New) Temporary KG5-4(A) 44,630 ----- ----- 0 44,630 13,733 494 0 647 198 21,917 653 37,643 82,273
33 HOUSING CDBG-DR 1 202533 Program Coordinator I Temporary Veriato, Valene Cruz (Vice:  New) Temporary KG5-4(B) 45,063 ----- ----- 0 45,063 13,866 494 0 653 198 21,917 653 37,782 82,845
34 INFR/ECON CDBG-DR 1 202534 Program Coordinator III Temporary Blas, Rosie Ann (Vice:  New) Temporary NG5-10(F) 83,727 ----- ----- 0 83,727 25,763 494 0 1,214 198 21,917 653 50,240 133,967
35 INFR/ECON CDBG-DR 1 202535 Program Coordinator III Temporary Lujan, Jovyna (Vice:  New) Temporary NG5-10(F) 83,727 ----- ----- 0 83,727 25,763 494 0 1,214 198 21,917 653 50,240 133,967
36 INFR/ECON CDBG-DR 1 202536 Program Coordinator II Temporary Vacant (Vice:  New) Vacant ----- ----- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
37 INFR/ECON CDBG-DR 1 202537 Program Coordinator I Temporary Chargualaf, Carolyn M.D. (Vice:  New) Temporary KG5-4(A) 44,630 ----- ----- 0 44,630 13,733 494 0 647 198 21,917 653 37,643 82,273
38 INFR/ECON CDBG-DR 1 202538 Program Coordinator I Temporary Untalan, Jacqueline Okada (Vice:  New) Temporary KG5-5(C) 48,226 ----- ----- 0 48,226 14,839 494 0 699 198 21,917 653 38,801 87,027
39 INFR/ECON CDBG-DR 1 202539 Program Coordinator I Temporary Caguin, April M. (Vice:  New) Temporary KG5-4(B) 45,063 ----- ----- 0 45,063 13,866 494 0 653 198 21,917 653 37,782 82,845
40 MITIGATION CDBG-DR 1 202540 Program Coordinator III Temporary Cruz, Nicolas Gregory (Vice:  New) Temporary NG5-5(B) 60,182 ----- ----- 0 60,182 18,518 494 0 873 198 21,917 653 42,654 102,836
41 MITIGATION CDBG-DR 1 202541 Program Coordinator I Temporary Sakisat, Tuwa C. (Vice:  New) Temporary KG5-3(B) 40,106 ----- ----- 0 40,106 12,341 494 0 582 198 21,917 653 36,185 76,291
42 HR DIV CDBG-DR 1 202542 Personnel Specialist III Temporary Ongklungel, Carlo  (Detailed) (Vice:  New) Temporary NG5-1(C) 2,825 ----- ----- 0 41,111 12,650 494 0 596 198 21,917 653 36,509 77,620
43 HR DIV CDBG-DR 1 202543 Personnel Specialist I Temporary Pablo, Thalia (Vice:  New) Temporary LG5-1(A) 40,305 ----- ----- 0 40,305 12,402 494 0 584 198 21,917 653 36,249 76,554
44 FISCAL DIV CDBG-DR 1 202544 Accountant I Temporary Vacant (Vice:  New) Vacant ----- ----- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
45 LEGAL DIV CDBG-DR 1 202545 Paralegal II Temporary Vacant (Vice:  New) Vacant ----- ----- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
46 AE DIV CDBG-DR 1 202546 Program Coordinator II Temporary Villanueva, Marie Nosek (Vice:  New) Temporary MG5-8(A) 65,536 ----- ----- 0 65,536 20,165 494 0 950 198 21,917 653 44,379 109,915
47 AE DIV CDBG-DR 1 202547 Program Coordinator I Temporary Paulino, Eddie P. (Vice:  New) Temporary KG5-5(C) 48,226 ----- ----- 0 48,226 14,839 494 0 699 198 21,917 653 38,801 87,027
48 AD/EX CDBG-DR 1 TBD Program Coordinator IV Temporary Vacant (Vice:  New) Vacant ----- ----- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
49 AD/EX CDBG-DR 1 TBD Program Coordinator II Temporary Vacant (Vice:  New) Vacant ----- ----- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
50 AD/EX CDBG-DR 1 TBD Planner III Temporary Vacant (Vice:  New) Vacant ----- ----- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

31 19 1,849,886 1,317,186 3,167,072

FTE POSITION BREAKDOWN EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT BREAKDOWN
Staffing on BOARD 31.00 Unclassified: 0 Exempt: 0 0%

Vacancies 19.00 Permanent: 0 Unclassified: 0 0%

Total Board-Approved FTE 50.00 Temporary: 50 Permanent: 0 0%

Temporary (Part-Time): 0 CLT-Permanent: 0 0%
Probationary: 0 0%

TOTAL FTE POSITIONS: 50 Limited-Term: 0 0%
Temporary: 31 100%

Temporary (Part-Time): 0 0%

TOTAL EMPLOYEE APPTS: 31 100%
Vacancy: 19

SALARIES BENEFITS
INCREMENT

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 88 of 288



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

RESOLUTION NO. FY2025-037 
 
 

Moved by:         Seconded by:         

 
RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FISCAL YEAR 2026 OPERATING BUDGETS FOR PUBLIC 
HOUSING ASSET MANAGEMENT PROPERTIES (AMP) GQ001000001, GQ001000002, 
GQ001000003 AND GQ001000004. 
 
WHEREAS, the Authority and the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 

Development (HUD) entered into a Consolidated Annual Contributions 
Contract, ACC Number SF-272 dated March 27, 1967; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Authority administers HUD’s Low Rent Public Housing Program, 

which is subsidized by HUD, through its Operating Fund; and  
 
 WHEREAS, HUD, with the implementation of 990.255 of the Operating Fund final 

rule, requires public housing authorities to implement project-based 
management, project-based budgeting and project-based accounting, 
and  

 
WHEREAS, the Authority, in anticipation of the aforementioned requirement, has 

grouped its housing developments into Asset Management Properties 
(AMPs),  

 
WHEREAS, the proposed Fiscal Year 2026 AMP budgeted expenditures are 

necessary in the efficient and economical operations of the AMPs for 
the purpose of serving low-income residents; therefore, be it 

 
RESOLVED, that the FY 2026 AMP operating budgets for the Authority’s Asset 

Management Properties GQ001000001, GQ001000002, GQ001000003 
and GQ001000004 are hereby approved. 

 
IN REGULAR BOARD MEETING AT SINAJANA, GUAM – SEPTEMBER 16, 2025 
PASSED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTES:  
AYES:         
NAYES:          
ABSENT:            
ABSTAINED:          

 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true 
and correct copy of a Resolution duly adopted 
by the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal 
Authority Board of Commissioners on 
September 16, 2025. 

                 (SEAL) 
________________________________________ 
ELIZABETH F. NAPOLI 
Board Secretary / Executive Director  

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 89 of 288



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

RESOLUTION NO. FY2025-038 

 

 

Moved by:      Seconded by:    

 
RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FISCAL YEAR 2026 OPERATING AND 

ADMINISTRATIVE BUDGET. 

 

WHEREAS, the Authority must continue its primary mission to provide safe, 

decent, and sanitary housing to the people of Guam in Fiscal Year 

2026; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Authority must ensure the continued operation of the Public and 

Indian Housing, Housing Choice Voucher, Supportive Housing for 

the Elderly and community development programs; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Authority must ensure the continued payment of personnel 

salaries, benefits, and other administrative expenditures for Fiscal 

Year 2026; and  

 

WHEREAS, to allow the Authority the flexibility for addressing situational needs 

to meet its mission, provide transfer authority of 10% to the 

Executive Director, within the total budget, and keep the Chairman 

of the Board apprised of such transfers; therefore, be it 

 

RESOLVED, that the FY 2026 Operating and Administrative budget is hereby 

approved. 

   

 
IN REGULAR BOARD MEETING AT SINAJANA, GUAM – SEPTEMBER 24, 2024 

PASSED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTES:  

AYES:                  

NAYES:          

ABSENT:             

ABSTAINED:      

 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, 

true and correct copy of a Resolution duly 

adopted by the Guam Housing and Urban 

Renewal Authority Board of 

Commissioners on September 24, 2024. 

                     (SEAL) 

__________________________________ 

ELIZABETH F. NAPOLI 

Board Secretary / Executive Director  

 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 90 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 91 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 92 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 93 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 94 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 95 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 96 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 97 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 98 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 99 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 100 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 101 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 102 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 103 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 104 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 105 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 106 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 107 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 108 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 109 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 110 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 111 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 112 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 113 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 114 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 115 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 116 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 117 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 118 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 119 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 120 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 121 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 122 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 123 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 124 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 125 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 126 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 127 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 128 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 129 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 130 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 131 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 132 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 133 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 134 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 135 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 136 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 137 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 138 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 139 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 140 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 141 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 142 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 143 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 144 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 145 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 146 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 147 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 148 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 149 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 150 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 151 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 152 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 153 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 154 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 155 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 156 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 157 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 158 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 159 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 160 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 161 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 162 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 163 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 164 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 165 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 166 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 167 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 168 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 169 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 170 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 171 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 172 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 173 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 174 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 175 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 176 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 177 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 178 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 179 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 180 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 181 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 182 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 183 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 184 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 185 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 186 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 187 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 188 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 189 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 190 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 191 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 192 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 193 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 194 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 195 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 196 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 197 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 198 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 199 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 200 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 201 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 202 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 203 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 204 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 205 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 206 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 207 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 208 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 209 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 210 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 211 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 212 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 213 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 214 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 215 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 216 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 217 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 218 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 219 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 220 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 221 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 222 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 223 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 224 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 225 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 226 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 227 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 228 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 229 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 230 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 231 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 232 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 233 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 234 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 235 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 236 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 237 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 238 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 239 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 240 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 241 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 242 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 243 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 244 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 245 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 246 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 247 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 248 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 249 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 250 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 251 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 252 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 253 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 254 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 255 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 256 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 257 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 258 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 259 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 260 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 261 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 262 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 263 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 264 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 265 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 266 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 267 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 268 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 269 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 270 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 271 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 272 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 273 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 274 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 275 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 276 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 277 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 278 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 279 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 280 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 281 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 282 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 283 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 284 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 285 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 286 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 287 of 288



 
Board Meeting of September 16, 2025 

 
PAGE 288 of 288


	2026 GHURA Budget.pdf
	1 Cover Page
	1a Mission Statement
	2 Organizational Chart
	3 Budget Summary
	4 AMPs 1
	4a AMPs
	4b AMPs
	4c AMPs
	4d AMPs
	5 HCV
	5a HCV
	6 Elderly
	6a Elderly
	6b Elderly
	7 CFP
	7a CFP
	8 CD
	9 RPE
	10 COCC
	10a COCC
	11 Other
	11a Other
	12 DR
	13 Staffing Pattern
	13a Staffing Pattern

	GHURA FY26 - Admin.Exec.pdf
	Slide 1: FY2026 ORGANIZATIONAL CHARTS
	Slide 2
	Slide 3: GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY  FY2026 Organizational Chart
	Slide 4: GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY  FY2026 Organizational Chart ADMINISTRATION / EXECUTIVE /  AUDIT & COMPLIANCE
	Slide 5: GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY  FY2026 Organizational Chart HUMAN RESOURCES
	Slide 6: GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY  FY2026 Organizational Chart PROCUREMENT
	Slide 7: GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY  FY2026 Organizational Chart MANAGEMENT INFORMATION SYSTEMS
	Slide 8: GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY  FY2026 Organizational Chart FISCAL
	Slide 9: GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY  FY2026 Organizational Chart MODERNIZATION (CFP)
	Slide 10: GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY  FY2026 Organizational Chart RESEARCH, PLANNING & EVALUATION
	Slide 11: GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY  FY2026 Organizational Chart COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
	Slide 12
	Slide 13: GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY  FY2026 Organizational Chart GUMA TRANKILIDAT (ELDERLY)
	Slide 14: GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY FY2026 Organizational Chart SECTION 8 (Housing Choice Voucher Program)
	Slide 15: GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY  FY2026 Organizational Chart ARCHITECTURAL / ENGINEERING
	Slide 16: GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY FY2026 Organizational Chart COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT – DISASTER RECOVERY (CDBG-DR)

	GHURA FY26 - DR.pdf
	Slide 1: FY2026 ORGANIZATIONAL CHARTS
	Slide 2
	Slide 3: GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY  FY2026 Organizational Chart
	Slide 4: GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY  FY2026 Organizational Chart ADMINISTRATION / EXECUTIVE /  AUDIT & COMPLIANCE
	Slide 5: GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY  FY2026 Organizational Chart HUMAN RESOURCES
	Slide 6: GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY  FY2026 Organizational Chart PROCUREMENT
	Slide 7: GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY  FY2026 Organizational Chart MANAGEMENT INFORMATION SYSTEMS
	Slide 8: GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY  FY2026 Organizational Chart FISCAL
	Slide 9: GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY  FY2026 Organizational Chart MODERNIZATION (CFP)
	Slide 10: GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY  FY2026 Organizational Chart RESEARCH, PLANNING & EVALUATION
	Slide 11: GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY  FY2026 Organizational Chart COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
	Slide 12
	Slide 13: GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY  FY2026 Organizational Chart GUMA TRANKILIDAT (ELDERLY)
	Slide 14: GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY FY2026 Organizational Chart SECTION 8 (Housing Choice Voucher Program)
	Slide 15: GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY  FY2026 Organizational Chart ARCHITECTURAL / ENGINEERING
	Slide 16: GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY FY2026 Organizational Chart COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT – DISASTER RECOVERY (CDBG-DR)




